
Merton Council
Cabinet  Agenda
Membership

Councillors: 

Stephen Alambritis (Chair)
Mark Allison
Tobin Byers
Caroline Cooper-Marbiah
Nick Draper
Ross Garrod
Edith Macauley MBE
Katy Neep
Martin Whelton

Date: Monday 16 October 2017 

Time:  7.15 pm

Venue:  Committee rooms C, D & E - Merton Civic Centre, London Road, 
Morden SM4 5DX

This is a public meeting and attendance by the public is encouraged and welcomed.  
For more information about the agenda please contact  
democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3616.

All Press contacts: press@merton.gov.uk, 020 8545 3181

mailto:press@merton.gov.uk


Cabinet  Agenda
16 October 2017 
1 Apologies for absence 

2 Declarations of pecuniary interest 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting 1 - 4

4 Business Plan 2018-22 5 - 34

5 Financial Monitoring Report 2017-18 - August 2017 35 - 90

6 Merton's new Local Plan - have your say 91 - 96

7 Contract Award- Adult Integrated Drug and Alcohol Service 97 - 104

8 Tackling Loneliness in Merton - Final report and 
recommendations of the scrutiny task group review 

105 - 
124

9 Reference: consideration of care leaver accommodation 125 - 
128

10 Exclusion of the public 
To RESOLVE that the public are excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following report(s) on 
the grounds that it is (they are) exempt from disclosure for 
the reasons stated in the report(s).

11 Contract Award- Adult Integrated Drug and Alcohol Service - 
Appendix 

129 - 
134

Note on declarations of interest

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at 
the meeting.  If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during 
the whole of the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that matter.  If  
members consider they should not participate because of a non-pecuniary interest which may give 
rise to a perception of bias, they should declare this, .withdraw and not participate in consideration of 
the item.  For further advice please speak with the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance.



All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel.  To find out the date of the next 
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee.

1

CABINET
18 SEPTEMBER 2017
(7.15 pm - 7.50 pm)
PRESENT: Councillors Stephen Alambritis (in the Chair), Mark Allison, 

Caroline Cooper-Marbiah, Nick Draper, Ross Garrod, Edith 
Macauley MBE, Katy Neep and Martin Whelton

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Daniel Holden and Peter Southgate

Hannah Doody (Director of Community and Housing), Caroline 
Holland (Director of Corporate Services), Chris Lee (Director of 
Environment and Regeneration), Yvette Stanley (Director, 
Children, Schools & Families Department), Fiona Thomsen 
(Head of shared legal services) and Tara Butler (Programme 
Manager - Strategic Policy and Research)

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies were received from Councillor Tobin Byers; and the Chief Executive.

2 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST (Agenda Item 2)

There were no declarations of interest.

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2017 are agreed as an 
accurate record.

4 NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY - 
GOVERNANCE (Agenda Item 4)

The Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Environment and Housing presented the 
report which set out governance and allocation arrangements for both the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Neighbourhood Fund and the Carbon Offset Fund.  In presenting 
the report, he highlighted that since 2014 the Council had collected £777,000.  He 
drew Members attention to the timetable for allocation set out in the report; the 
results of the consultation; and the proposed governance arrangements.  It was 
proposed that there should be an equitable allocation across the Borough, to address 
the areas of most need and contribute to the Community Plan priority to bridge the 
gap.  He stressed the key role which Councillors play in working with neighbourhoods 
to make improvements which are inline with residents’ priorities.

It was noted that the proposals related to the neighbourhood proportion of Merton CIL 
income, which was approximately 15% of the total income.  Under the CIL 
regulations, the Neighbourhood Fund, must be spent on local projects to support the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

http://www.merton.gov.uk/committee


2

demands of the area; and that ‘area’ was defined as the whole Borough.  In addition, 
the guidance stated that administrative cost of the governance arrangements should 
be proportionate to the level of receipts.

In considering the report, Cabinet Members sought clarification from officers on a 
number of issues.  It was noted that the amount of contributions to the Carbon Offset 
Fund not yet received related to development work not yet started.  Development 
must start within 3 years of planning approval, and the Carbon Offset Fund normally 
only applied to building refurbishments where it was not possible to achieve 
compliance with energy and carbon emission standards.  It was also noted that the 
proposals contained in the report did not fetter the Council’s discretion to allocate 
funding to the areas of most need.
 
RESOLVED:

1. That the governance and allocation arrangements for the Neighbourhood 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Fund, as set out in Appendices A and B to 
the report, be approved.

2. That the changes to the carbon offset collection process be noted; and the 
governance and allocation arrangements for the Carbon Offset Fund, as set out in 
the Appendix to the report, be approved.

5 DESIGN SUPPMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT - BASEMENTS AND 
SHOPFRONTS CHAPTERS FOR ADOPTION (Agenda Item 5)

The Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Environment and Housing presented the 
report which set out two chapters of the Design Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD) relating to basements and shopfronts; and the Canons Conservation Area 
Management Plan.

Cabinet welcomed the partnership working which had taken place with businesses in 
Colliers Wood in relation to improving their shopfronts; and the conservation work 
carried out in the Canons, Mitcham working in partnership with local organisations for 
the benefit of local residents.

RESOLVED:

1. That chapter 9: basement and subterranean development planning  guidance 
and chapter 8: Shop fronts of the Design Supplementary Planning document 
(SPD); and the Canons Management Plan Supplementary Planning Document 
be adopted.

6 BUSINESS PLAN 2018-22 (Agenda Item 6)

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented the report which set out the initial review 
of the Medium Term Financial Strategy and the approach for setting a balanced 
budget for 2018-22.  

Page 2



3

Cabinet noted that, following publication of the report, advice had been received from 
the National Employers that an initial pay offer would now be made following the 
Governments Autumn Budget in November, and not September as originally 
anticipated.

RESOLVED:

1. That the rolled forward MTFS for 2018-22 be noted.
2. That the latest position with regards to savings already in the MTFS be 

confirmed.
3. The approach to setting a balanced budget using weighted controllable 

expenditure for each department as the basis for the setting of targets be 
agreed.

4. That the proposed corporate and departmental targets be agreed.

5. That the timetable for the Business Plan 2018-22 including the revenue budget 
2018/19, the MTFS 2018-22 and the Capital Programme for 2018-22 be 
agreed.

6. That the process for the Service Plan 2018-22 and the progress made so far 
be noted.

7 FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 2017-18 - JUNE 2017 (Agenda Item 7)

The Chair advised that Items 7 and 8 would be considered together, however for the 
purposes of the minutes, the decisions are recorded separately.

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented the reports, which set out the financial 
monitoring data for periods 3 and 4 relating to income and expenditure, an update on 
the Capital Programme and progress on delivery of the 2017/18 revenue savings.  It 
was noted that both reports had also been considered by the Financial Monitoring 
Task Group.

RESOLVED:

1. That the financial reporting data relating to revenue budgetary control, 
showing a forecast net overspend at year end of £1.8million, 0.3% of the gross 
budget be noted.

2. That the adjustments to the Capital Programme contained in Appendix 5b to 
the report be noted.

3. That the following adjustments to the Capital Programme be approved:

Page 3



4

8 FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 2017-18 - JULY 2017 (Agenda Item 8)

The Chair advised that Items 7 and 8 would be considered together, however for the 
purposes of the minutes, the decisions are recorded separately.

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented the reports, which set out the financial 
monitoring data for periods 3 and 4 relating to income and expenditure, an update on 
the Capital Programme and progress on delivery of the 2017/18 revenue savings.  It 
was noted that both reports had also been considered by the Financial Monitoring 
Task Group.

RESOLVED:

1. That the financial reporting data relating to revenue budgetary control, 
showing a forecast net overspend at year end of £1.4million, 0.3% of the gross 
budget be noted.

2. That the adjustments to the Capital Programme contained in Appendix 5b be 
approved.

3. That the following adjustments to the Capital Programme be approved:

Scheme 2017/18 Budget 2018/19 Budget Funding/Re-profiling

Corporate Services
Capita Housing (70,000) 70,000 Re-profiling
Planning & Public Protection System 165,580 (165,580) Re-profiling

Environment and Regeneration 
Rediscover Mitcham S106 224,650 0 S106 Funding

Total 320,230 (95,580)

Scheme 2017/18 budget 2018/19 budget Funding/Re-profiling

Environment and Regeneration
GPS Vehicle Tracking (1) 22,000 0 Virement

Sports Facilities – Wim Pk Lke De-
silting (1) (143,500) 0 Virement

Tackling Traffic Congestion – 
ANPR Cmrs (1) 110,000 0 Virement

Morden Pollution Monitoring (1) 11,500 0 Virement

Total 0 0

Page 4



Cabinet 
Date: 16 October 2017  
Subject: Draft Business Plan 2018-22  
Lead officer:  Caroline Holland – Director of Corporate Services 
Lead member: Councillor Mark Allison – Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member  
       for Finance  
Contact Officer: Roger Kershaw 
 

Recommendations:  

1. That Cabinet agree the proposed amendments to savings set out in Appendix 
1 and incorporate the financial implications into the draft MTFS 2018-22. 

2. That Cabinet agrees the latest draft Capital Programme 2018-22 detailed in 
Appendix 3 for consideration by scrutiny in November and notes the indicative 
programme for 2022-27. 

 

1.        Purpose of report and executive summary 
1.1 This report provides an update on progress towards preparing the Business 

Plan 2018-22 and requests Cabinet to consider and agree some proposed 
amendments to savings, including replacement savings, which have been 
approved previously and are incorporated into the current MTFS. 

 
1.3 The report also provides details of the latest capital programme, including new 

bids and an indicative programme for 2022- 2027 
 
 
 Details 
 
2. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018-22    
 
2.1 At its meeting on 18 September 2017 Cabinet considered a report which 

updated the Business Plan 2018-22. At the meeting it was resolved by 
Cabinet:- 

 
 RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the rolled forward MTFS for 2018-22 be noted. 
2. That the latest position with regards to savings already in the MTFS be 

confirmed. 
3. That the approach to setting a balanced budget using weighted controllable 

expenditure for each department as the basis for the setting of targets be 
agreed. 

1
Page 5

Agenda Item 4



4. That the proposed corporate and departmental targets be agreed. 
5. That the timetable for the Business Plan 2018-22 including the revenue 

budget 2018/19, the MTFS 2018-22 and the Capital Programme for 2018-22 
be agreed. 

6. That the process for the Service Plan 2018-22 and the progress made so far 
be noted. 

2.2 In the September Cabinet report, the following budget gap in the MTFS was 
identified before identifying any new savings and income proposals:- 

 
 2018/19 

£000 
2019/20 

£000 
2020/21 

£000 
2021/22 

£000 
Budget Gap 0 5,619 15,284 828 
Budget Gap (Cumulative) 0 5,619 20,903 21,731 

 
2.3 The September Cabinet  report set out initial targets, based on controllable 

spend and shortfalls in previously identified targets, to balance the MTFS at 
this stage for each department as follows:-  

 
SAVINGS TARGETS BY 
DEPARTMENT  

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

2021/22 
£000 

Total 
£000 

            
Corporate Services 0 2,363 1,911 169 4,443 
Children, Schools and Families 0 0 3,328 132 3,460 
Environment and Regeneration 0 3,256 3,352 262 6,870 
Community and Housing 0 0 6,693 265 6,958 
            
Total 0 5,619 15,284 828 21,731 
Cumulative 0 5,619 20,903 21,731   

 
3. Proposed Amendments to Previously Agreed Savings 
 
3.1 In recent years, the introduction of multi-year financial planning has resulted in 

savings agreed in a particular financial year having an impact on future years. 
These have been incorporated into the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy. The full year effect of savings in the current MTFS from 2018/19 
onwards is shown in the following table:- 

 
 2018/19 

£000 
2019/20 

£000 
2020/21 

 £000 
2022/22 

 £000 
Total 
 £000 

Corporate Services 2,043 301 0 0 2,344 
Children, Schools & Families 489 429 0 0 918 
Environment & Regeneration 1,358 650 0 0 2,008 
Community & Housing 3,128 339 0 0 3,467 
Total 7,018 1,719 0 0 8,737 
Cumulative total 7,018 8,737 8,737 8,737  

 
 

2
Page 6



3.2 Monitoring of the delivery of savings is important and it is essential to 
recognise as quickly as possible where circumstances change and savings 
previously agreed are either not achievable in full or in part or are delayed. 
The following changes to agreed savings are proposed in this report:- 

 
3.2.1 Environment and Regeneration 

There is a need to amend some savings previously agreed which are now 
seen to be undeliverable. The majority of these are in Development 
Control/Building Control where the slowdown in the economy and reduction in 
fee income has affected our income levels . In addition we have struggled to 
absorb the service changes without a significant impact on performance . 
Without the promised increase in planning fee charges proposed by 
Government earlier this year but yet to materialise we need to amend these 
savings . In addition some income assumptions in greenspaces have been 
over optimistic and whilst possible in the longer term will take more time to 
ramp up to. 
 
A new saving, which will contribute towards meeting E&R’s future savings 
target is also attached.  
 

 
3.2.2 Further details of the proposed amendments to previously agreed savings and 

the new saving are provided in Appendix 1. 
 
3.2.3 Equalities Assessments are included as Appendix 4. 
 
 
3.3 Summary 

The overall effect of the proposed amendments is set out in the following 
table:- 

 

SUMMARY (cumulative) 2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

2021/22 
£000 

Total 
£000 

Corporate Services 0 0 0 0 0 
Children, Schools & Families 0 0 0 0 0 
Environment & Regeneration 0 300 0 0 300 
Community & Housing 0 0 0 0 0 
Total 0 300 0 0 300 
Net Cumulative total 0 300 300 300  

  
 
4. Treasury Management: Capital Financing Costs and Investment income 
 
 
4.1 The report to Cabinet in September 2017 provided information on the capital 

financing costs of the Capital Programme based on the July monitoring 
position. 

 
 
 

3
Page 7



4.2 Investment Income 
 There are two key factors that impact on the level of investment income that 

the Council can generate:- 
 

• The amount invested 
• The interest rate that is achieved 

 Based on latest information, the projected levels of investment income over 
the period of the MTFS have been revised. The following table show the latest 
projections compared with the amounts included in the MTFS approved by  
Cabinet in September 2017:- 

 

Investment Income 
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
MTFS (Cabinet September 2017) (393) (283) (258) *(1,184) 
Latest projections (566) (452) (428) *(1,355) 
Change (173) (169) (170) (171) 

∗ Includes interest on Property Company loan 

 
4.3 Capital Programme for 2018-22 
 
 This report includes the latest information on the draft Capital Programme 

2018-22 based on August monitoring information including the addition of new 
schemes commencing in 2021/22. An indicative programme for 2022-27 is 
also provided. The draft programme is set out in Appendix 3. 

 
4.4 The bidding process for 2021/22 was launched on 26 June 2017.  

4.5 The current capital provision and associated revenue implications in the 
currently approved capital programme, based on August 2017 monitoring 
information, are as follows:- 

 
 2018/19 

£000 
2019/20 

£000 
2020/21 

£000 
2021/22 

£000 
Capital Programme 64,274 31,360 9,280 8,569 
     
Revenue Implications (net of 
investment income 

11,333 13,636 14,870 13,857 

 
 
4.6 The change in the capital programme since that reported to Cabinet on 18 

September 2017, based on July 2017 monitoring information,  is summarised 
in the following table:- 

 
 
 
 

4
Page 8



 
 2018/19 

£000 
2019/20 

£000 
2020/21 

£000 
2021/22 

£000 
Capital Programme:     
- Cabinet 18 September 2017 60,004 30,200 9,222 8,661 
- Revised Position with Slippage 
  revisions and new schemes 

64,274 31,360 9,280 8,569 

Change 4,270 1,160 58 (92) 
Revenue impact (net of investment 
income) 

    

Cabinet 18 September 2017 11,506 13,567 14,731 13,717 
Revised 11,333 13,636 14,870 13,857 
Change (173) 69 139 140 

 
4.6 The programme has been rigorously reviewed and reduced where 

appropriate. The changes made to the programme are detailed within 
Appendix 3, along with movements when compared to the current 
programme. This review is continuing and it is envisaged that further 
information will be presented to December 2017 Cabinet.  

 
 
5. Update to MTFS 2018-22 
 
5.1 If the changes outlined in this report are agreed the forecast budget gap over 

the MTFS period is:- 
 

  2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
 £000 

2021/22 
 £000 

Budget Gap in MTFS 0 5,215 20,742 21,571 

 
 
5.2 A more detailed MTFS is included as Appendix 2. 
 
5.3 It is anticipated that new revenue savings/income proposals and revisions to 

the capital programme will continue to be identified during the business 
planning process and these will be included in future reports to Cabinet in 
accordance with the agreed timetable and these will go onto Overview and 
Scrutiny Panels and the Commission in January 2018. 

 
 
6. Alternative Options 
 
6.1 The range of options available to the Council relating to the Business Plan 

2018-22 and for setting a balanced revenue budget and fully financed capital 
programme will be presented in reports to Cabinet and Council in accordance 
with the agreed timetable. 

 
 

5
Page 9



 
7. Consultation Undertaken or Proposed 
 
7.1 All relevant bodies have been consulted. 
 
7.2 The details in this report will be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny 

Panels and Commission on the following dates:- 
 

Sustainable Communities 2 November 2017 
Healthier Communities and Older People 7 November 2017 
Children and Younger People  8 November 2017 
Overview and Scrutiny Commission 15 November 2017 

 
7.3 As for 2017/18, it is proposed that a savings proposals consultation pack will 

be prepared and distributed to all councillors at the end of December 2017 
that can be brought to all Scrutiny and Cabinet meetings from 10 January 
2018 onwards and to Budget Council. This makes the information more 
manageable for councillors and ensures that only one version of those 
documents is available so referring to page numbers at meetings is easier. It 
considerably reduces printing costs and reduces the amount of printing that 
needs to take place immediately prior to Budget Council. 

 
7.4 The pack will include: 
 

• Savings proposals 
• Equality impact assessment for each saving proposal  
• Service plans (these will also be printed in A3 to lay round at scrutiny 

meetings) 

8. Timetable 
 
8.1 In accordance with current financial reporting timetables. 
 
8.2 The proposed timetable for developing the business plan and service plans 

was approved by Cabinet on 18 September 2017. 
 
 
9. Financial, resource and property implications 
 
9.1 As contained in the body of the report. 
 
9.2 The Chancellor of the Exchequer has announced that there will be an Autumn 

Budget published on 22 November 2017. The Autumn Budget sets out the 
government’s plans for the economy based on the latest forecasts from the 
Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR). Overall funding allocations for local 
government will be notified in the review but details of provisional funding 
allocations for each local authority will not be known until the provisional Local 
Government Finance Settlement is published in mid/late December 2017. 

 
 

6
Page 10



 
10. Legal and statutory implications 
 
10.1 As outlined in the report. 
 
 
11. Human rights, equalities and community cohesion implications 
 
11.1 None for the purposes of this report, these will be dealt with as the budget is 

developed for 2018 – 2022. 
 
11.2 Equalities Assessments for replacement savings are provided in Appendix 4. 
 
 
12. Crime and Disorder Implications 
 
12.1 Not applicable. 
 
 
13. Risk Management and health and safety implications 
 
13.1 There is a specific key strategic risk for the Business Plan, which is monitored 

in line with the corporate risk monitoring timetable. 
 
 
14. Appendices – The following documents are to be published with this 

Report and form part of the Report. 
  

Appendix 1 – Proposed Amendments to previously agreed savings 
 Appendix 2 – Latest draft MTFS 2018-22 
 Appendix 3 – Draft Capital Programme 2018-22 

Appendix 4 -  Equalities analyses for new saving 
 
 
 
15. Background Papers 
 
15.1 The following documents have been relied on in drawing up this report but do 

not form part of the report: 
 
Budgetary Control and Final Accounts Working Papers in the Corporate 
Services Department. 
Budget Monitoring working papers 
MTFS working papers 

 
16. REPORT AUTHOR 

- Name: Roger Kershaw 
- Tel: 020 8545 3458 
email:   roger.kershaw@merton.gov.uk 

 

7
Page 11

mailto:paul.dale@merton.gov.uk


E&R Swap/Alternative Savings 

Introduction 
As at Period 5 (August), we are reporting to DMT and Cabinet the following shortfall 
against our agreed savings:- 

YEAR  
IMPLEMENTED 

AMOUNT  
(£’000) 

2016/17 612 
2017/18 1,447 
2018/19 709 
TOTAL 2,768 

 

Some of this shortfall may be achieved next year but it appears that, for whatever 
reason, a significant proportion simply cannot be achieved.  

Therefore, we need to take this opportunity to mitigate these saving shortfalls as far 
as possible. Due to the scale of savings in question the mitigating action may arise 
from other areas/services that can assist with meeting the department’s targets. 

Pressures 
The majority of ‘at risk’ savings relate to Sustainable Communities, notably 
Development and Building Control (D&BC) but other pockets of unachievable 
savings exist across the department. The below tables show the key savings that are 
currently at risk. 

 

Savings implemented in 2016/17 

 

 

 

 

 

Ref Section Description of Saving
Savings 

Required  
£000

2017/18 
Expected 
Shortfall 

£000

17/18 
RAG

E&R33a D&BC Various D&BC Budgets - Increase in income from 
commercialisation of services

75 75 R

E&R39 Future 
Merton

Pre-application income. This is in addition to any previous pre-
app savings proposal.

50 50 R

E&R10 Parking 
Services

Back office reorganisation
80 80 R

E&R21 Waste 
Services

HRRC Site operations procured to external provider. 
Contractual savings. 30 30 R

Total Environment and Regeneration Savings 2016/ 235 235

APPENDIX 1

8
Page 12



 

Savings implemented in 2017/18 

 

 

Savings to be implemented in 2018/19 

 

 
 
 
Proposal 
The main opportunities to assist with mitigating these pressures relate to Parking 
Services, as follows:- 

• ENV33 = £250k saving implemented this year relating to the diesel surcharge 
is being exceeded by c£290k. With the permit fee increasing to £115 next 
year, the surplus should increase to around £440k. 

• E&R8 = £500k growth currently built in to Medium term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) for 2018/19 

 

Ref Section Description of Saving
2017/18 
Savings 

Required

2017/18 
Expected 
Shortfall  

£00

17/18 
RAG

D&BC1 D&BC Fast track of householder planning applications
55 55 R

D&BC2 D&BC Growth  in PPA and Pre-app income 50 50 R
D&BC3 D&BC Commercialisation of building control

50 50 R

D&BC5 D&BC Eliminate the Planning Duty service  (both face to face and dedicated 
phone line) within D&BC

35 35 R

D&BC6 D&BC Stop sending consultation letters on applications and erect site notices 
only 

10 10 R

ENV20 D&BC Increased income from building control services. 35 35 R
ENV06 Parking 

Services
Reduction in transport related budgets

46 46 R

ENV18 Greenspaces Increased income from events in parks

100 100 R

Total Environment and Regeneration Savings 2017/18 381 381

Ref Section Description of Saving 2018/19   
£000

2018/19 
Deliver- 
ability 
Risk
RAG

D&BC7 D&BC Shared service collaboration with Kingston/Sutton 50 R

D&BC8 D&BC Review of service through shared service discussions 274 R

TOTAL 324

APPENDIX 1

9
Page 13



This provides the department with a total budget of £940k that can be used to help 
offset the department’s above pressures. Therefore, it is proposed that:-  

• E&R8 will be used as a swap saving 
• The diesel surcharge surplus will be used as an alternative saving – an 

Equalities Assessment is provided in Appendix 4. 

This income forms part of the On-Street Parking Account maintained by the Council. 
Any surpluses on the account can only be applied towards the specific purposes set 
out in section 55 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. For example, in 2016/17 
the surplus was notionally applied to concessionary fares.  

The details of the Parking Account are included within the annual Statement of 
Accounts, and reported to the Mayor for London.  

The above savings relate to income that will be included as part of the 2017/18 
Parking Account in the usual manner. The associated surpluses have materialised 
through existing pricing structures, either agreed by Cabinet (diesel surcharge) or the 
Secretary of State (Penalty Charge Notices), primarily aimed at improving both driver 
behaviour and air quality, and reducing congestion within the borough. The Council 
currently utilises significant General Fund resources for transport related costs. 

The following table demonstrates that the additional £440k will fund specific 
purposes as per the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984:- 

 

 £000 
Parking Surplus (7,554) 
Spend on Concessionary Fares 9,319 
Amount over and above Surplus applied 1,765 
Additional Parking income (440) 
Revised Amount above surplus 1,325 
 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1

10
Page 14



D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 E
N

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
AN

D
 R

EG
EN

ER
AT

IO
N

 S
AV

IN
G

S 
- B

U
D

G
ET

 P
R

O
C

ES
S 

20
18

/1
9 

Pa
ne

l
R

ef

 B
as

el
in

e 
B

ud
ge

t 
17

/1
8 

£0
00

 

20
17

/1
8 

  
£0

00
20

18
/1

9 
  

£0
00

20
19

/2
0 

  
£0

00
R

is
k 

An
al

ys
is

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

ili
ty

R
is

k 
An

al
ys

is
 

R
ep

ut
at

io
na

l 
Im

pa
ct

Ty
pe

 o
f 

Sa
vi

ng
 

(s
ee

 k
ey

)

SC
EN

R
10

Se
rv

ic
e/

Se
ct

io
n

Le
is

ur
e 

&
 C

ul
tu

re

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Tw
o 

ye
ar

 e
xt

en
si

on
 o

f t
he

 G
LL

 c
on

tra
ct

57
3

30
0

M
ed

Lo
w

SP
1

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

Ex
te

nd
 c

on
tin

ui
ty

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 w
ith

 s
am

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 
fo

r 2
 fu

rth
er

 y
ea

rs
.

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

N
on

e

B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

C
on

tin
ui

ty
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

w
ith

 e
xi

st
in

g 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. P

ut
s 

ba
ck

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 re

pr
oc

ur
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 b
y 

tw
o 

ye
ar

s
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ot
he

r 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t a
nd

 le
ga

l -
 a

s 
re

-p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t d
el

ay
ed

 b
y 

2 
ye

ar
s;

 C
hi

ld
re

n,
 S

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 F

am
ilie

s 
- c

on
tin

ui
ty

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
by

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
on

tra
ct

or
 fo

r 2
 fu

rth
er

 y
ea

rs
 - 

sc
ho

ol
 c

ur
ric

ul
um

 s
w

im
m

in
g,

 e
tc

.

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
C

on
tin

ui
ty

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
w

ith
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 
TO

M
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
C

on
tra

ct
 c

ha
ng

e 
cr

ea
tin

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s.
 K

ey
 o

ffi
ce

r a
cr

os
s 

co
un

ci
l w

ill 
be

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
de

ta
il 

of
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 d
el

iv
er

y.

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ty
pe

Pa
ne

l
SI

1
In

co
m

e 
- i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 c

ur
re

nt
 le

ve
l o

f c
ha

rg
es

 
C

&
YP

C
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

SI
2

In
co

m
e 

- i
nc

re
as

e 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e/

ne
w

 s
er

vi
ce

 
C

C
C

or
po

ra
te

 C
ap

ac
ity

SS
1

St
af

fin
g:

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 c
os

ts
 d

ue
 to

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
H

C
&

O
P

H
ea

lth
ie

r C
om

m
un

iti
es

 &
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e

SS
2

St
af

fin
g:

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 c
os

ts
 d

ue
 to

 d
el

et
io

n/
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
SC

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

SN
S1

N
on

 - 
St

af
fin

g:
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 c

os
ts

 d
ue

 to
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

SN
S2

N
on

 - 
St

af
fin

g:
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 c

os
ts

 d
ue

 to
 d

el
et

io
n/

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

SP
1

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t /

 T
hi

rd
 P

ar
ty

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 - 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
SP

2 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t /
 T

hi
rd

 P
ar

ty
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 - 
de

le
tio

n/
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
SG

1
G

ra
nt

s:
 E

xi
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
ne

w
 g

ra
nt

SG
2

G
ra

nt
s:

 Im
pr

ov
ed

 E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

un
rin

gf
en

ce
d 

gr
an

t

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1 11

Page 15



Pr
ev

io
us

ly
 A

gr
ee

d 
Sa

vi
ng

s

D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T 

A
N

D
 R

EG
EN

ER
A

TI
O

N
 S

A
VI

N
G

S

R
ef

20
16

/1
7 

  
£0

00
20

17
/1

8 
  

£0
00

20
18

/1
9 

  
£0

00
R

is
k 

An
al

ys
is

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

ili
ty

R
is

k 
An

al
ys

is
 

R
ep

ut
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

Ty
pe

 o
f 

Sa
vi

ng
 

(s
ee

 k
ey

)
E&

R
10

Se
rv

ic
e/

Se
ct

io
n

Pa
rk

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

B
ac

k 
of

fic
e 

re
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n
80

Lo
w

Lo
w

SS
1

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t b

ac
k 

of
fic

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 s
ta

ff
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
Im

pr
ov

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
by

 re
du

ci
ng

 re
ve

nu
e 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ot
he

r 
N

on
e

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
N

on
e

E&
R

21
Se

rv
ic

e/
Se

ct
io

n
W

as
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
H

R
R

C
 S

ite
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 p
ro

cu
re

d 
to

 e
xt

er
na

l p
ro

vi
de

r. 
C

on
tra

ct
ua

l s
av

in
gs

.
30

Lo
w

Lo
w

SP
1

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

N
on

e 
- C

on
tin

ua
tio

n 
of

 e
xt

er
na

lis
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 - 
cu

rr
en

t p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t i
n 

pr
og

re
ss

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

TU
P

E
 a

nd
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

tra
ns

fe
r s

ta
tio

n.
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
N

on
e

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

N
on

e
Eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

N
on

e
E&

R
33

a
Se

rv
ic

e/
Se

ct
io

n
D

&
B

C
 V

ar
io

us
 B

ud
ge

ts
 - 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 in

co
m

e 
fr

om
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
co

m
e 

ac
ro

ss
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 b
ud

ge
ts

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t o
f c

om
m

er
ci

al
 s

al
es

 m
an

ag
er

 fr
om

 1
5/

16
. T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 e
ve

nt
s 

in
 p

ar
ks

 / 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 w

as
te

 / 
le

is
ur

e/
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
nt

ro
l a

nd
 o

th
er

 in
co

m
e 

st
re

am
s 

 to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

75
H

ig
h

Lo
w

SI
1/

SI
2

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

W
ill 

w
or

k 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 B

us
in

es
s 

m
an

ag
er

s 
in

 E
an

dR
 a

nd
 a

cr
os

s 
C

ou
nc

il 

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

2 
ye

ar
  F

ix
ed

 te
rm

 c
on

tra
ct

 d
ue

 to
 c

om
m

en
ce

 e
ar

ly
 2

01
5 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

bu
dg

et
s 

al
on

gs
id

e 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

M
an

ag
er

.

B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 

C
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
P

la
n 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

W
ill 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 in
co

m
e 

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
st

af
f a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
Eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

N
on

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 
E&

R
39

Se
rv

ic
e/

Se
ct

io
n

Tr
af

fic
 &

 H
ig

hw
ay

s
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
P

re
-a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
in

co
m

e.
 T

hi
s 

is
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 a

ny
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

pr
e-

ap
p 

sa
vi

ng
s 

pr
op

os
al

.
50

M
ed

M
ed

SI
2

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

C
ha

rg
in

g 
fo

r p
re

-a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
pu

tte
d 

fro
m

 th
e 

T&
H

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
pr

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e.
St

af
fin

g 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
D

el
iv

er
ed

 w
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

in
co

m
e

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

W
ill 

re
qu

ire
 c

lo
se

 li
ai

so
n 

w
ith

 D
C

/B
C

 te
am

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
N

on
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1 12

Page 16



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T 

A
N

D
 R

EG
EN

ER
A

TI
O

N
 S

A
VI

N
G

S

R
ef

20
16

/1
7 

  
£0

00
20

17
/1

8 
  

£0
00

20
18

/1
9 

  
£0

00
R

is
k 

An
al

ys
is

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

ili
ty

R
is

k 
An

al
ys

is
 

R
ep

ut
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

Ty
pe

 o
f 

Sa
vi

ng
 

(s
ee

 k
ey

)
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 S
av

in
g

D
&

B
C

1
Se

rv
ic

e/
Se

ct
io

n
B

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tr
ol

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Fa
st

 tr
ac

k 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
55

Lo
w

Lo
w

SI
2

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

N
ew

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 to

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

se
cu

re
ly

  e
m

be
dd

ed
 

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

N
on

e.
 S

uf
fic

ie
nt

 s
ta

ff 
w

ill 
ha

ve
 to

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

 to
 s

er
vi

ce
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

t. 
Fa

ilu
re

 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 p
ro

pe
rly

 a
nd

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ill 

no
t b

e 
us

ed
 th

er
eb

y 
el

im
in

at
in

g 
th

e 
in

co
m

e 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n.

  
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
In

cr
ea

se
d 

in
co

m
e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

N
on

e

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
N

on
e 

TO
M

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 T

O
M

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
D

&
B

C
2

Se
rv

ic
e/

Se
ct

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

on
tr

ol
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
G

ro
w

th
  i

n 
P

P
A

 a
nd

 P
re

-a
pp

 in
co

m
e 

50
M

ed
Lo

w
SI

2
Se

rv
ic

e 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

n
R

es
po

ns
iv

en
es

s 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
qu

es
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t c

ha
ng

e.
 

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

A
s 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e/

in
co

m
e 

im
pr

ov
es

 e
xt

ra
 s

ta
ffi

ng
 w

ill 
be

 n
ee

de
d 

 a
nd

 fu
nd

ed
 

fro
m

 a
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 o
f t

ha
t e

xt
ra

 in
co

m
e.

  
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
In

cr
ea

se
d 

in
co

m
e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

Fu
tu

re
 M

er
to

n 
co

ul
d 

al
so

 n
ee

d 
to

 a
dj

us
t s

ta
ffi

ng
 a

cc
or

di
ng

ly

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
no

ne
TO

M
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
In

 li
ne

 w
ith

 T
O

M
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

D
&

B
C

3
Se

rv
ic

e/
Se

ct
io

n
B

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tr
ol

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

C
om

m
er

ci
al

is
at

io
n 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
nt

ro
l

50
H

ig
h

Lo
w

SI
2

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

Th
is

 h
as

 s
o 

fa
r p

ro
ve

n 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
m

ai
nl

y 
du

e 
to

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t i

ss
ue

s
St

af
fin

g 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
W

ill 
ne

ed
 a

n 
in

ve
st

 to
 s

av
e 

w
ith

 a
ny

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ta
ff 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
co

m
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
In

cr
ea

se
d 

in
co

m
e

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

N
on

e 
. E

xp
an

de
d 

te
am

 c
ou

ld
 b

et
te

r s
up

po
rt 

ot
he

r i
nt

er
na

l u
se

rs

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
N

on
e

TO
M

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

In
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 T

O
M

 fo
r B

C

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1 13

Page 17



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T 

A
N

D
 R

EG
EN

ER
A

TI
O

N
 S

A
VI

N
G

S

R
ef

20
16

/1
7 

  
£0

00
20

17
/1

8 
  

£0
00

20
18

/1
9 

  
£0

00
R

is
k 

An
al

ys
is

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

ili
ty

R
is

k 
An

al
ys

is
 

R
ep

ut
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

Ty
pe

 o
f 

Sa
vi

ng
 

(s
ee

 k
ey

)
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 S
av

in
g

D
&

B
C

5
Se

rv
ic

e/
Se

ct
io

n
B

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tr
ol

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

E
lim

in
at

e 
th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

D
ut

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
 (b

ot
h 

fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 a

nd
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 p
ho

ne
 

lin
e)

 
35

Lo
w

H
ig

h
SS

2

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

C
al

le
rs

 w
ill 

st
ill 

try
 to

 c
on

ta
ct

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 b
y 

ot
he

r m
ea

ns
  i

n 
an

y 
ev

en
t, 

so
 th

er
e 

w
ill 

ha
ve

 to
 b

e 
a 

cl
ea

r u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

d 
 s

up
po

rte
d 

m
es

sa
ge

 th
at

 
su

ch
 c

al
ls

 w
ill 

no
t b

e 
de

al
t w

ith
. W

eb
 s

ite
 s

el
f s

er
vi

ce
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

ill 
be

 
re

qu
ire

d 
St

af
fin

g 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
R

ed
uc

e 
by

 1
FT

E
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
no

ne

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

Le
ss

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

fo
r p

re
 a

pp
 e

nq
ui

rie
s 

(u
nl

es
s 

ch
ar

ge
d)

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
re

du
ce

d 
as

si
st

an
ce

 fo
r a

ll 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

TO
M

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

R
ed

uc
ed

 c
us

to
m

er
 c

ar
e,

 c
on

tra
ry

 to
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l a
im

s 
of

 T
O

M
D

&
B

C
6

Se
rv

ic
e/

Se
ct

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

on
tr

ol
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
S

to
p 

se
nd

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

le
tte

rs
 o

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 e

re
ct

 s
ite

 n
ot

ic
es

 o
nl

y 
10

Lo
w

M
ed

SN
S2

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

S
ite

 n
ot

ic
es

 w
ill 

be
 m

an
da

to
ry

 s
o 

fa
ils

af
e 

sy
st

em
 to

 b
e 

de
vi

se
d 

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

no
ne

B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

N
on

e

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

no
ne

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
Th

os
e 

w
ith

ou
t w

eb
 s

ite
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 w

ill 
fin

d 
it 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 s

ea
rc

h 
fo

r 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
de

ta
ils

TO
M

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

N
on

e
EN

V0
6

Se
rv

ic
e/

Se
ct

io
n

Pa
rk

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 tr
an

sp
or

t r
el

at
ed

 b
ud

ge
ts

46
Lo

w
Lo

w
SN

S1

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

M
ay

 re
su

lt 
in

 s
lig

ht
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 s
om

e 
ar

ea
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 

in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f c

iv
il 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

so
m

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 s
ta

ff 
tra

ve
l a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
on

 s
ite

 a
s 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

ly
 a

s 
po

ss
ib

le
.

B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

N
on

e

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

N
on

e

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
N

on
e

TO
M

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 T

O
M

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 tr
av

el

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1 14

Page 18



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T 

A
N

D
 R

EG
EN

ER
A

TI
O

N
 S

A
VI

N
G

S

R
ef

20
16

/1
7 

  
£0

00
20

17
/1

8 
  

£0
00

20
18

/1
9 

  
£0

00
R

is
k 

An
al

ys
is

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

ili
ty

R
is

k 
An

al
ys

is
 

R
ep

ut
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

Ty
pe

 o
f 

Sa
vi

ng
 

(s
ee

 k
ey

)
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 S
av

in
g

EN
V1

8
Se

rv
ic

e/
Se

ct
io

n
G

re
en

sp
ac

es
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
In

cr
ea

se
d 

in
co

m
e 

fro
m

 e
ve

nt
s 

in
 p

ar
ks

10
0

M
ed

M
ed

SI
2

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

co
m

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

br
oa

de
r r

an
ge

 o
f c

om
m

er
ci

al
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

- 
ov

er
 a

nd
 a

bo
ve

 th
os

e 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 a
gr

ee
d.

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

S
om

e 
un

qu
an

tif
ie

d 
ex

tra
 re

so
ur

ce
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d,
 li

nk
ed

 to
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 c

as
e 

fo
r e

ac
h 

in
iti

at
iv

e.
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
In

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

TO
M

 o
ut

co
m

es

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

N
on

e

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
N

on
e

TO
M

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
TO

M
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

of
 tr

av
el

 
EN

V2
0

Se
rv

ic
e/

Se
ct

io
n

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
on

tr
ol

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

co
m

e 
fro

m
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
nt

ro
l s

er
vi

ce
s.

35
M

ed
Lo

w
SI

2

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

co
m

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

br
oa

de
r r

an
ge

 o
f c

om
m

er
ci

al
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

- 
ov

er
 a

nd
 a

bo
ve

 th
os

e 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 a
gr

ee
d.

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

N
on

e
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
In

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

TO
M

 o
ut

co
m

es

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

N
on

e

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
N

on
e

TO
M

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
TO

M
 o

ut
co

m
es

 h
ow

ev
er

 c
ar

e 
w

ill 
be

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
du

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
co

m
e 

co
un

tin
g 

.
D

&
B

C
7

Se
rv

ic
e/

Se
ct

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

on
tr

ol
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
S

ha
re

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

lla
bo

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 K

in
gs

to
n/

S
ut

to
n

50
Lo

w
Lo

w
SI

2
Se

rv
ic

e 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

n
C

om
bi

ne
d 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

sh
ou

ld
 re

su
lt 

in
 fu

rth
er

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

in
co

m
e 

st
re

am
s 

fro
m

 P
P

A
's

 a
nd

 P
re

-a
pp

s 
an

d 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 w
or

ki
ng

 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
St

af
fin

g 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
A

dd
iti

on
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
em

an
d 

m
ay

 n
ee

d 
m

or
e 

st
af

f. 
E

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

su
lt 

in
 

le
ss

 s
ta

ff.
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
In

cr
ea

se
d 

in
co

m
e,

 P
P

A
's

 a
nd

 p
re

 a
pp

s

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

N
on

e

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
N

on
e

TO
M

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t p

ro
gr

es
s 

on
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 m
ai

n 
TO

M
 s

tra
te

gi
es

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1 15

Page 19



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T 

A
N

D
 R

EG
EN

ER
A

TI
O

N
 S

A
VI

N
G

S

R
ef

20
16

/1
7 

  
£0

00
20

17
/1

8 
  

£0
00

20
18

/1
9 

  
£0

00
R

is
k 

An
al

ys
is

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

ili
ty

R
is

k 
An

al
ys

is
 

R
ep

ut
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

Ty
pe

 o
f 

Sa
vi

ng
 

(s
ee

 k
ey

)
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 S
av

in
g

D
&

B
C

8
Se

rv
ic

e/
Se

ct
io

n
B

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tr
ol

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

27
4

H
ig

h
M

ed
SI

1;
 S

I2
; 

SS
1;

 
SS

2;
SN

S
1;

 S
N

S2
Se

rv
ic

e 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

n
To

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

To
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

sh
ar

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
To

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ot

he
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

N
on

e.

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
N

on
e.

TO
M

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
TO

M
.

TO
TA

L
23

5
38

1
32

4
C

um
ul

at
iv

e 
To

ta
l

23
5

61
6

94
0

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1 16

Page 20



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T 

A
N

D
 R

EG
EN

ER
A

TI
O

N
 S

A
VI

N
G

S

R
ef

20
16

/1
7 

  
£0

00
20

17
/1

8 
  

£0
00

20
18

/1
9 

  
£0

00
R

is
k 

An
al

ys
is

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

ili
ty

R
is

k 
An

al
ys

is
 

R
ep

ut
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

Ty
pe

 o
f 

Sa
vi

ng
 

(s
ee

 k
ey

)
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 S
av

in
g

Sw
ap

 S
av

in
g

R
ef

20
16

/1
7 

  
£0

00
20

17
/1

8 
  

£0
00

20
18

/1
9 

  
£0

00
R

is
k 

An
al

ys
is

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

ili
ty

R
is

k 
An

al
ys

is
 

R
ep

ut
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

Ty
pe

 o
f 

Sa
vi

ng
 

(s
ee

 k
ey

)
E&

R
8

Se
rv

ic
e/

Se
ct

io
n

Pa
rk

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 - 
O

R
IG

IN
AL

LY
 A

 G
R

O
W

TH
 IT

EM
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
In

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 re

si
de

nt
s 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 tr

af
fic

 c
on

ge
st

io
n,

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t o
f 

m
ov

in
g 

tra
ffi

c 
co

nt
ra

ve
nt

io
ns

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 A
N

P
R

.
50

0
M

ed
H

ig
h

SI
2

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f t
ra

ffi
c 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

by
 m

ot
or

is
ts

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

E
xp

an
si

on
 o

f F
TE

s 
in

 P
C

N
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
an

d 
D

eb
t R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
te

am
s 

by
 u

p 
to

 
10

0%
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 fi
ne

s 
fro

m
 P

C
N

s 
 a

nd
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

nd
 a

 n
ee

d 
fo

r m
or

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ot
he

r 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s:
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

w
ill 

re
qu

ire
 F

ac
ilit

ie
s 

in
pu

t 
al

on
g 

w
ith

 s
up

po
rt 

fro
m

 B
us

in
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
nd

 IT
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
N

on
e

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

Sa
vi

ng

R
ef

20
16

/1
7 

  
£0

00
20

17
/1

8 
  

£0
00

20
18

/1
9 

  
£0

00
R

is
k 

An
al

ys
is

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

ili
ty

R
is

k 
An

al
ys

is
 

R
ep

ut
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

Ty
pe

 o
f 

Sa
vi

ng
 

(s
ee

 k
ey

)
AL

T1
Se

rv
ic

e/
Se

ct
io

n
Pa

rk
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
/R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Th
e 

fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f t
he

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

ba
se

d 
ch

ar
gi

ng
 p

ol
ic

y 
by

 w
ay

 o
f 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ch

ar
ge

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 to
 re

si
de

nt
/b

us
in

es
s 

pe
rm

its
 a

s 
a 

m
ea

ns
 o

f 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 ta

ck
le

 th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

nd
 o

ng
oi

ng
 is

su
e 

of
 p

oo
r a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 in
 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

44
0

M
ed

M
ed

SI
2

Se
rv

ic
e 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n

W
ill 

ha
ve

 n
o 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
al

th
ou

gh
 th

e 
pe

rm
it 

is
su

in
g 

sy
st

em
 w

ill 
ne

ed
 

to
 b

e 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

in
g 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
pr

ic
e/

va
rie

ty
 o

f p
er

m
its

.  

St
af

fin
g 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

N
on

e
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
W

ill 
un

de
rp

in
 th

e 
ke

y 
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

 d
ei

sg
ne

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 c

le
an

er
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 a
nd

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 m

ot
or

is
t 

be
ha

vi
ou

r. 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ot
he

r 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
W

ill 
re

qu
ire

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
cl

os
e 

lia
is

on
 b

et
w

ee
n 

P
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 E
H

 (P
) t

ea
m

 to
 

m
on

ito
r t

he
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

is
 p

ro
po

sa
l a

s 
a 

m
ea

ns
 o

f t
ac

kl
in

g 
po

or
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

.
Eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

N
on

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 a
s 

ve
hi

cl
e 

em
is

si
on

s 
ha

s 
no

 k
no

w
n 

co
rr

el
at

io
n 

w
ith

 
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

gr
ou

ps
 

TO
M

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

B
ot

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
 T

O
M

S
 (P

ar
ki

ng
 &

 R
S

P
) a

re
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 ta

kl
in

g 
tra

ffi
c 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ai
r q

ua
lit

y.
 T

he
 p

ro
ps

al
 is

 e
nt

ire
ly

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 

th
es

e 
ai

m
s.

  
0

0
94

0

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1 17

Page 21



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T 

A
N

D
 R

EG
EN

ER
A

TI
O

N
 S

A
VI

N
G

S

R
ef

20
16

/1
7 

  
£0

00
20

17
/1

8 
  

£0
00

20
18

/1
9 

  
£0

00
R

is
k 

An
al

ys
is

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

ili
ty

R
is

k 
An

al
ys

is
 

R
ep

ut
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

Ty
pe

 o
f 

Sa
vi

ng
 

(s
ee

 k
ey

)
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 S
av

in
g

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ty
pe

Pa
ne

l
SI

1
In

co
m

e 
- i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 c

ur
re

nt
 le

ve
l o

f c
ha

rg
es

 
C

&
YP

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e
SI

2
In

co
m

e 
- i

nc
re

as
e 

ar
is

in
g 

fro
m

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e/
ne

w
 s

er
vi

ce
 

C
C

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

ap
ac

ity
SS

2
S

ta
ffi

ng
: r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 c

os
ts

 d
ue

 to
 d

el
et

io
n/

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

H
C

&
O

P
H

ea
lth

ie
r C

om
m

un
iti

es
 &

 O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e
SN

S1
N

on
 - 

S
ta

ffi
ng

: r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 c
os

ts
 d

ue
 to

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
SC

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

SN
S2

N
on

 - 
S

ta
ffi

ng
: r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 c

os
ts

 d
ue

 to
 d

el
et

io
n/

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

SP
1

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t /
 T

hi
rd

 P
ar

ty
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 - 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

SP
2 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t /
 T

hi
rd

 P
ar

ty
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 - 
de

le
tio

n/
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
SG

1
G

ra
nt

s:
 E

xi
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
ne

w
 g

ra
nt

SG
2

G
ra

nt
s:

 Im
pr

ov
ed

 E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

un
rin

gf
en

ce
d 

gr
an

t
SP

R
O

P
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 P

ro
pe

rty
 re

la
te

d 
co

st
s

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1 18

Page 22



DRAFT MTFS 2018-22: 
2018/19 

£000
2019/20 

£000
2020/21 

£000
2021/22 

£000
Departmental Base Budget 2017/18 151,131 151,131 151,131 151,131
Inflation (Pay, Prices) 3,816 7,632 10,669 13,706
Autoenrolment/Nat. ins changes 315 315 315 315
FYE – Previous Years Savings (7,018) (8,737) (8,737) (8,737)
FYE – Previous Years Growth 974 (1,532) (1,032) (1,032)
Amendments to previously agreed savings 0 0 0 0
Change in Net Appropriations to/(from) Reserves (1,257) (993) (851) (984)
Taxi card/Concessionary Fares 450 900 1,350 1,800
Change in depreciation/Impairment (Contra Other 
Corporate items)

0 0 0 0

Growth 0 0 0 0
Other 1,360 1,436 3,323 3,604
Re-Priced Departmental Budget 149,770 150,151 156,167 159,802
Treasury/Capital financing 7,885 12,135 13,510 12,631
Pensions 3,469 3,552 3,635 3,718
Other Corporate items (18,528) (18,866) (18,652) (18,661)
Levies 614 614 614 614
Sub-total: Corporate provisions (6,560) (2,565) (893) (1,698)

Sub-total: Repriced Departmental Budget + 
Corporate Provisions

143,211 147,587 155,274 158,104

Savings/Income Proposals 2018/19 0 (300) (300) (300)

Sub-total 143,211 147,287 154,974 157,804

Appropriation to/from departmental reserves 173 (92) (234) (100)

Appropriation to/from Balancing the Budget Reserve (1,977) (3,473) 0 0

BUDGET REQUIREMENT 141,406 143,722 154,740 157,704

Funded by:
Revenue Support Grant (10,071) (5,076) 0 0
Business Rates (inc. Section 31 grant) (36,304) (37,176) (37,725) (38,285)
Adult Social Care Improved BCF - Budget 2017 (2,115) (1,054) 0 0
PFI Grant (4,797) (4,797) (4,797) (4,797)
New Homes Bonus (3,110) (2,984) (2,000) (1,500)
Council Tax inc. WPCC (85,382) (87,420) (89,477) (91,552)
Collection Fund – (Surplus)/Deficit 372 0 0 0
TOTAL FUNDING (141,406) (138,507) (133,999) (136,134)

GAP including Use of Reserves (Cumulative) 0 5,215 20,742 21,571

APPENDIX 2

19
Page 23



Approved 
2018/19

Approved 
2019/20

Approved 
2020/21

Indicative 
2021/22

Indicative 
2022/23

Indicative 
2023/24

Indicative 
2024/25

Indicative 
2025/26

Indicative 
2026/27

Capital 58,162 26,380 8,432 8,944 7,457 9,852 7,869 13,855 6,902
Corporate Services 16,798 10,626 2,135 3,962 2,510 4,800 2,862 4,560 1,920
Business Improvement 1,362 0 0 2,042 100 3,075 682 2,550 0
Customer Contact Programme 0 0 0 2,000 0 900 0 2,000 0
IT Systems Projects 1,012 0 0 42 100 75 682 550 0
Social Care IT System 350 0 0 0 0 2,100 0 0 0
Facilities Management Total 1,250 1,250 950 950 950 950 950 950 950
Works to other buildings 300 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650
Civic Centre 300 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Invest to Save schemes 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300
Water Safety Works 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Asbestos Safety Works 250 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Infrastructure & Transactions 1,085 630 1,060 970 760 775 630 1,060 970
Planned Replacement Programme 1,085 630 1,060 970 760 775 630 1,060 970
Resources 0 0 125 0 700 0 0 0 0
Financial System 0 0 0 0 700 0 0 0 0
ePayments System 0 0 125 0 0 0 0 0 0
Corporate Items 13,101 8,746 0 0 0 0 600 0 0
Acquisitions Budget 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Bidding Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Multi Functioning Device (MFD) 0 600 0 0 0 0 600 0 0
Housing Company 8,101 8,146 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CPOs Morden
Community and Housing 629 480 630 280 280 280 280 630 280
Housing 629 280 280 280 280 280 280 280 280
Disabled Facilities Grant 629 280 280 280 280 280 280 280 280
Libraries 0 200 350 0 0 0 0 350 0
Library Enhancement Works 0 200 0 0 0 0 0 350 0
Major Library Projects 0 0 350 0 0 0 0 0 0
Children Schools & Families 16,905 7,536 650 650 650 755 650 650 650
Primary Schools 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650
Schs Cap Maint & Accessibility 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650
Secondary School 8,847 5,781 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Harris Academy Morden 2,194 800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Harris Academy Merton 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
St Mark's Academy 1,624 3,681 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Harris Academy Wimbledon 4,930 1,300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SEN 7,304 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Perseid 650 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Secondary School Autism Unit 1,330 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Unlocated SEN 5,324 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CSF Schemes 104 105 0 0 0 105 0 0 0
Admissions IT System 0 105 0 0 0 105 0 0 0
Capital Loans to schools 104 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Environment and Regeneration 23,830 7,738 5,017 4,052 4,017 4,017 4,077 8,015 4,052
Public Protection and Developm 0 60 0 35 0 0 60 0 35
Parking Improvements 0 60 0 0 0 0 60 0 0
Public Protection and Developm 0 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 35
Street Scene & Waste 5,790 340 340 340 340 340 340 4,338 340
Fleet Vehicles 400 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300
Alley Gating Scheme 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40
Smart Bin Leases - Street Scen 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Waste SLWP 5,344 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,998 0
Sustainable Communities 18,041 7,338 4,677 3,677 3,677 3,677 3,677 3,677 3,677
Street Trees 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60
Highways & Footways 3,581 3,067 3,067 3,067 3,067 3,067 3,067 3,067 3,067
Unallocated Tfl 1,865 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mitcham Area Regeneration 2,032 301 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Morden Area Regeneration 3,000 3,000 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
Morden Leisure Centre 4,501 169 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sports Facilities 1,550 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250
Parks 1,452 491 300 300 300 300 300 300 300

Capital Programme as at August 2017 APPENDIX 3

20
Page 24



Proposed 
2018/19

Proposed 
2019/20

Proposed 
2020/21

Proposed 
2021/22

Proposed 
Indicative 
2022/23

Proposed 
Indicative 
2023/24

Proposed 
Indicative 
2024/25

Proposed 
Indicative 
2025/26

Proposed 
Indicative 
2026/27

Capital 59,212 26,630 8,432 8,844 7,697 8,952 7,869 12,855 7,902
Corporate Services 17,848 10,876 2,135 3,862 2,650 3,900 2,862 3,560 2,920
Business Improvement 2,412 250 0 1,942 100 2,175 682 1,550 1,000
Customer Contact Programme 1,050 250 0 1,900 0 0 0 1,000 1,000
IT Systems Projects 1,012 0 0 42 100 75 682 550 0
Social Care IT System 350 0 0 0 0 2,100 0 0 0
Facilities Management Total 1,250 1,250 950 950 950 950 950 950 950
Works to other buildings 300 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650
Civic Centre 300 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Invest to Save schemes 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300
Water Safety Works 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Asbestos Safety Works 250 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Infrastructure & Transactions 1,085 630 1,060 970 900 775 630 1,060 970
Planned Replacement Programme 1,085 630 1,060 970 900 775 630 1,060 970
Resources 0 0 125 0 700 0 0 0 0
Financial System 0 0 0 0 700 0 0 0 0
ePayments System 0 0 125 0 0 0 0 0 0
Corporate Items 13,101 8,746 0 0 0 0 600 0 0
Acquisitions Budget 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Bidding Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Multi Functioning Device (MFD) 0 600 0 0 0 0 600 0 0
Housing Company 8,101 8,146 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CPOs Morden
Community and Housing 629 480 630 280 380 280 280 630 280
Housing 629 280 280 280 280 280 280 280 280
Disabled Facilities Grant 629 280 280 280 280 280 280 280 280
Libraries 0 200 350 0 100 0 0 350 0
Library Enhancement Works 0 200 0 0 0 0 0 350 0
Major Library Projects 0 0 350 0 0 0 0 0 0
Children Schools & Families 16,905 7,536 650 650 650 755 650 650 650
Primary Schools 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650
Schs Cap Maint & Accessibility 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650
Secondary School 8,847 5,781 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Harris Academy Morden 2,194 800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Harris Academy Merton 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
St Mark's Academy 1,624 3,681 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Harris Academy Wimbledon 4,930 1,300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SEN 7,304 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Perseid 650 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Secondary School Autism Unit 1,330 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Unlocated SEN 5,324 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CSF Schemes 104 105 0 0 0 105 0 0 0
Admissions IT System 0 105 0 0 0 105 0 0 0
Capital Loans to schools 104 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Environment and Regeneration 23,830 7,738 5,017 4,052 4,017 4,017 4,077 8,015 4,052
Public Protection and Developm 0 60 0 35 0 0 60 0 35
Parking Improvements 0 60 0 0 0 0 60 0 0
Public Protection and Developm 0 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 35
Street Scene & Waste 5,790 340 340 340 340 340 340 4,338 340
Fleet Vehicles 400 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300
Alley Gating Scheme 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40 40
Smart Bin Leases - Street Scen 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Waste SLWP 5,344 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,998 0
Sustainable Communities 18,041 7,338 4,677 3,677 3,677 3,677 3,677 3,677 3,677
Street Trees 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60
Highways & Footways 3,581 3,067 3,067 3,067 3,067 3,067 3,067 3,067 3,067
Unallocated Tfl 1,865 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mitcham Area Regeneration 2,032 301 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Morden Area Regeneration 3,000 3,000 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
Morden Leisure Centre 4,501 169 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sports Facilities 1,550 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250
Parks 1,452 491 300 300 300 300 300 300 300

Proposed Capital Programme as at August 2017 with BidsAPPENDIX 3

21
Page 25



2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Capital 1,050 250 0 (100) 240 (900) 0 (1,000) 1,000
Corporate Services 1,050 250 0 (100) 140 (900) 0 (1,000) 1,000
Business Improvement 1,050 250 0 (100) 0 (900) 0 (1,000) 1,000
Customer Contact Programme 1,050 250 0 (100) 0 (900) 0 (1,000) 1,000
IT Systems Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Social Care IT System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Facilities Management Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Works to other buildings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Civic Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Invest to Save schemes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Water Safety Works 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Asbestos Safety Works 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Infrastructure & Transactions 0 0 0 0 140 0 0 0 0
Planned Replacement Programme 0 0 0 0 140 0 0 0 0
Resources 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Financial System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ePayments System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Corporate Items 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Acquisitions Budget 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Bidding Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Multi Functioning Device (MFD) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Housing Company 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CPOs Morden
Community and Housing 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 0
Housing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disabled Facilities Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Libraries 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 0
Library Enhancement Works 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Major Library Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Children Schools & Families 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Primary Schools 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Schs Cap Maint & Accessibility 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Secondary School 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Harris Academy Morden 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Harris Academy Merton 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
St Mark's Academy 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Harris Academy Wimbledon 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SEN 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Perseid 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Secondary School Autism Unit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Unlocated SEN 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CSF Schemes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Admissions IT System 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Loans to schools 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Environment and Regeneration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Public Protection and Developm 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Public Protection and Developm 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Street Scene & Waste 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fleet Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Alley Gating Scheme 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Smart Bin Leases - Street Scen 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Waste SLWP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sustainable Communities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Street Trees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highways & Footways 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Unallocated Tfl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mitcham Area Regeneration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Morden Area Regeneration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Morden Leisure Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sports Facilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Variance between Proposed and Approved ProgrammeAPPENDIX 3

22
Page 26



 

Eq
ua

lit
y 

A
na

ly
si

s 
– 

EN
R

10
 

– 
Le

is
ur

e 
&

 C
ul

tu
re

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t T
ea

m
 

 
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r c
ar

ry
in

g 
ou

t E
qu

al
ity

 Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 th
e 

in
tra

ne
t. 

 
W

ha
t a

re
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

be
in

g 
as

se
ss

ed
? 

To
 m

ak
e 

Le
is

ur
e 

C
en

tre
 C

on
tra

ct
 S

av
in

gs
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 th
e 

op
en

in
g 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 M

or
de

n 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

en
tre

 (M
LC

) a
nd

 th
e 

de
m

is
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
M

or
de

n 
Pa

rk
 P

oo
ls

 (M
PP

) b
y 

w
ay

 o
f a

 C
ha

ng
e 

to
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
Le

is
ur

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

on
tra

ct
 w

ith
 G

re
en

w
ic

h 
Le

is
ur

e 
Li

m
ite

d 
(G

LL
) 

W
hi

ch
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t/D
iv

is
io

n 
ha

s 
th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r t

hi
s?

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t &
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

– 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
pa

ce
 D

iv
is

io
n 

St
ag

e 
1:

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

N
am

e 
an

d 
jo

b 
tit

le
 o

f l
ea

d 
of

fic
er

 
C

hr
is

tin
e 

Pa
rs

lo
e,

 L
ei

su
re

 &
 C

ul
tu

re
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

er
 

1.
  W

ha
t a

re
 th

e 
ai

m
s,

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

an
d 

de
si

re
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 o
f y

ou
r 

pr
op

os
al

? 
(A

ls
o 

ex
pl

ai
n 

pr
op

os
al

s 
e.

g.
 re

du
ct

io
n/

re
m

ov
al

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
, 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 p

os
ts

, c
ha

ng
in

g 
cr

ite
ria

 
et

c)
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 T

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
le

is
ur

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

tra
ct

 s
av

in
gs

 
Ai

m
s:

 T
o 

op
en

 a
 n

ew
 M

LC
, c

lo
se

 &
 d

em
ol

iti
on

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

M
PP

 
Pr

op
os

al
s:

  
1)

 
Th

e 
ne

w
 M

or
de

n 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

en
tre

 (M
LC

) i
s 

du
e 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 th

e 
Au

tu
m

n 
of

 2
01

8 
an

d 
th

is
 w

ill 
re

su
lt 

in
 a

 D
ee

d 
of

 V
ar

ia
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
G

re
en

w
ic

h 
Le

is
ur

e 
Li

m
ite

d 
(G

LL
) t

o 
di

sc
on

tin
ue

 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
M

or
de

n 
Pa

rk
 P

oo
ls

 (M
PP

) a
nd

 m
ov

e 
to

 o
pe

ra
te

 th
e 

ne
w

 M
LC

. I
n 

do
in

g 
th

is
 

w
e 

ex
pe

ct
 to

 b
e 

m
ak

in
g 

sa
vi

ng
s 

on
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 s

um
. 

2.
  H

ow
 d

oe
s 

th
is

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 c
or

po
ra

te
 p

rio
rit

ie
s?

 
D

el
iv

er
s 

sa
vi

ng
s 

an
d 

tra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 

3.
  W

ho
 w

ill 
be

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
is

 
pr

op
os

al
? 

Fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 
th

e 
ex

te
rn

al
/in

te
rn

al
 c

us
to

m
er

s,
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, p
ar

tn
er

s,
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

, t
he

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 e

tc
. 

C
us

to
m

er
s,

 c
om

m
un

ity
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

, s
ch

oo
ls

, o
th

er
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
, s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

et
c.

 a
s 

w
e 

op
en

 a
 n

ew
 le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

 a
nd

 c
lo

se
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
M

PP
.  

Th
e 

m
ai

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 p

ric
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

, m
em

be
rs

hi
p,

 e
tc

. w
ill 

no
t c

ha
ng

e,
 ra

th
er

 a
 n

ew
 s

ui
te

 o
f l

ei
su

re
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

w
ill 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
a 

sa
vi

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
le

is
ur

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

tra
ct

. 

4.
 Is

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
sh

ar
ed

 w
ith

 
an

ot
he

r d
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

au
th

or
ity

 o
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n?

  I
f s

o:
  W

ho
 a

re
 th

e 
pa

rtn
er

s 
an

d 
w

ho
 h

as
 o

ve
ra

ll 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y?

 

N
o 

 

 
 

1 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

23

Page 27



St
ag

e2
: C

ol
le

ct
in

g 
ev

id
en

ce
/d

at
a 

 6.
 W

ha
t e

vi
de

nc
e 

ha
ve

 y
ou

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t?
 L

is
t t

he
 d

at
a,

 re
su

lts
 o

f c
on

su
lta

tio
n,

 re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f 
ev

id
en

ce
 re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
(e

qu
al

ity
 g

ro
up

s)
.  

W
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ga
ps

 in
 d

at
a 

yo
u 

m
ay

 
ha

ve
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
is

 b
y 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
it 

in
 th

e 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

. 

Ty
pe

 o
f e

vi
de

nc
e 

Th
e 

ra
ng

e 
an

d 
ty

pe
 o

f f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
ne

w
 M

LC
 h

as
 a

lre
ad

y 
be

en
 fu

lly
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

up
on

 w
ith

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 th

ro
ug

h 
fo

rm
al

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
al

 c
on

su
lta

tio
ns

, p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 o
cc

ur
 a

s 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

de
si

gn
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill 
in

cl
ud

e 
lo

ca
l 

in
te

re
st

 g
ro

up
s,

 d
is

ab
ilit

y 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
, s

ch
oo

ls
, t

ho
se

 fr
om

 e
th

ni
c 

m
in

or
ity

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 fa
ith

 g
ro

up
s.

 
 

St
ag

e 
3:

 A
ss

es
si

ng
 im

pa
ct

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
si

s 
 7.
 

Fr
om

 th
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

, w
ha

t a
re

as
 o

f c
on

ce
rn

 h
av

e 
yo

u 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
on

e 
or

 
m

or
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

(e
qu

al
ity

 g
ro

up
s)

? 
 

Eq
ua

lit
y 

gr
ou

p 
 

Po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 
R

ea
so

n 

Ye
s 

N
o 

Ye
s 

N
o 

A
ge

 
√ 

 
 

√ 
Th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
m

ix
 fo

r s
po

rts
 &

 le
is

ur
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

w
ill 

be
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

fo
r a

ll.
  

Th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 w
ill 

re
m

ai
n 

as
 is

 in
 m

ak
in

g 
th

is
 s

av
in

g.
 

  

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

√ 
 

 
√ 

G
en

de
r R

ea
ss

ig
nm

en
t 

√ 
 

 
√ 

M
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 C
iv

il 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
√ 

 
 

√ 

Pr
eg

na
nc

y 
an

d 
M

at
er

ni
ty

 
√ 

 
 

√ 

R
ac

e 
√ 

 
 

√ 
R

el
ig

io
n/

 b
el

ie
f 

√ 
 

 
√ 

Se
x 

√ 
 

 
√ 

Se
xu

al
 o

rie
nt

at
io

n 
√ 

 
 

√ 

So
ci

o-
ec

on
om

ic
 s

ta
tu

s 
√ 

 
 

√ 

 
8.

 H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

pl
an

 to
 m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ab
ov

e?
 A

ls
o 

de
sc

rib
e 

ho
w

 y
ou

 w
ill 

pr
om

ot
e 

eq
ua

lit
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

po
lic

y,
 s

tra
te

gy
, p

ro
ce

du
re

, f
un

ct
io

n 
or

 s
er

vi
ce

? 
 

 
 

2 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

24

Page 28



N
o 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ab
ov

e.
 

 
St

ag
e4

: D
ec

is
io

n 
 

 
9.

 D
ec

is
io

n 
– 

P
le

as
e 

in
di

ca
te

 w
hi

ch
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 b
es

t d
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
e 

EI
A

 (
 ti

ck
 o

ne
 b

ox
 o

nl
y)

 
O

ut
co

m
e 

1 
- √

 
O

ut
co

m
e 

2 
-  

 
O

ut
co

m
e 

3 
O

ut
co

m
e 

4 
 O

ut
co

m
e 

1 
– 

N
o 

ch
an

ge
 re

qu
ire

d:
 w

he
n 

th
e 

E
IA

 h
as

 n
ot

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 d

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
or

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 a
nd

 a
ll 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

pr
om

ot
e 

eq
ua

lit
y 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

 

Yo
ur

 a
na

ly
si

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ar

e 
ro

bu
st

 
an

d 
th

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 s

ho
w

s 
no

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 d
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
at

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
ta

ke
n 

al
l a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

ad
va

nc
e 

eq
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

fo
st

er
 g

oo
d 

re
la

tio
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
gr

ou
ps

. 
If 

th
is

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

is
 re

ac
he

d,
 re

m
em

be
r t

o 
do

cu
m

en
t t

he
 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r t

hi
s 

an
d 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 y
ou

 u
se

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

is
 d

ec
is

io
n.

 
O

ut
co

m
e 

2 
– 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 to
 re

m
ov

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

E
IA

 o
r t

o 
be

tte
r p

ro
m

ot
e 

eq
ua

lit
y.

 L
is

t t
he

 a
ct

io
ns

 y
ou

 p
ro

po
se

 to
 ta

ke
 to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

is
 in

 th
e 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n.
  

Th
is

 in
vo

lv
es

 ta
ki

ng
 s

te
ps

 to
 re

m
ov

e 
ba

rri
er

s 
or

 to
 b

et
te

r 
ad

va
nc

e 
eq

ua
lit

y.
 It

 c
an

 m
ea

n 
in

tro
du

ci
ng

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
. R

em
em

be
r t

ha
t i

t i
s 

la
w

fu
l u

nd
er

 th
e 

E
qu

al
ity

 A
ct

 to
 tr

ea
t p

eo
pl

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
ly

 in
 

so
m

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

ta
ki

ng
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

ct
io

n 
or

 
pu

tti
ng

 in
 p

la
ce

 s
in

gl
e-

se
x 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 n

ee
d 

fo
r i

t. 
It 

is
 b

ot
h 

la
w

fu
l a

nd
 a

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f t
he

 g
en

er
al

 
eq

ua
lit

y 
du

ty
 to

 c
on

si
de

r i
f t

he
re

 is
 a

 n
ee

d 
to

 tr
ea

t d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 d
iff

er
en

tly
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 m
or

e 
fa

vo
ra

bl
e 

tre
at

m
en

t 
w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
. 

O
ut

co
m

e 
3 

– 
C

on
tin

ue
 w

ith
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 d
es

pi
te

 h
av

in
g 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
so

m
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
r m

is
se

d 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
eq

ua
lit

y.
 

In
 th

is
 c

as
e,

 th
e 

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
EA

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
S

ED
 to

 h
av

e 
‘d

ue
 re

ga
rd

’. 
Li

st
 th

e 
ac

tio
ns

 y
ou

 
pr

op
os

e 
to

 ta
ke

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

is
 in

 th
e 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n.
 (Y

ou
 a

re
 a

dv
is

ed
 to

 
se

ek
 L

eg
al

 A
dv

ic
e)

 

Th
is

 m
ea

ns
 a

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

to
 a

do
pt

 y
ou

r p
ro

po
sa

ls
, 

de
sp

ite
 a

ny
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

r m
is

se
d 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

ad
va

nc
e 

eq
ua

lit
y,

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 s

at
is

fie
d 

yo
ur

se
lf 

th
at

 
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 u
nl

aw
fu

lly
 d

is
cr

im
in

at
e.

 In
 c

as
es

 w
he

re
 y

ou
 

be
lie

ve
 d

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
is

 n
ot

 u
nl

aw
fu

l b
ec

au
se

 it
 is

 
ob

je
ct

iv
el

y 
ju

st
ifi

ed
, i

t i
s 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 im

po
rta

nt
 th

at
 y

ou
 

re
co

rd
 w

ha
t t

he
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

is
 fo

r c
on

tin
ui

ng
 w

ith
 

yo
ur

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
, a

nd
 h

ow
 y

ou
 re

ac
he

d 
th

is
 d

ec
is

io
n.

 T
hi

s 
is

 
ve

ry
 im

po
rta

nt
 to

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

pa
id

 ‘d
ue

 re
ga

rd
’ t

o 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
ec

to
r E

qu
al

ity
 D

ut
y 

 
 

3 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

25

Page 29



O
ut

co
m

e 
4 

– 
S

to
p 

an
d 

re
th

in
k:

 w
he

n 
yo

ur
 E

A
 s

ho
w

s 
ac

tu
al

 o
r p

ot
en

tia
l 

un
la

w
fu

l d
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n.

  
If 

a 
po

lic
y 

sh
ow

s 
un

la
w

fu
l d

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
it 

m
us

t b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

 o
r c

ha
ng

ed
. 

N
ot

e:
 If

 y
ou

r E
A

 is
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 o

ut
co

m
e 

3,
 e

xp
la

in
 y

ou
r j

us
tif

ic
at

io
n 

w
ith

 fu
ll 

re
as

on
in

g 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 w
ith

 y
ou

r p
ro

po
sa

ls
? 

In
cl

ud
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 to

 w
hy

 y
ou

 s
ug

ge
st

 g
oi

ng
 a

he
ad

 w
ith

 
yo

ur
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 d
es

pi
te

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 b
ei

ng
 id

en
tif

ie
d.

   
 

St
ag

e 
5:

 M
ak

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 –
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t A
ct

io
n 

Pa
n 

 
 

10
. E

qu
al

ity
 A

na
ly

si
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 te

m
pl

at
e 

– 
M

ak
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 fo

r n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 
 

 

Th
is

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
fte

r t
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 a

na
ly

si
s 

an
d 

ou
tli

ne
s 

th
e 

ac
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 id
en

tif
ie

d.
 

 
R

is
ks

 o
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
EI

A
 

A
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

m
ea

su
re

 &
 

ta
rg

et
(s

) 

B
y 

w
he

n 
U

se
s 

ex
is

tin
g 

or
 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s?

 

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r 

Pr
og

re
ss

 

N
o 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d,
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
H

av
e 

yo
u 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 th
es

e 
ac

tio
ns

 in
to

 y
ou

r d
iv

is
io

na
l s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
n 

or
 te

am
 p

la
n?

 P
le

as
e 

gi
ve

 d
et

ai
ls

 o
f w

he
re

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

in
cl

ud
ed

. 
In

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
in

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

Le
is

ur
e 

& 
C

ul
tu

re
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t T

ea
m

’s
 tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
s.

 

 
11

.  
H

ow
 w

ill
 y

ou
 s

ha
re

 le
ss

on
s 

le
ar

nt
 fr

om
 th

is
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t w
ith

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r c

ou
nc

il 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
? 

 
W

e 
w

ill 
sh

ar
e 

an
y 

le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 th
is

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

on
e 

to
 o

ne
 s

up
po

rt,
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
nd

 ti
m

e 
al

lo
w

s.
 

 
 

4 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

26

Page 30



 
St

ag
e 

6:
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

Th
e 

fu
ll 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ay
 o

nl
y 

be
 k

no
w

n 
af

te
r t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 h
av

e 
be

en
 im

pl
em

en
te

d;
 th

er
ef

or
e 

it 
is

 im
po

rt
an

t t
he

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
is

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

. 
H

ow
 w

ill
 y

ou
 m

on
ito

r t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l o
nc

e 
it 

ha
s 

be
en

 im
pl

em
en

te
d?

 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

do
ne

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

le
is

ur
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t c

on
tra

ct
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
w

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 
H

ow
 o

fte
n 

w
ill

 y
ou

 d
o 

th
is

? 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 th

ro
ug

h 
fo

rm
al

 m
ee

tin
gs

, o
th

er
w

is
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

da
y 

to
 d

ay
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
s 

op
er

at
io

ns
. 

 
St

ag
e:

 7
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

ou
tc

om
es

 (C
om

pl
et

ed
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 m

us
t b

e 
at

ta
ch

ed
 to

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 re

po
rt

s 
an

d 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

ke
y 

fin
di

ng
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 s

ec
tio

n 
w

ith
 in

 th
em

) 
 Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t  


 
W

ha
t a

re
 th

e 
ke

y 
im

pa
ct

s 
– 

bo
th

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
an

d 
po

si
tiv

e?
 


 

W
ha

t c
ou

rs
e 

of
 a

ct
io

n 
ar

e 
yo

u 
ad

vi
si

ng
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
is

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t?
 


 

A
re

 th
er

e 
an

y 
pa

rti
cu

la
r g

ro
up

s 
af

fe
ct

ed
 m

or
e 

th
an

 o
th

er
s?

 
D

o 
yo

u 
su

gg
es

t t
o 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
 w

ith
 y

ou
r p

ro
po

sa
ls

 a
lth

ou
gh

 a
 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d?
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

ke
y 

fin
di

ng
s:

 
 N
on

e.
 

   

St
ag

e 
8:

 S
ig

n 
of

f b
y 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y:
 

N
am

e/
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
 

C
hr

is
tin

e 
P

ar
sl

oe
 

Le
is

ur
e 

&
 C

ul
tu

re
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

er
 

Si
gn

at
ur

e:
 

C
 A

 P
ar

sl
oe

 
D

at
e:

  
29

 S
ep

t 2
01

7 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
si

gn
ed

 o
ff 

by
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

G
ra

em
e 

Ka
ne

, H
ea

d 
of

 P
ub

lic
 S

pa
ce

 D
iv

is
io

n 
Si

gn
at

ur
e:

 
G

 K
an

e 
D

at
e:

 
29

 S
ep

t 2
01

7 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t &
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

 

 
 

     

 
 

5 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

27

Page 31



Eq
ua

lit
y 

A
na

ly
si

s 

06
  E

&
R

 P
ar

ki
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
  (

R
ef

 N
o.

 T
B

C
) 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
be

in
g 

as
se

ss
ed

? 
  

Fu
rt

he
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
n 

em
is

si
on

s 
ba

se
d 

ch
ar

gi
ng

 P
ol

ic
y 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

/b
us

in
es

s 
pe

rm
its

 

W
hi

ch
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t/ 
D

iv
is

io
n 

ha
s 

th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r t
hi

s?
 

En
fv

 &
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

/P
ub

lic
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n/
Pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
C

C
TV

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

St
ag

e 
1:

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

N
am

e 
an

d 
jo

b 
tit

le
 o

f l
ea

d 
of

fic
er

 
P

au
l W

al
sh

e 
H

ea
d 

of
 P

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 C

C
TV

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
1.

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

ai
m

s,
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

an
d 

de
si

re
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 o
f y

ou
r 

pr
op

os
al

? 
(A

ls
o 

ex
pl

ai
n 

pr
op

os
al

s 
e.

g.
 re

du
ct

io
n/

re
m

ov
al

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
, 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 p

os
ts

, c
ha

ng
in

g 
cr

ite
ria

 
et

c)
 

To
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 c
le

an
er

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 a

ge
nd

a 

2.
H

ow
 d

oe
s 

th
is

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e

co
un

ci
l’s

 c
or

po
ra

te
 p

rio
rit

ie
s?

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f t
he

 C
om

m
un

ity
. 

3.
W

ho
 w

ill 
be

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
is

pr
op

os
al

? 
Fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 

th
e 

ex
te

rn
al

/in
te

rn
al

 c
us

to
m

er
s,

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, p

ar
tn

er
s,

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
, t

he
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 e
tc

. 

R
es

id
en

ts
, B

us
in

es
se

s 
an

d 
Tr

ad
e 

w
ho

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
a 

pa
rk

in
g 

pe
rm

it 

4.
Is

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
sh

ar
ed

 w
ith

an
ot

he
r d

ep
ar

tm
en

t, 
au

th
or

ity
 o

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n?
 If

 s
o,

 w
ho

 a
re

 th
e 

pa
rtn

er
s 

an
d 

w
ho

 h
as

 o
ve

ra
ll 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y?
 

Th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 n
ot

 s
ha

re
d 

w
ith

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t. 
Th

e 
se

ct
io

n 
w

ill 
w

or
k 

cl
os

el
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

S
ha

re
d 

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
Te

am
 w

he
n 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

. 

1 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4 28

Page 32



St
ag

e 
2:

 C
ol

le
ct

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

/ d
at

a 

5.
W

ha
t e

vi
de

nc
e 

ha
ve

 y
ou

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t?
Pr

ov
id

e 
de

ta
ils

 o
f t

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 y

ou
r p

ro
po

sa
l w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
on

 th
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s

(e
qu

al
ity

 g
ro

up
s)

.

It 
is

 n
ot

 b
el

ie
ve

d 
th

at
 le

ve
ls

 o
f v

eh
ic

le
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
ha

ve
 a

 c
or

re
la

tio
n 

w
ith

 m
ot

or
is

ts
 w

ith
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s.

  I
f, 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

po
lic

y,
 it

 b
ec

om
es

 e
vi

de
nt

 th
at

 th
is

 is
 n

ot
 th

e 
ca

se
, t

hi
s 

as
se

ss
m

en
t w

ill 
be

 re
vi

ew
ed

. 

St
ag

e 
3:

 A
ss

es
si

ng
 im

pa
ct

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
si

s 

6.
Fr

om
 th

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
, w

ha
t a

re
as

 o
f c

on
ce

rn
 h

av
e 

yo
u 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l n
eg

at
iv

e 
an

d
po

si
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

on
e 

or
 m

or
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

(e
qu

al
ity

 g
ro

up
s)

?

Pr
ot

ec
te

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
 

(e
qu

al
ity

 g
ro

up
) 

Ti
ck

 w
hi

ch
 a

pp
lie

s 
Ti

ck
 w

hi
ch

 a
pp

lie
s 

R
ea

so
n 

Br
ie

fly
 e

xp
la

in
 w

ha
t p

os
iti

ve
 o

r n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

Po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 
Ye

s 
N

o 
Ye

s 
N

o 
Ag

e 
x 

x 
H

ea
lth

y 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
X 

x 
N

o 
su

rc
ha

rg
e 

w
ill 

be
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 a
 v

eh
ic

le
 u

se
d 

by
 a

 B
lu

e 
Ba

dg
e 

ho
ld

er
 

G
en

de
r R

ea
ss

ig
nm

en
t 

X 
x 

H
ea

lth
y 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

M
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 C
iv

il 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
X 

x 
H

ea
lth

y 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 

Pr
eg

na
nc

y 
an

d 
M

at
er

ni
ty

 
X 

x 
H

ea
lth

y 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
R

ac
e 

X 
x 

H
ea

lth
y 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

R
el

ig
io

n/
 b

el
ie

f 
X 

x 
H

ea
lth

y 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
Se

x 
(G

en
de

r)
 

X 
x 

H
ea

lth
y 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

Se
xu

al
 o

rie
nt

at
io

n 
X 

x 
H

ea
lth

y 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
So

ci
o-

ec
on

om
ic

 s
ta

tu
s 

X 
x 

Th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

os
ts

 m
ay

 a
ffe

ct
 th

is
 g

ro
up

  

2 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4 29

Page 33



7.
Eq

ua
lit

y 
A

na
ly

si
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 te

m
pl

at
e 

– 
M

ak
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 fo

r n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

Th
is

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
fte

r t
he

 a
na

ly
si

s 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 o
ut

lin
e 

ac
tio

n(
s)

 to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

(e
xp

an
di

ng
 o

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

7 
ab

ov
e)

.  

N
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

/ g
ap

 in
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

Eq
ua

lit
y 

An
al

ys
is

 

Ac
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
m

iti
ga

te
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 y
ou

 k
no

w
 th

is
 is

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
? 

 e
.g

. p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

ea
su

re
/ t

ar
ge

t) 

B
y 

w
he

n 
Ex

is
tin

g 
or

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s?
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
Ac

tio
n 

ad
de

d 
to

 
di

vi
si

on
al

/ t
ea

m
 

pl
an

? 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 

N
ot

e 
th

at
 th

e 
fu

ll 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ay

 o
nl

y 
be

 k
no

w
n 

af
te

r t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 h

av
e 

be
en

 im
pl

em
en

te
d;

 th
er

ef
or

e 
it 

is
 

im
po

rt
an

t t
he

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
. 

St
ag

e 
4:

 C
on

cl
us

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
A

na
ly

si
s 

8.
W

hi
ch

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 b

es
t d

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 th

e 
EA

 (T
ic

k 
on

e 
bo

x 
on

ly
)

Pl
ea

se
 re

fe
r t

o 
th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 fo

r c
ar

ry
in

g 
ou

t E
qu

al
ity

 Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 th
e 

in
tra

ne
t f

or
 fu

rth
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

se
ou

tc
om

es
 a

nd
 w

ha
t t

he
y 

m
ea

n 
fo

r y
ou

r p
ro

po
sa

l

O
U

TC
O

M
E 

1 
O

U
TC

O
M

E 
2 

O
U

TC
O

M
E 

3 
O

U
TC

O
M

E 
4 

 
St

ag
e 

5:
 S

ig
n 

of
f b

y 
D

ire
ct

or
/ H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

As
se

ss
m

en
t c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Pa
ul

 W
al

sh
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 
C

C
TV

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Si

gn
at

ur
e:

 
D

at
e:

  1
0t

h 
N

ov
 2

01
5 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 s

ig
ne

d 
of

f b
y 

D
ire

ct
or

/ H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Jo

hn
 H

ill
 H

ea
d 

of
 P

ub
lic

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Si
gn

at
ur

e:
 

D
at

e:
 

x 

3 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4 30

Page 34



Cabinet 
Date: 16 October 2017 
Subject:  Financial Report 2017/18 – August 2017 
Lead officer: Roger Kershaw 
Lead member: Mark Allison 

Recommendations: 

A. That Cabinet note the financial reporting data relating to revenue budgetary control, showing 
a forecast net overspend at year end of £1.9million, 0.4% of the gross budget.  

B. That Cabinet note the adjustments to the Capital Programme contained in Appendix 5b 
That Cabinet (Council approval also required) approve the following adjustments to the Capital Programme 

Scheme 2017/18 
Budget  

2018/19 
Budget  

2019/20 
Budget  Narrative 

Council  and Cabinet Approval 

Capital Bidding Fund (560,100) 0 Virement 

Parks - Canons Parks for the People 180,450 1,117,470 195,540 HLF Funding 

Mitcham Area Regeneration - Parks for the 
People 638,780 2,032,100 301,040 HLF Funding & Virement 

Total 259,130 3,149,570 496,580 

Scheme 2017/18 
Budget  Narrative 

Cabinet Only Approval 

Morden Park House Courtyard 125,000 £48k Donation and £77k Revenue Contribution 

Total 125,000 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 This is the financial monitoring report for period 5, 31st August 2017 presented in line with 

the financial reporting timetable.  

This financial monitoring report provides:- 
• The income and expenditure at period 5 and a full year forecast projection.
• An update on the capital programme and detailed monitoring information;
• An update on Corporate Items in the budget 2017/18;
• Progress on the delivery of the 2017/18 revenue savings

2. THE FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESS

2.1 The budget monitoring process in 2017/18 will continue to focus on adult social care and 
children’s social care as these areas overspent in 2016/17 and continue to have budget 
pressures. 

2.2 Chief Officers, together with budget managers and Service Financial Advisers are 
responsible for keeping budgets under close scrutiny and ensuring that expenditure within 
budgets which are overspending is being actively and vigorously controlled and where 
budgets are underspent, these underspends are retained until year end. Any final overall 
overspend on the General Fund will result in a call on balances as has been the case for 
the last two financial years, however this action is not sustainable longer term. 

- 1 - 

That Cabinet approve the following adjustments to the Capital Programme 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



2.3  2017/18 FORECAST OUTTURN BASED UPON LATEST AVAILABLE DATA 
Executive summary – At period 5 to 31st August 2017 the year end forecast is a net 
£1.9m overspend compared to the current budget or 0.4% of the gross budget. 

Summary Position as at 31st 
August 2017 

Current Budget 
2017/18 

Full Year 
Forecast 

(Aug) 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end (Aug) 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end 
(July) 

Outturn 
variance 
2016/17 

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 
Department 
3A.Corporate Services 26,507 26,142 (365) (369) (1,287) 
3B.Children, Schools and Families 48,735 49,735 1,001 1,040 1,154 
3C.Community and Housing 60,120 62,060 1,940 818 10,124 
3D.Public Health 0 (7) (7) 48 16 
3E.Environment & Regeneration 17,952 17,663 (289) 51 1,011 
Overheads 0 0 0 0 12 
NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 153,313 155,593 2,280 1,588 11,030 

3E.Corporate Items 
Impact of Capital on revenue budget 13,415 13,265 (150) (150) 193 
Other Central budgets (21,035) (21,266) (231) (14) (8,329) 
Levies 933 933 0 0 0 
TOTAL CORPORATE PROVISIONS (6,687) (7,068) (381) (164) (8,136) 

Less corporate overheads (556) (556) 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 146,070 147,969 1,899 1,424 2,894 

FUNDING 
Revenue Support Grant (15,520) (15,520) 0 0 0 
Business Rates (35,483) (35,483) 0 0 0 
Other Grants (10,733) (10,733) 0 0 (537) 
Council Tax and Collection Fund (84,329) (84,329) 0 0 0 
FUNDING (146,065) (146,065) 0 0 (537) 

0 
NET 5 1,904 1,899 1,424 2,357 

The current level of GF balances is £12.778m and the minimum level reported to Council for this is 
£12.27m. This means that another reserve or further savings will need to be found to offset the 
remaining £1.4m overspend. 

- 2 - 

Page 36



 
 
 
 
 
 

3. DEPARTMENTAL SUMMARY OF CURRENT POSITION  
  
Corporate Services 
 

  
2017/18 
Current 
Budget 

Full year 
Forecast 
August 

Forecast 
variance 
at year 

end  

Forecast 
variance 
at year 

end  

2016/17 
Outturn 
Variance  

August July 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Business Improvement 2,973 2,836 -137 -134 -54 

Infrastructure & Transactions 9,355 9,429 74 68 -431 

Resources 6,430 6,604 174 160 -314 

Human Resources 1,948 1,841 -107 -105 -34 

Corporate Governance 2,491 2,412 -79 -76 -330 

Customer Services 2,308 2,038 -270 -192 -164 

Corporate Items including  redundancy 
costs 1002 982 -20 -90 40 

Total (controllable) 26,507 26,142 -365 -368 -1,287 

 
Overview 
At the end period 5 (August) the Corporate Services (CS) department is forecasting an 
underspend of £365k at year end 
 
Business Improvement - £137k under 
 
The systems and projects team are forecasting an underspend on staffing.  This is due to 
vacant posts and staff recharges to projects and CHAS 2013 Limited. This is offset by a 
projected shortfall on saving CSD42 which is not expected to be fully achieved in 17/18. 
 
Infrastructure & Transactions - £74k over 
There are budget pressures in several teams.  
 
The professional development centre (Chaucer Centre) is expected to under-achieve on 
income by £110k. Bookings year to date are lower than previous years. As budgets are 
reduced, customers are choosing the Civic Centre non-chargeable rooms over the Chaucer 
Centre's chargeable rooms. Rental income is also lower and there is a delay with agreed 
office renters now not taking residence at the centre until November.  
 
The transactional services team are forecasting an overspend of £70k mainly because 
saving CS70 which is to charge for paper copies of invoices is unachievable due to delays 
in the implementation of e5, SharePoint and EDRMS. 
 

- 3 -  

Page 37



The Garth Road income target is forecast to under-achieve by approximately £60k and 
there is a projected overspend in the Commercial Services team on staffing costs of £80k.  
This team is essential in driving and delivering procurement savings across the Council.  
 
These forecast overspends are partly offset by over-achievement of income on printing and 
the rental agreement with CHAS 2013 Limited for occupancy of half of the 14th floor in the 
Civic Centre. 
 
 
Resources - £174k over 
The division is forecasting to overspend due to staffing, including one case of long term 
sickness.  
There were some additional costs for the external audit which were due to the 
implementation of the new financial system, as discussed at the Standards & General 
Purposes Committee in September. There are also ongoing development costs of e5 being 
funded within the division. 
The closing of accounts process for 2016/17 and the external audit have highlighted a few 
areas of concern in meeting the early closure deadlines for next year. Some additional 
resources will be required to address these issues and a project plan will be developed. 
 
 
Human Resources – £108k under 
The reason for the underspend is a number of vacant posts within the division. This is partly 
offset by the expected shortfall on schools buy back income of £78k. 
There are budget pressures on the payroll contract with Agilisys which are being reviewed.  
 
Corporate Governance - £79k under 
The forecast underspend is partly due to a £27k underspend in Internal Audit and £23k in 
Benefits Investigation where a 18/19 saving has been captured early.   
 
There are other forecast underspends on non salary budgets across the division. 
 
The South London legal partnership (SLLp) has budget pressures on staffing costs but is 
being recovered by hard charging to the five boroughs in the partnership.  There are 
numerous agency staff as recruitment is becoming increasingly difficult in certain teams. 
This will be closely monitored and is reported to all partnership boroughs. 
 
Customer Services - £270k under 
The Merton Bailiff Service is forecasting over-achieving income by £300k but this is offset 
by a forecast £70k under-achievement of income in the Shared Bailiff Service.  
 
Translations services are forecasting to overachieve income by £65k. 
 
The Communications Service is under-achieving on advertising the income target which is 
partially offset by underspends elsewhere in the service. The team are working to address 
the likely failure to achieve income targets through a review of the strategy. A task and 
finish group has been established to take this forward with the aim of a refreshed strategy 
and agreed targets being drafted by the autumn. 

 
Corporate Items - £20k under 
Redundancy costs are forecast to be approximately £500k over budget based on year to 
date actuals.  
This is being offset by a reduction in the housing benefit provision. 
 

- 4 -  

Page 38



£45k forecast spend is projected to address cyber security issues following recent security 
threats.  Credit card charges which are currently passed on to customers will also cease in 
January 2018 and the forecast costs are approx. £25k. 
 
The budget monitoring process will focus on pressures to ensure remedial action is taken 
and underspends can be held to offset any overspends. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Environment & Regeneration 
 
 

Environment & Regeneration
    
    
 

     
2017/18 
Current 
Budget 

 
 

£000 

Full year 
Forecast 
(August) 

 
 
 

£000 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end 
(August) 

 
£000 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end 
(July) 

 
£000 

2016/17 
Outturn 
Variance  

 
 
 

£000 
Public  Protection (10,514) (11,602) (1,088) (1,038) 1,290 
Public Space 15,232 15,851 619 667 510 
Senior Management 1,015 986 (29) (31) (44) 
Sustainable Communities 12,220 12,429 209 452 (745) 
Total (Controllable) 17,953 17,664 (289) 50 1,011 
 
 

- 5 -  

Page 39



Description 

2016/17 
Current 
Budget 

 
 
 

£000 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end 
(August) 

 
£000 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end 
(July) 

 
£000  

2016/17 
Variance 
at year 

end 
 
 

£000 
Overspend within Regulatory Services 627 209 207 (34) 
Underspend within Parking  & CCTV Services (11,617) (1,235) (1,200) 1,442 
Underspend within Safer Merton 476 (62) (45) (118) 
Total for Public Protection (10,514) (1,088) (1,038) 1,290 
Overspend within Waste Services 13,979 331 224 168 
Underspend within Leisure & Culture 898 (105) (105) (72) 
Overspend within Greenspaces 1,307 234 373 206 
Overspend within Transport Services (952) 159 175 342 
Total for Public Space 15,232 619 667 510 
Underspend within Senior Management & 
Support 1,015 (29) (31) (44) 

Total for Senior Management 1,015 (29) (31) (44) 
Underspend within Property Management (2,605) (95) (87) (564) 
Overspend within Building & Development 
Control (332) 285 380 (157) 

Overspend within Future Merton 15,157 19 159 (158) 
Total for Sustainable Communities  12,220 209 452 (789) 
     
Total Excluding Overheads 17,953 (289) 50 1,011 
 
 
Overview 
The department is currently forecasting an underspend of £289k at year end. The main areas of 
variance are Regulatory Services, Parking Services, Waste Services, Greenspaces, Transport 
Services, and Building & Development Control.  
 
 
Public Protection 
 
Regulatory Services overspend of £209k 
 The forecast overspend is as a result of a few factors. Firstly, a 2017/18 saving (E&R14) of £100k 
relating to further expansion of the Regulatory Services Partnership will not be achieved this year, 
as it is expected that the expansion will not commence until April 2018/19. Secondly, the 
Partnership has utilised the services of a project manager in order to achieve the aforementioned 
saving, and Merton’s share of this is expected to be around £33k. Thirdly, an underachievement of 
Licensing income of £47k is forecast, which is associated with a 2016/17 saving (E&R13) of £50k. 
Finally, the section is liable for any Mortuary costs, which is not within their control. An overspend 
of £27k related to this service is being forecast. 
 
Parking & CCTV Services underspend of £1,235k 
The underspend is mainly as a result of the protracted timeframe for the implementation of the 
ANPR system across the borough. The section did not have a fully functional system during 
2016/17, but the necessary upgrades and camera performance reviews conducted by the 
contractor and officers from the team have now been completed. The positive effects of this e.g. 
improved traffic flow are expected to be realised during the year. The later start of the ANPR 
enforcement has resulted in a delay in motorist compliance with traffic regulations and the revenue 
generated reflecting this. It is difficult to predict when compliance will begin to set in and how this 
will affect revenue but this will be closely monitored and future forecasts amended accordingly.   

- 6 -  

Page 40



 
Included within this forecast is an employee related overspend of c£460k due to a combination of 
savings not yet implemented and increased demand. Due to the implementation of the diesel 
surcharge and the delay in fully implementing ANPR the section has been forced to delay 
implementing certain savings, whilst needing to recruit additional agency staff to manage PCN and 
permit demands. This pressure is being offset by an over-recovery in permit revenue (£377k). 
 
 
Public Space 
 
Waste Services overspend of £331k 
The forecast overspend relates mainly to the Phase C contract (£562k), which has been rolled out 
successfully delivering in excess of £1.3m savings. However, as part of the approved MTFS 
savings, the budget has been reduced by in excess of £1.9m.This budget pressure is mitigated 
next year when the new wheelie bin service is rolled out along with reduced frequency of 
collection, which will deliver additional savings in the contract cost for the service. 
 
An update report was provided to Sustainable Communities O&S Panel on 4th July with a further 
update in November. The latter paper will include a summary of all the savings achieved through 
the procurement of these contracts. Robust contract management is in place ensuring full 
contractual compliance. 
 
This overspend is being partially mitigated from in-year underspends on disposal costs (£345k). 
 
Greenspaces overspend of £234k 
Although significant savings have already been realised, the section is forecasting to overspend 
on its Phase C contract by around £145k. This overspend is not expected to repeat next year. 
 
In addition, the Authority has been required to continue contracting out arboriculture related work 
leading to a forecast overspend of c£144k. From April next year, this work is expected to be 
carried out by IDVerde and will benefit from the lower rates available through the  Phase C 
arrangements.. 
 
The section is also currently forecasting to underachieve on its income expectations in the 
following areas. Firstly, on events related income (£62k), whereby related savings of £170k have 
been implemented in the last two years, and whilst one event boosted the income, work continues 
to identify how income from events in parks, including developing working partnerships with 
external event production companies, can be generated. 
 
Secondly, due to a delay in the implementation of 2016/17 saving E&R26 (£60k) i.e. P&D within 
certain parks. This is due to be partially implemented this autumn leading to an expectation that 
only £5k of the associated saving will be achieved this year. Finally, the service is forecasting an 
under-achievement of rental income of £22k. Work continues with reviewing current rental 
arrangements as well as identifying new letting opportunities to address this pressure. 
 
These forecast overspends are being partially mitigated from other grants and contributions. 
 
Transport services overspend of 159k 
The overspend relates to the Operations and Workshop side of the section. Within Transport 
Operations, an employee overspend of £74k is forecast mainly as a result of additional agency 
and overtime requirements due to covering sick leave and vacancies. This also causes a knock on 
effect for covering core routes, whereby, the only option on occasions is to utilise third party 
transport providers to cover the routes, which results in further unrecoverable costs (£62k). 
 

- 7 -  

Page 41



Within the Workshop section, the overspend (£69k) relates to invoices for payment relating to 
good/services received prior to 1st April, at which point the workshop was transferred to Veolia. 
 
 
Sustainable Communities 
 
Building & Development Control overspend of £285k 
The section is forecasting to underachieve on income by £426k, in particular within building 
Control. This reflects the continued reduction in the Authority’s market share.  This downward 
trend has also impacted on the section’s ability to meet some of its associated 2017/18 savings, 
notably ENV20, D&BC1, D&BC2, D&BC3, D&BC5, and D&BC6 i.e. Increased income from 
building control services, fast tracking of householder applications, commercialisation of the 
service, and removal of the Planning Duty service.  
 
The section is also forecasting a reduction, when compared to 2016/17, in development control 
income of around £389k due to a downturn of around 10% in planning applications so far this year. 
This still results in an underachievement against budget of only £3k, but is a considerable 
decrease in expected income levels. 

 
 

 
 
 

- 8 -  

Page 42



Children Schools and Families 
 

 
Children, Schools and Families 
 

 
2017/18 
Current 
Budget 

£000 

 
Full year 
Forecast 

(Aug) 
£000 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end (Aug) 
£000 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end (Jul) 
£000 

2016/17 
Variance 
at year 

end 
£000 

Cross Department budgets 1,668 1,614 (54) (97) (271) 
Education 16,285 15,898 (387) (353) (874) 
Social Care and Youth Inclusion 20,783 22,405 1,622 1,670 3,259 
PFI 7,916 7,736 (180) (180) (549) 
Redundancy costs 2,083 2,083 0 0 (411) 
Total (controllable) 48,735 49,736 1,001 1,040 1,154 

 
Overview 
 
At the end of August Children Schools and Families had a forecast overspend of £1.001m on local 
authority funded services. Although the department received £1m growth which was allocated 
against placement budgets, there were pressures over and above the growth allocated to the 
department some of which were offset  by planned underspends and management action in year. 
Whilst some planned underspends will continue, the majority of the underspend used to offset cost 
pressures last year were either non-recurrent management action or one-off windfalls which are 
not guaranteed or expected in the current financial year.  
 
The forecast overspend also includes the cost for agency staff which was funded from the 
Corporate Contingency for the last three years (£480k) to enable the department to maintain safe 
caseloads as  part of our agreed approach and service model. 
 
Due to the volatile nature of placement and SEN transport budgets and the current volume of CSC 
activity and EHC requests we are exercising appropriate demand management balancing our 
education and social care statutory duties with careful and considered oversight of spend.  
 
Local Authority Funded Services 
 
Significant cost pressures and underspends identified to date are detailed below: 

Description 
Budget 

£000 
Aug 
£000 

Jul 
£000 

2016/17 
£000 

MOSAIC implementation support 0 63 0 0 
Small over and underspends 1,668 (117) (97) (271) 
Subtotal Cross Department budgets 1,668 (54) (97) (271) 
Procurement & School organisation 592 (342) (342) (448) 
SEN transport 4,131 435 435 394 
Early achievement of savings 200 (200) (200) 0 
SEN statement support team 394 (119) (86) (7) 
Other small over and underspends 10,968 (161) (160) (813) 
Subtotal Education 16,285 (387) (353) (874) 
Fostering and residential placements (ART) 5,226 (68) 17 611 
Supported lodgings/housing 1,645 131 169 1,110 
Un-accompanied asylum seeking children (UASC) 61 624 655 579 
No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF) 21 385 379 484 
Social Work staffing 4,173 517 446 282 
Family and Adolescent Services 43 17 37   0 
Other small over and underspends 9,614 16 (33)   288 
Subtotal Children’s Social Care and Youth Inclusion 20,783 1,622 1,670 3,259 

- 9 -  

Page 43



Cross Department budgets 
 
This budget includes the departmental business support, senior management and joint 
commissioning services. 
 
Following the implementation of MOSAIC, some changes and service support is still required 
which is now funded from the departmental budgets rather than from the project. The support is 
currently forecast to be required until the end of October at an estimated cost of £63k. 
 
There are various other small over and underspends forecast across the division netting to a 
£117k underspend. These combine with the item described above to arrive at the total reported 
divisional underspend of £54k. 

 
Education Division 
 
Procurement and school organisation budgets are forecast to underspend by £342k as a result of 
lower spend on revenuisation budgets. This budget relates to construction projects that cannot be 
classified as capital. The majority of this is required for temporary classrooms due to rising pupil 
demand when it is not viable to provide permanent buildings. 
 
The SEN transport budget is forecasting to overspend by £430k at the end of the financial year. 
Due to time required for the new ADAM system to be imbedded, the expected cost reductions 
have not yet been realised. The annual review of new routes was undertaken over the summer 
holidays and the process for re-procurement of existing routes will be accelerated in the autumn 
term. 
 
Education savings was brought forward by a year which will result in a one-off in-year underspend 
of £200k. 
 
The SEN support team is forecasting a £119k underspend on staffing due to difficulties in 
recruiting appropriate staff to vacancies. Recruitment continues to ensure we can meet our 
statutory duties in relation to EHCP timeliness which means that this underspend might reduce 
towards the end of the financial year. 
 
There are various other small over and underspends forecast across the division netting to a 
£161k underspend. These combine with the items described above to arrive at the total reported 
divisional underspend of £387k. 
 
Children’s Social Care and Youth Inclusion Division 

 
While the numbers of Looked After Children (LAC) remain relatively stable, and indeed Merton 
maintains relatively low levels of children in care, the complexity of a significant proportion of 
cases is causing cost pressures as detailed below. Placement costs are reviewed on a monthly 
basis and assumptions reviewed quarterly to ensure that projections of spend are as accurate as 
possible. 
 

  Forecast Variance Placements 
 
Service 

Budget 
£000 

spend  
£000 

Aug 
£000 

Jul 
£000 

Aug 
Nr 

Jul 
Nr 

Residential Placements 2,239 1,995 (244) (193) 11 13 
Independent Agency Fostering 1,789 1,731 (58) (41) 41 41 
In-house Fostering 964 1,148 184 211 50 49 
Secure accommodation 134 0 (134) (134) 0 0 
Mother and baby 100 284 184 174 2 2 
Total 5,226 5,158 (68) 17 104 105 

- 10 -  

Page 44



 
The ART service seeks to make placements with in-house foster carers wherever possible and in 
line with presenting needs, however, the needs of some looked after children mean that 
placements with residential care providers or independent fostering agencies are required. Some 
specific provision is mandated by the courts. 

• The residential placement expenditure is forecast to underspend by £244k. This change is 
due two young people moving from residential placements. 

• The agency fostering placement expenditure is expected to underspend by £58k. Two 
placements ended and were replaced by two new cases. The cost of another case reduced 
as we know the person will be leaving soon. This is a very volatile budget and therefore 
subject to fluctuation during the year.  

• The in-house foster carer expenditure is forecast to overspend by £184k. We had 4 new 
children placed. Three placements ended. Two placements were projected for a shorter 
period.  

• We are not aware of any secure accommodation placements at this stage and will review 
throughout the year.  

• There are now two remaining Mother and Baby placements which are expected to 
overspend by £184k due to additional expenses.  
 

The budget for semi-independent and supported lodgings/housing placements are estimated to 
overspend by £131k. Despite the increase in number of cases by 2, 5 new cases and three 
leavers, the overall overspend reduced as a result of a net reduction in forecast adjustments. This 
budget is used to finance an increased number of placements for young people aged 16/17 and 
above. These are for young people who require semi-independent provision and for Care Leavers 
through to independence or, in some cases, through to the age of 21 (older in exceptional 
circumstances), as part of our statutory duties. There were 61 semi-independent placements for 
non-UASC young people at the end of August 2017. 
 
The UASC supported lodgings/housing placements for post 18 children that became eligible for 
leaving care support is expected to overspend by £624k this year. This is lower than last month 
due to a reduction in caseload. At the end of August there were 27 placements for young people 
aged 18+ with no recourse to public funds in semi-independent accommodation- one less than last 
month. One young person is predicted to leave in September. 
 
The NRPF budget is expected to overspend by £385k in the current financial year. The NRPF 
worker is working closely with housing colleagues to manage cases as they arise and is also 
reviewing historic cases to identify ones where claimant circumstances has changed and can 
therefore be stepped down from services. We continue to use the Connect system to progress 
cases and have started a process of reviewing all open cases with the aim to limit the cost 
pressure on the council. 
 
The Central Social Work, MASH, First Response, CASA and Bond Road team’s staffing costs are 
expected to overspend by £517k. The majority of this is due to additional social work capacity 
required to manage safe caseloads, previously funded by the council’s contingency, and are kept 
under regular review as they are covered by agency. On top of the additional staff, the team also 
has to cover vacancies with agency staff due to difficulty in recruiting permanent members of staff. 
We continue with our proactive recruitment and retention campaigns and have a number of 
permanent staff starting in September and October. 
 
The Family and Adolescent Services staffing budget is expected to overspend by £17k. This is 
due to the head of service post which has been deleted as part of the 2017/18 savings is being 
covered by an agency member of staff due to short term service requirements. These 
arrangements will cease in the autumn. 
 

- 11 -  

Page 45



There are various other small over and underspends forecast across the division netting to a £16k 
overspend. These combine with the items described above to arrive at the total reported divisional 
overspend of £1,622k. 
 
Dedicated Schools Grant 
 
DSG funded services is forecast to overspend by £1.504m. These budgets are not within the 
council’s general fund and cannot be offset against the local authority funded budgets. Any 
overspend will be funded from the DSG reserve and applied after consultation with Schools 
Forum. Variances between individual subjectives have been shown in the overall departmental 
analyses. 
 
The main reasons for the forecast relates to an estimated overspend of £970k on Independent 
Day School provision and £521k on additional school business rate adjustments primarily due to 
the revaluation of properties in the beginning of 2017. 
 
There are various other smaller over and underspends forecast across the DSG netting to a £13k 
overspend which, combined with the items above, equates to the net overspend of £1.504m.  
 
Management Action 
 
New burdens 
There are a number of duties placed on the Local Authority which have not been fully funded or 
not funded at all through additional burdens funding from Central Government. £1m growth was 
added by the council in 2017/18 to the supported housing/lodgings budget. Excluding the cost of 
these duties would leave a net departmental underspend of £139k, however that figure masks 
substantial once off windfalls and non-recurrent and recurrent management action. The table 
below highlights the continued estimated overspends relating to these unfunded duties: 
 

Description 
Budget 

£000 

Aug 
overspend 

forecast 
£000 

Jul 
overspend 

forecast 
£000 

Supported lodgings/housing 1,645 131 169 
Un-accompanied asylum seeking children (UASC) 61 624 655 
No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF) 21 385 379 
Total 1,727 1,140 1,203 

 
Staffing 
Agency cost continues to be a cost pressure for the department as permanent social worker 
recruitment continues to be challenging. We are operating, however at our lowest level of agency 
staff in 3 years. The continued recruitment drive including recruitment of NQSWs, temporary to 
permanent initiatives and retention payments will all have a positive impact on the current financial 
year and we will continue to take action to bring down anticipated overspends on agency/staffing 
costs.  
 
Placements 
Our strong management oversight enables us to ensure that an appropriate entry to care 
threshold is well-maintained. The impact of increased numbers of UASC is in particular affecting 
our LAC and care leaver numbers and we remain in the lowest rate of care range in London. 
 
Work continues to ensure we lever in appropriate health contribution to children with complex 
needs and our ART service is driving down placement costs including through regional partnership 
commissioning. 
 

- 12 -  

Page 46



Our ART Fostering Recruitment and Assessment team is continuing to recruit new foster carers 
who will offer locally based placements. This continues to enable a reduction in more expensive 
agency foster placements, but there is a time lag.  
 
Our ART Placement service is working with providers to establish more local provision and offer 
better value placements to the Council. There is now an established agreed cost framework for 
semi- independent providers and this has resulted in more appropriately priced placements for 
Care Leavers and older LAC. 
 
General 
The department continues to scrutinise all budgets to see how we can offset the above costs 
pressures and others created by growing demographics and new burdens.  Where possible we will 
use grant and income flexibly to bring our anticipated spend in line with available budgets. 
 
 
Community and Housing Current Summary Position 
 
Community and Housing is now forecasting an over spend of £1.9m as at August 2017.   
 
The main variances are in Housing £443k and £1.6m in Adult Social Care division of Access & 
Assessment. This is supported by other under spends in Adult Social Care and Merton Adult 
Education. 
 
Adult Social Care received £9.3m in growth to support the identifiable pressures and challenges 
faced by the department. The service has allocated growth to the placements and deprivation of 
liberty budgets in line with the budget pressures identified in the budget setting report.  
 
The 2017/18 budget was set on the basis of period 9 2016/17 budget forecast. Between period 9 
and the year end, placements expenditure increased by £700k against the forecast. This was 
mainly due to the amount of older people being discharged from hospital but also a one-off charge 
of £350k.  
In addition, the service was hit with a late clawback of Better Care Fund (BCF) monies due to the 
late reporting of performance on the main factor in the BCF risk share agreement. The service 
therefore has a financial hit of £275k in 2017/18.  
The service therefore started 2017/18 £625k worse off than the budget plan. 
 

Community and Housing 2017/18 
Current 
Budget 

 
 
 

£’000 

Full 
Year 

Forecast 
(Aug) 

 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

 
(Aug) 

 
 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

 
(July) 

 
 

£’000 
 

2016/17 
Outturn 
Variance 

 
 
 

£’000 

Access and Assessment 46,870 48,485 1,615 532 9,432 
Commissioning 4,162 4,121   (41) (32) 67 
Direct Provision 4,373 4,303   (70) (36) (169) 

Directorate 755 814   59 30 (274) 
Adult Social Care 56,160 57,723 1,563      494 9,056 

Libraries and Heritage 1975 2,005 30 33 (88) 
Merton Adult Education      0 0 0 0 501 
Merton Adult Education- 
Commissioning Model 

    48 (48) (96) (96) 0 

Housing General Fund 1,937 2,380 443 387 655 

- 13 -  

Page 47



Total 60,120 62,060 1,940 818 10,124 
      

Public Health 0 (7)        (7)        48 16 
 `  
 
 
 
 
Adult Social Care 
 
Unusually the summer has been a very busy period for our hospital team. A 
higher than usual number of discharges have happened, which has stretched 
the re-ablement team, home care and residential care capacity. A number of 
placements have had to be made in higher cost residential and nursing 
homes as we were unable to provide the usual cost alternative.  
We have also seen a number of complex, and therefore expensive, learning 
disability packages emerge from the transition from childhood. It is not 
unusual for placements to costs £150,000 per year each. However, this has 
been mitigated in part by health funding.  This has resulted in period 5 budget 
forecast overspend of £1.6m for adult social care. Management actions are in 
place to pull this back, which are set out below.  
       
 
Access & Assessment - £1.6m Overspend 
  
This section is forecasting an over spend which made up of under and overspends as follows:- 
 
Access & Assessment 
 

Forecast 
Variances 

(Aug) 
£00 

Forecast 
Variances 

(July) 
£000 

Underspend on Concessionary Fares (71)  (71) 
Overspend on  Better Care Fund Risk 
Share for 2016/17 

275  275 

Other   (23)   114 
Placements* 3,254     2,034 
Income* (1,820) (1,820) 
Total    1,615    532 

 
*Based on estimated data. 
 
The table above shows an increase in placement forecast since July. 
 
 Homecare 
The market for home care is very limited, which is why we are currently commissioning a new 
model of service. In the meantime, it is difficult to find carers. Unfortunately this has been 
exacerbated by a number of systems problems.  
In particular, our call monitoring system is not working as it should. This system allows us to pay 
for care actually delivered, rather than what we commission included missed or cancelled calls. 
Payments for the first few months of the year were made on the gross amount, at a cost of £80k 
per calendar month. Since then some have been paid on gross and some on actuals. Work is 
going on to rectify the issues and to mitigate the cost. 

- 14 -  

Page 48



This represents a £960k pressure on the budget, which is based on a prudent assumption that the 
problems continue for the whole year. However, the problems have now been identified and 
actions are being taken to rectify the issues. This means that we should be able to go back to 
paying on actuals, and have the right to clawback previous overpayments, which the providers are 
used to us doing, once the system is working and payments are up to date. We will update the 
forecast for period 6 budget monitoring once we have been able to test the fixes.   
System issues 
We are four months into the implementation of the new care system. Whilst the new system is 
already providing some additional discipline to the core processes, we are also experiencing some 
problems.  New processes have been introduced, for example, every packages of care has to be 
approved by a manager, and it is then further scrutinised by the brokerage team before a 
commitment is made. Higher costs packages are automatically escalated to service manager or 
heads of service for approval. 
However, at present we are still working through issues that are hampering full effectiveness, 
including: 
 The need to cancel and re-purchase a high volume of care packages of care on the system 

to correct data migration and other issues. This is diverting management and brokerage 
time and means that activity data is skewed. 11% of cases need further review and 
amendment.  Spend data has been subject to detailed manual scrutiny. 

 The system is not recording health contributions to care, which have to be calculated 
manually.  

 The system is not netting off health funded nursing care. 
 The client income functionality has a number of issues, which is slowing down financial 

assessments and making it difficult to report on income at present. Period 5 client income is 
therefore based on previous year’s data.  

 
 
Commissioning - £41k underspend 
 
Current underspend in this area has increased by £9k. This is due to reduced predicted 
expenditure on conferences and other minor budget lines. 
  
Direct Provision - £69k underspend 
 
Direct Provision service is currently forecasting an under spend as at August 2017.  This is due 
to two members of staff going on flexible retirement in September, after allowing for the 
associated cost with this  and additional out of borough client income at the High Path Day 
Centre. 
 
Directorate - £58k overspend 
 
The directors budget overspend is due to increased salary costs due to extension of the Head 
of Commissioning contract to allow for handover to the new assistant director starting in 
October 2017. 
 
 
Adult Social Care: other management action 2017/18  
 
A refreshed action plan is in place. Highlight reports are updated and reviewed each Monday by 
the Director at the weekly budget meeting.  
Vacancy management 

- 15 -  

Page 49



Current and upcoming vacancies have been identified which will be held, which will reduce 
salaries costs for the year by £170k. 
Home Care 
The priority at present is to get the call monitoring system working properly again, so we can pay 
all providers based on actuals. Once this is in place we can review earlier payments and seek to 
clawback over payments. At 80% recovery rate, this would reduce the over spend by £768k. 
MASCOT efficiencies 
The plan to develop a handy person scheme in MASCOT funded form the disabled facilities grant 
will provide an enhanced service to residents and generate cost efficiencies of £25k. 
Overall, the actions identified so far would reduce the forecast overspend by £963k.  
 

Adult Social Care 
Management Actions 

 
£’000 

Forecast variance August 1,593 
Vacancy management -170 
Home Care clawback (@80%) -768 
MASCOT -25 
Subtotal 630 
Total 963 

 
Other actions being taken include the new outcomes panel, which will be lead by the incoming 
assistant director and will review support planning practice case-by-case to ensure that we are 
exploring the best options to meet people’s needs. We are also opening new in-borough respite 
and transitions beds, to reduce the dependence on a single provider and out of borough 
placements. 
 
Medium term sustainability planning is focussing on three key areas: 

- Further integration with community health and closer working with St George’s hospital to 
better manage the demand that flows from hospital and reduce delayed transfers of care. 

- Developing a new community ‘front door’ for Community & Housing with voluntary sector 
and health partners, so that we can provide earlier and more holistic support to 
vulnerable people and families who are struggling before a crisis develops. This will also 
include an even larger role for our libraries.  

- A supported review of our learning disability offer to agree a set of fair and affordable 
outcomes, and develop a better in-borough offer to reduce dependency on expensive 
and poorly performing out of borough provisions. This will include further development of 
housing options and in-reach support from adult education into local provisions. 

 
C&H-Other Services  
 
 
Libraries- £30k overspend 
 
This service is forecasting a £30k overspend as at August 2017, this is a reduction of £3k since 
July. Libraries overspend continues to reduced but there is still an issue around income and 
staffing.  The service is currently working to reduce overspend. 
 
 
Merton Adult Education - £96k underspend 
 

- 16 -  

Page 50



No change from July’s for Merton Adult Education Commissioning.  Under spend is due to the 
under delivery by providers on commissioned contracts. 
 
 
Housing - £443k overspend 
 
This service overspend has increased since period 4 (July) by £56k. This is due to a revision in 
expected contribution from clients.  
Universal Credit is having a negative impact on the ability of this service to seek client 
contributions. Payments under Universal Credit are often delayed, and the recipients are in debt 
by the time they receive their first payment. This reduces our capacity to collect income from them.  
 
 
Housing 
 

Forecast 
Variances 

(Aug) 
£000 

Forecast 
Variances 

(July) 
£000 

Temporary Accommodation-Expenditure   1,204 1,204 
Temporary Accommodation-Client 
Contribution 

 
      (560) 

 
     (617) 

Temporary Accommodation-Housing 
Benefit Income 

 
(450) 

 
     (450) 

Temporary Accommodation-Subsidy 
Shortfall 

 
633 

 
       633 

Temporary Accommodation- Grant (406)       (406) 
Total Temporary Accommodation 421        364 
Housing Other- Over(under)spends  22          23 
Total 443         387 
 
 
Public Health - £7k underspend 
 
Public Health is now showing an improved position £7k under spend as at August 2017.  This is 
mainly due to the low activity levels on the Tier 4 Detox service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

- 17 -  

Page 51



Corporate Items 
 
The details comparing actual expenditure  up to 31 August 2017 against budget are contained in 
Appendix 2. The main areas of variance as at 31 August 2017 are:- 
 

Corporate Items 

Current 
Budget 
2017/18  

Full Year 
Forecast 

(Aug.) 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end 
(Aug.)  

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end 
(July) 

2016/17 
Year 
end 

Variance 
  £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 
Impact of Capital on revenue budget 13,415 13,265 (150) (150) 193 
Investment Income (1,186) (667) 519 590 (176) 
Pension Fund 3,350 3,350 0 0 (498) 
Pay and Price Inflation 736 736 0 0 (739) 
Contingencies and provisions 4,426 3,676 (750) (650) (3,495) 
Income Items (1,152) (1,152) 0 0 (330) 
Appropriations/Transfers (4,891) (4,891) 0 0 (3,091) 
Central Items 1,283 1,052 (231) (60) (8,329) 
Levies 933 933 0 0 0 
Depreciation and Impairment (22,318) (22,318) 0 0 0 
TOTAL CORPORATE PROVISIONS (6,687) (7,068) (381) (210) (8,136) 

 
 
The July position was for a net underspend of £0.210m. This has been updated to a net 
underspend of £0.381m based on August. The reasons for the change in forecast are :- 
 

• The forecast for investment income has been reviewed and it is estimated that investment 
come will be £0.667m in 2017/18, an improvement of £0.71k on the July forecast. 
 

• The forecast underspend in contingencies and provisions has increased by £100k. This is 
due to the forecast loss of Housing Benefit Administration grant being less than anticipated. 

 
 
 
4. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2017-21 
4.1 The Table below shows the movement in the 2017/21 corporate capital programme since 

the last meeting of Cabinet: 
 

Depts 
Current 
Budget 
17/18 

Variance 
Revised 
Budget 
17/18 

Current 
Budget 
18/19 

Variance 
Revised 
Budget 
18/19 

Revised 
Budget 
19/20 

Variance 
Revised 
Budget 
19/20 

Revised 
Budget 
20/21 

Variance 
Revised 
Budget 
20/221 

CS 25,890 (435) 25,455 16,798 0 16,798 10,626 0 10,626 2,135 0 2,135 

C&H 1,445 0 1,445 629 0 629 480 0 480 630 0 630 

CSF 8,230 0 8,230 16,905 0 16,905 7,536 0 7,536 650 0 650 

E&R 19,121 839 19,960 20,681 3,150 23,830 7,241 497 7,738 5,017 0 5,017 

TOTAL 54,686 404 55,090 55,013 3,150 58,162 25,883 497 26,380 8,432 0 8,432 

 
 
 
 
 
 

- 18 -  

Page 52



4.2 The table below summarises the position in respect of the Capital Programme as at July 2017. 
The detail is shown in Appendix 5a 
 

Merton Summary Capital Report – August 2017 Monitoring 
 

Department 

2017/18 Year to Date 2017-18 Full Year Forecast 

Actuals Profiled 
Budget Variance Final 

Budget 
Final 

Forecast 
Full 
Year 

Variance 
Corporate Services 713,999 667,306 46,693 25,454,950 18,245,066 (7,209,884) 
Community and Housing 173,751 335,023 (161,272) 1,444,770 982,280 (462,490) 
Children Schools & Families 1,213,417 4,354,930 (3,141,513) 8,230,360 8,275,084 44,724 
Environment and Regeneration 3,368,165 7,524,051 (4,155,886) 19,960,370 19,661,112 (299,258) 
Capital 5,469,332 12,881,310 (7,411,978) 55,090,450 47,163,542 (7,926,908) 

 
a) Corporate Services – Currently officers are projecting an overall underspend of £7.2 

million. This comprises two projected overspends on Customer Contact /EDRMS of 
£350k and Social Care IT System £123k in total, officers are currently trying to mitigate 
these overspends and finalise the split between capital and revenue budgets; and three 
projected underspends the Acquisitions Budget £6.4 million, the Bidding Fund £1.25 
million and BI It systems projects £64k. One new scheme has been added for £125k for 
Morden Park Courtyard, this will be funded by a £48k donation and a £77k Revenue 
Contribution. 

b) Community and Housing – All schemes are projecting full spend apart from Disabled 
Facilities Grants which are currently projecting a £462k underspend.  

c) Children, Schools and Families – Currently project £195k overspend on Primary Scheme 
because school contributions have not been added – school contributions will be tabled 
at the meeting. Officers are currently projecting underspends on three secondary schools 
totalling £155k (Harris Academy Merton £22k Harris Academy Wimbledon £126k and 
Rutlish £8k) – these are in year projected underspends and officers are currently 
finalising the multi-year profile of these schemes. Officers are also projecting a £4k on 
Perseid special school, again it is envisaged that this is a timing delay. 

d) Environment and Regeneration – Officers are currently projecting a £299k underspend 
against budget, this is mainly caused by the projected underspend on Industrial Estates – 
the utilisation of this budget is currently under review. A Heritage Lottery Fund Project is 
being added to the Programme totalling £4,465k in 2017-20, this is being funded by a 
£560k (being re-profiled from 2017/18) contribution from the bidding fund and £3,905 HLF 
capital funding.  

 
4.3 Appendix 5b details the adjustments being made to the Capital Programme this month. The 

following adjustment will require Cabinet and Council approval: 
 

Scheme 2017/18 
Budget  

2018/19 
Budget  

2019/20 
Budget  Funding/Re-profiling 

Council and Cabinet Approval         

Capital Bidding Fund (560,100) 0   Virement 

Parks - Canons Parks for the People 180,450 1,117,470 195,540 HLF Funding 

Mitcham Area Regeneration - Parks for the 
People 638,780 2,032,100 301,040 HLF Funding & Virement 

Total 259,130 3,149,570 496,580   
 

Scheme 2017/18 
Budget  Funding/Re-profiling 

Cabinet Only Approval     

Morden Park House Courtyard 125,000 £48k Donation and £77k Revenue Contribution 

Total 125,000   
 

- 19 -  

Page 53



 
 
 

 
4.4 Appendix 5c details the impact of all the adjustments to the Capital Programme have on the 

funding of the programme in 2017/18 and 2018/19. The table below summarises the 
movement in 2017/18 funding since the July 2017 Monitoring Report: 
 

Depts. 
Approved 

Budget 
17/18 

Adjustments 
New 

External 
Funding 

New 
Internal 
Funding 

Re-
profiling 

Revised 
Budget 
17/18 

Corporate Services 25,890 (560) 48 77 0 25,455 

Community & Housing 1,445 0 0 0 0 1,445 

Children Schools & Families 8,230 0 0 0 0 8,230 
Environment and 
Regeneration 19,121 560 259 20 0 19,960 

Total 54,686 0 307 97 0 55,090 

 
4.5 The table below compares capital expenditure (£000s) to August 2017 to that achieved 

over the last few years: 

Depts. Spend  To August 
2014 

Spend  
To 

August 
2015 

Spend  To 
August 

2016 

Spend 
to 

August 
2017 

Variance 
2014 to 

2017 

Variance 
2015 to 

2017 

Variance 
2016 to 

2017 

CS 216 431 568 714 498 283 146 
C&H 109 23 119 174 65 151 55 
CSF 5,854 6,719 2,032 1,213 (4,641) (5,505) (819) 
E&R 1,396 1,889 4,343 3,368 1,972 1,479 (975) 
                
Total Capital 7,575 9,062 7,062 5,469 (2,106) (3,593) (1,593) 

        Outturn £000s 
36,869 29,327 

       
30,626  

    Budget £000s   55,090 
   Projected Spend August 2017 £000s  47,164 
   Percentage Spend to Budget  9.93% 
   

% Spend to Outturn/Projection 20.55% 30.90% 23.06% 11.60% 

   Monthly Spend to Achieve Projected Outturn 
£000s     4,633 

    
4.6 The table shows that spend during August 2017 was considerably below this target. Officers 

will be undertaking a detailed review of profiles and year end projections as part of September 
Monitoring to improve in year budget profiling and year end projection: 

Department 
Spend  
To July 
2017 
£000s 

Spend  
To 
August 
2017 
£000s 

Increase 
£000s 

        
CS 417 714 297 
C&H 114 174 60 
CSF 682 1,213 531 
E&R 2,642 3,368 727 
        
Total Capital 3,855 5,469 1,615 

 
 
 
 
 

      
- 20 -  

Page 54



 
 
 
 
 

5. DELIVERY OF SAVINGS FOR 2017/18 
 

Department 
Target 

Savings 
2017/18 

Projected 
Savings  
2017/18 

Period 5 
Forecast 
Shortfall 

Period 4 
Forecast 
Shortfall 

Period 
Forecast 
Shortfall 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 % 
Corporate Services 1,484 1,288 196 118 8.0% 
Children Schools and 
Families 1,110 1,093 17 37 3.3% 
Community and Housing 2,673 1,913 760 642 24% 
Environment and 
Regeneration 3,050 2,148 1,447 902  29.6% 
            
Total 8,317 6,618 2,420 1,699 20.4% 

 
Appendix 6 details the progress on savings for 2017/18 by department. 
Details of prior year savings shortfall and the full year effect in 17/18 will be reported next month. 

Department 
Target 

Savings 
2016/17 

 2016/17 
Shortfall 

2017/18 
Projected 
shortfall 

2018/19 
Projected 
shortfall 

  £000's £000's £000's £000's 
Corporate Services 2,316 288 30 30 
Children Schools and 
Families 2,191 0 0 0 

Community and Housing 5,379 1,727 

C&H Savings 
mitigated by 
growth 
received in 
17/18 0 

Environment and 
Regeneration 4,771 2,356 612 300 
          
Total 14,657 4,371 642 330 

 
Appendix 7 details the progress on savings for 2016/17 by department and the impact on the 

current year. 
 
 
6. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 
 
6.1 All relevant bodies have been consulted. 
 
7. TIMETABLE 
 
7.1 In accordance with current financial reporting timetables. 
 
8. FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 All relevant implications have been addressed in the report.  
 
9. LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 All relevant implications have been addressed in the report. 
 

- 21 -  

Page 55



10. HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Not applicable 
 
11. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 Not applicable 
 
12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 The emphasis placed on the delivery of revenue savings within the financial monitoring 

report will be enhanced during 2016/17, the risk of part non-delivery of savings is already 
contained on the key strategic risk register and will be kept under review. 

 
13. APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED WITH THIS 

REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT  
 Appendix 1-   Detailed position table 

Appendix 2 –  Detailed Corporate Items table 
Appendix 3 –   Pay and Price Inflation  
Appendix 4 –  Treasury Management: Outlook 

 Appendix 5a –  Current Capital Programme 2017/18 
 Appendix 5b –  Adjustments to the Current Capital Programme 2017/18 
 Appendix 5c –  Funding Current Capital Programme 2017/18 & 2018/19 
 Appendix 6 –  Progress on savings 2017/18 

Appendix 7 –  Progress on savings 2016/17 
  

 
 
14. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
14.1 Budgetary Control files held in the Corporate Services department. 
 
15. REPORT AUTHOR 
− Name: Roger Kershaw 

− Tel: 020 8545 3458 

− email:   roger.kershaw@merton.gov.uk  
 
  

- 22 -  

Page 56



APPENDIX 1 
 

Summary Position as at 
31st August 2017 
 

        

  

Original 
Budget 
2017/18 

Current 
Budget 
2017/18 

Year to 
Date 

Budget 
(Aug) 

Year to 
Date Actual 

(Aug) 

Full Year 
Forecast 

(Aug) 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end 
(Aug) 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end 
(July) 

Outturn 
variance 
2016/17 

  £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000 

Department                 
3A.Corporate Services 10,866 26,507 11,101 13,844 26,142 (365) (369) (1,287) 
3B.Children, Schools and Families 52,579 48,735 73,082 4,600 49,735 1,001 1,040 1,154 
3C.Community and Housing                 
      Adult Social Care 59,402 56,160 20,889 23,622 57,723 1,563 494 9,056 
      Libraries & Adult Education 2,691 2,023 958 1,306 1,957 (66) (63) 413 
      Housing General Fund 2,224 1,937 654 479 2,380 443 387 655 
3D.Public Health 0 0 (920) (3,559) (7) (7) 48 16 
3E.Environment & Regeneration 23,184 17,952 7,155 (5,585) 17,663 (289) 51 1,011 

Overheads 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 

NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 150,946 153,313 112,919 34,707 155,593 2,280 1,588 11,030 
3E.Corporate Items                 
Impact of Capital on revenue budget 13,415 13,415 2,793 992 13,265 (150) (150) 193 
Other Central items (19,224) (21,035) (5,198) (19) (21,266) (231) (14) (8,329) 
Levies 933 933 393 393 933 0 0 0 

TOTAL CORPORATE PROVISIONS (4,876) (6,687) (2,013) 1,366 (7,068) (381) (164) (8,136) 
Less corporate overheads   (556)     (556)       

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 146,070 146,070 110,906 36,073 147,969 1,899 1,424 2,894 
                  
Funding                 
- Business Rates (35,483) (35,483) 0 (79) (35,483) 0 0 0 
- RSG (15,520) (15,520) (7,643) (7,643) (15,520) 0 0 0 
- Section 31 Grant  (1,035) (1,035) (464) (464) (1,035) 0 0 5 
- New Homes Bonus (4,150) (4,150) (2,114) (2,114) (4,150) 0 0 (542) 
- PFI Grant (4,797) (4,797) (1,199) (1,199) (4,797) 0 0 0 
- Adult Social Care Grant 2017/18 (751) (751) 0 0 (751) 0 0 0 

Grants (61,736) (61,736) (11,420) (11,499) (61,736) 0 0 (537) 
Collection Fund - Council Tax Surplus(-)/Deficit (1,386) (1,386) 0 0 (1,386) 0 0 0 
Collection Fund - Business Rates Surplus(-
)/Deficit (380) (380) 0 0 (380) 0 0 0 
Council Tax           0 0 0 
- General (82,244) (82,244) 0 0 (82,244) 0 0 0 

- WPCC (318) (318) 0 0 (318) 0 0 0 

Council Tax and Collection Fund (84,329) (84,329) 0 0 (84,329) 0 0 0 
FUNDING (146,065) (146,065) (11,420) (11,499) (146,065) 0 0 (537) 
                  

NET 5 5 99,486 24,574 1,904 1,899 1,424 2,357 

 

- 23 -  

Page 57



Appendix 2 
 

3E.Corporate Items 
Council 
2017/18 

Original 
Budget 
2017/18 

Current 
Budget 
2017/18  

Year to 
Date 

Budget 
(Aug.) 

Year to 
Date 

Actual 
(Aug.) 

Full Year 
Forecast 

(Aug.) 

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end 
(Aug.)  

Forecast 
Variance 
at year 

end (July) 

Outturn 
Variance 
2016/17 

  £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 
                    
     Cost of Borrowing 13,415 13,415 13,415 2,793 992 13,265 (150) (150) 193 
     Use for Capital Programme             0  0  0  
Impact of Capital on revenue budget 13,415 13,415 13,415 2,793 992 13,265 (150) (150) 193 
                    
Investment Income (1,186) (1,186) (1,186) (494) (164) (667) 519 590 (176) 
                    
Pension Fund 3,350 3,350 3,350 0 0 3,350 0 0 (498) 
                    
     Provision for excess inflation 451 451 436   0 436 0 0 (439) 

     Utilities Inflation Provision 300 300 300   0 300 0 0 (300) 
Pay and Price Inflation 751 751 736 0 0 736 0 0 (739) 
                    
     Contingency  1,500 1,500 1,500   0 1,250 (250) (250) (821) 
     Single Status/Equal Pay 100 100 100   1 100 0 0 (60) 
     Bad Debt Provision 500 500 500   0 500 0 0 (271) 
     Loss of income arising from P3/P4 400 400 400   0 0 (400) (400) (400) 
     Loss of HB Admin grant 200 200 200   0 100 (100) 0 (200) 
     Reduction in Education Services 
Grant 819 819 0   0 0 0 0 0 
     Apprenticeship Levy 450 450 450 188 192 450 0 0 0 
     Revenuisation and miscellaneous 889 889 1,276   585 1,276 0 0 (1,743) 
Contingencies and provisions 4,858 4,858 4,426 188 778 3,676 (750) (650) (3,495) 
                    
     Other income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (280) 
     CHAS IP/Dividend (1,152) (1,152) (1,152)   0 (1,152) 0 0 (50) 
Income items (1,152) (1,152) (1,152) 0 0 (1,152) 0 0 (330) 
                    
Appropriations: CS Reserves (667) (667) (915) (915) (248) (915) 0 0 0 
Appropriations: E&R Reserves 4 4 (450) (450) (143) (450) 0 0 2 
Appropriations: CSF Reserves 283 283 117 117 255 117 0 0 0 
Appropriations: C&H Reserves (104) (104) (150) (150) (46) (150) 0 0 0 
Appropriations:Public Health Reserves (600) (600) (600) (600) 0 (600)     0 
Appropriations:Corporate Reserves (2,443) (2,443) (2,893) (2,893) (450) (2,893) 0 0 (3,093) 
Appropriations/Transfers (3,528) (3,528) (4,891) (4,891) (633) (4,891) 0 0 (3,091) 
                    
Depreciation and Impairment (22,318) (22,318) (22,318) 0 0 (22,318) 0 0 0 
                    
Other Central Items (19,224) (19,224) (21,035) (5,198) (19) (21,266) (231) (60) (8,329) 
                    
Levies 933 933 933 393 393 933 0 0 0 

                    

TOTAL CORPORATE PROVISIONS (4,876) (4,876) (6,687) (2,013) 1,366 (7,068) (381) (210) (8,136) 

 
 
 

- 24 -  

Page 58



Appendix 3 

Pay and Price Inflation as at August 2017 
In 2017/18, the budget includes 1% for increases in pay and 1.5% for increases in general prices, 
with an additional amount of £0.451m which is held  to assist services that may experience price 
increases greatly in excess of the inflation allowance provided when setting the budget. At present it 
is not anticipated that there will be a significant call on this budget and it will only be released when it 
is certain that it will not be required. 
 
Pay: 

The local government pay award for 2017/18 was agreed last year covering 2016/17 and 2017/18. 
For the lowest paid (those on spinal points 6-17) this agreed a pay rise of between 6.6% and 1.01% 
in the first year, and between 3.4% and 1.3% in 2017/18. Those on spinal points 18-49 received 1% 
in year one and the same again in 2017/18. The offer also included a joint review of the NJC pay 
spine and term-time working for school support staff. Departmental budgets include provision for the 
2017/18 pay award.  

Prices:  

The Consumer Prices Index (CPI) 12-month rate was 2.9% in August  2017, up from 2.6% in July 
2017. Rising prices for clothing and motor fuels were the main contributors to the increase in the rate 
between July and August 2017. Air fares also rose between July and August but the rise was smaller 
than between the same two months a year ago and so resulted in a partially offsetting, downward 
contribution. 

CPIH , a measure of UK consumer price inflation that includes owner occupiers’ housing costs, 12-
month inflation rate was 2.7% in August  2017, up from 2.6% in July. 
The RPI 12-month rate for August 2017 stood at 3.9%, up from 3.6% in July 2017. 
 
Outlook for inflation: 
The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) sets monetary  policy to meet the 2% 
inflation target and in a way that helps to sustain growth and employment. At its meeting ending on 13 
September  2017, the Committee voted by a majority of 7-2 to maintain Bank Rate at 0.25%. The 
Committee voted unanimously to maintain the stock of sterling non-financial investment-grade 
corporate bond purchases, financed by the issuance of central bank reserves, at £10 billion. The 
Committee also voted unanimously to maintain the stock of UK government bond purchases, 
financed by the issuance of central bank reserves, at £435 billion. The August 2017 Inflation Report 
was published on the 3 August 2017.  
 
In the minutes to its meeting, the MPC noted that “The circumstances since the referendum on EU 
membership, and the accompanying depreciation of sterling, have been exceptional. Monetary policy 
cannot prevent either the necessary real adjustment as the United Kingdom moves towards its new 
international trading arrangements or the weaker real income growth that is likely to accompany that 
adjustment over the next few years. The MPC’s remit specifies that, in such exceptional 
circumstances, the Committee must balance any trade-off between the speed at which it intends to 
return inflation sustainably to the target and the support that monetary policy provides to jobs and 
activity. Recent developments suggest that remaining spare capacity in the economy is being 
absorbed a little more rapidly than expected at the time of the August Report, and that inflation 
remains likely to overshoot the 2% target over the next three years.” 
 

  Page 59



In the August 2017 quarterly Inflation Report, the MPC sets out its view on the prospects for inflation 
and the report notes that  “Although CPI inflation has been volatile, it has risen over 2017 and was 
2.6% in June. It is expected to remain around 2¾% in the near term, boosted by higher import prices 
as a result of the 
depreciation in sterling, before easing back towards the 2% target during 2018. Growth in firms’ 
imported costs appears to have started moderating. Domestically generated inflation appears to have 
remained relatively subdued and inflation expectations remain consistent with the MPC’s 2% target.” 
Since the August inflation report, the MPC has met on 13 September and kept the Bank Base Rate at 
0.25% but concluded that “there remain considerable risks to the outlook, which include the response 
of households, businesses and financial markets to developments related to the process of EU 
withdrawal. The MPC will respond to these developments as they occur insofar as they affect the 
behaviour of households and businesses, and the outlook for inflation. The Committee will continue to 
monitor closely the incoming evidence on these and other developments, and stands ready to 
respond to changes in the economic outlook as they unfold to ensure a sustainable return of inflation 
to the 2% target.” 
 
The latest inflation and unemployment forecasts for the UK economy, based on a summary of 
independent forecasts are set out in the following table:- 

 
Table 11: Forecasts for the UK Economy 
Source: HM Treasury - Forecasts for the UK Economy (September 2017) 
    
 2017 (Quarter 4) Lowest %  Highest %  Average %  
CPI 2.6 3.4 2.9 
RPI 3.3 4.4 3.8 
LFS Unemployment Rate 4.2 5.2 4.6 
    
 2018 (Quarter 4) Lowest %  Highest %  Average %  
CPI 1.6 3.0 2.4 
RPI 2.4 3.9 3.2 
LFS Unemployment Rate 3.9 5.4 4.7 
    

 
 
Clearly where the level of inflation during the year exceeds the amount provided for in the budget, this 
will put pressure on services to stay within budget and will require effective monitoring and control. 
 
Independent medium-term projections for the calendar years 2017 to 2021 are summarised in the 
following table:- 
 
 

Source: HM Treasury - Forecasts for the UK Economy (August 2017) 
  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
 % % % % % 
CPI 2.7 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.9 
RPI 3.5 3.5 3.0 3.0 3.0 
LFS Unemployment Rate 4.5 4.7 4.8 4.8 4.8 

 
  

  Page 60



Appendix 4 
Treasury Management: Outlook 
At its meeting ending on 13 September  2017, the Committee voted by a majority of 7-2 to maintain 
Bank Rate at 0.25%. The Committee voted unanimously to maintain the stock of sterling non-financial 
investment-grade corporate bond purchases, financed by the issuance of central bank reserves, at 
£10 billion. The Committee also voted unanimously to maintain the stock of UK government bond 
purchases, financed by the issuance of central bank reserves, at £435 billion. 
 
In the Bank of England’s quarterly Inflation report for August 2017, the MPC set out its most recent 
assessment of the outlook for inflation and activity and outlined its view on the long-term outlook for 
interest rates. The MPC  noted that “CPI inflation has remained above the 2% target as rises in import 
prices following the steep fall in the sterling exchange rate last year continue to pass through to 
consumer prices.... Overall, given a market-implied path for Bank Rate that rises by around ½ 
percentage point over the next three years, growth is projected to be modest and unemployment to 
stay close to its current rate. Import price pressures begin to fade in the second half of the forecast 
period, but are still keeping inflation above the 2% target at the end.”  
In the minutes to the MPC meeting ending on 13 September 2017, it was stated that “All MPC 
members continue to judge that, if the economy follows a path broadly consistent with the August 
Inflation Report central projection, then monetary policy could need to be tightened by a somewhat 
greater extent over the forecast period than current market expectations. A majority of MPC members 
judge that, if the economy continues to follow a path consistent with the prospect of a continued 
erosion of slack and a gradual rise in underlying inflationary pressure then, with the further lessening 
in the trade-off that this would imply, some withdrawal of monetary stimulus is likely to be appropriate 
over the coming months in order to return inflation sustainably to target. All members agree that any 
prospective increases in Bank Rate would be expected to be at a gradual pace and to a limited 
extent.” 
 
The MPC’s forecasts of Bank Base Rate in recent Quarterly Inflation Reports which were made pre-
Brexit up to May 2016 are summarised in the following table:- 
 
 End 

Q,3 
2017 

End 
Q,4 

2017 

End 
Q.1 

2018 

End 
Q.2 

2018 

End 
Q.3 

2018 

End 
Q.4 

2018 

End 
Q.1 

2019 

End 
Q.2 

2019 

End 
Q.3 

2019 

End 
Q.4 

2019 

End 
Q.1 

2020 

End 
Q.2 

2020 

End 
Q,3 

2020 
Aug.’17 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 
May ‘17 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5  
Feb’17 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7   
Nov.’16 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4    
Aug.’16 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2     
May ‘16 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8      
Feb. ‘16 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1       
Nov ‘15 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3        
Aug.’15 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.7         
May ‘15 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4          
Feb.’15 1.0 1.1 1.1           
Nov ‘14 1.7 1.7            
Aug.’14 2.3             
Source: Bank of England Inflation Reports 
 
The MPC makes its decisions in the context of the monetary policy forward guidance announced 
alongside the publication of the August 2013 Inflation Report. This guidance was summarised and 
reported in the July 2013 monitoring report. 
 
The Inflation Report for February 2014 provided a summary of the Bank of England’s approach to its 
proposed monetary policy as the economy recovers and once the unemployment threshold has been 
reached:- 
 

  Page 61



• The MPC sets policy to achieve the 2% inflation target, and, subject to that, to support the 
Government’s economic policies, including those for growth and employment. 

• Despite the sharp fall in unemployment, there remains scope to absorb spare capacity further 
before raising Bank Rate. 

• When Bank Rate does begin to rise, the appropriate path so as to eliminate slack over the next 
two to three years and keep inflation close to the target is expected to be gradual. 

• The actual path of Bank Rate over the next few years will, however, depend on economic 
developments. 

• Even when the economy has returned to normal levels of capacity and inflation is close to the 
target, the appropriate level of Bank Rate is likely to be materially below the 5% level set on 
average by the Committee prior to the financial crisis. 

• The MPC intends to maintain the stock of purchased assets at least until the first rise in Bank 
Rate. 

• Monetary policy may have a role to play in mitigating risks to financial stability, but only as a last 
line of defence if those risks cannot be contained by the substantial range of policy actions 
available to the Financial Policy Committee and other regulatory authorities. 

 
Changes to the Bank Base Rate will depend on how quickly the economy recovers and will be set to 
achieve the inflation target of 2%.  
  
The MPC sets monetary policy to meet the 2% target in the medium term and in a way that helps to 
sustain growth and employment.   

  

  Page 62



Appendix 5a 
 

Capital Budget Monitoring August 2017  
       Please note totals are now at the top of activity rather than the bottom 

       

  

2017/18 Year to Date 2017-18 Full Year Forecast 

Actuals Profiled 
Budget Variance Final 

Budget 
Final 

Forecast 
Full 
Year 

Variance 
Capital 5,469,332 12,881,310 (7,411,978) 55,090,450 47,163,542 (7,926,908) 
Corporate Services 713,999 667,306 46,693 25,454,950 18,245,066 (7,209,884) 
Business Improvement 86,879 297,306 (210,427) 1,810,280 2,218,976 408,696 
Customer Contact Programme 5,393 0 5,393 1,006,420 1,356,420 350,000 
IT Systems Projects 3,905 190,921 (187,016) 405,460 341,260 (64,200) 
Social Care IT System 77,582 106,385 (28,803) 398,400 521,296 122,896 
Facilities Management Total 176,005 142,500 33,505 4,368,030 4,368,030 0 
Works to other buildings 53,373 122,500 (69,127) 457,500 457,500 0 
Civic Centre (47,546) 50,000 (97,546) 275,000 275,000 0 
Invest to Save schemes 217,441 (150,000) 367,441 3,188,720 3,188,720 0 
Water Safety Works (28,237) 45,000 (73,237) 153,990 153,990 0 
Asbestos Safety Works (19,026) 75,000 (94,026) 292,820 292,820 0 
Infrastructure & Transactions 474,952 260,000 214,952 2,268,190 2,268,190 0 
Disaster recovery site 90,952 175,000 (84,048) 513,790 513,790 0 
Planned Replacement 
Programme 383,999 85,000 298,999 1,754,400 1,754,400 0 
Resources (23,837)   (23,837) 165,870 165,870 0 
Financial System (23,837)   (23,837) 18,070 18,070 0 
ePayments System     0 106,800 106,800 0 
Invoice Scanning SCIS/FIS     0 41,000 41,000 0 
Corporate Items   (32,500) 32,500 16,842,580 9,224,000 (7,618,580) 
Housing company       9,188,000 9,188,000   
Acquisitions Budget     0 6,372,180 0 (6,372,180) 
Capital Bidding Fund   (32,500) 32,500 1,246,400 0 (1,246,400) 
Multi Functioning Device (MFD)     0 36,000 36,000 0 
Community and Housing 173,751 335,023 (161,272) 1,444,770 982,280 (462,490) 
Adult Social Care 8,907 36,594 (27,687) 83,600 83,600 0 
ASC IT Equipment 8,907 14,724 (5,817) 39,850 39,850 0 
Telehealth   21,870 (21,870) 43,750 43,750 0 
Housing 147,065 101,549 45,516 962,490 500,000 (462,490) 
Disabled Facilities Grant 165,034 101,549 63,485 962,490 500,000 (462,490) 
Major Projects - Social Care H (17,969)   (17,969)     0 
Libraries 17,779 196,880 (179,101) 398,680 398,680 0 
Library Enhancement Works 1,897 180,000 (178,103) 200,000 200,000 0 
Major Library Projects 15,602 16,880 (1,278) 98,680 98,680 0 
Libraries IT 280   280 100,000 100,000 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Page 63



Appendix 5a 
 

Capital Budget Monitoring August 2017  
       Please note totals are now at the top of activity rather than the bottom 

       

  

2017/18 Year to Date 2017-18 Full Year Forecast 

Actuals Profiled 
Budget Variance Final 

Budget 
Final 

Forecast 
Full 
Year 

Variance 
Children Schools & Families 1,213,417 4,354,930 (3,141,513) 8,230,360 8,275,084 44,724 
Primary Schools (513,196) 678,500 (1,191,696) 1,030,120 1,225,910 195,790 
West Wimbledon   50,000 (50,000) 56,090 50,000 (6,090) 
Hatfeild (798) 8,000 (8,798) 21,330 21,330 0 
Hillcross 11,134 50,000 (38,866) 50,000 41,000 (9,000) 
Joseph Hood 528 40,000 (39,472) 42,720 28,720 (14,000) 
Dundonald (184,764)   (184,764) 96,070 137,070 41,000 
Merton Abbey 45   45     0 
Merton Park 528 20,000 (19,472) 20,000 11,000 (9,000) 
Pelham (18,780) 65,000 (83,780) 65,000 50,000 (15,000) 
Poplar (8,569)   (8,569) 1,000 1,000 0 
Wimbledon Chase   60,000 (60,000) 60,000 80,000 20,000 
Wimbledon Park   20,000 (20,000) 20,000 20,000 0 
Malmesbury   27,000 (27,000) 27,000 34,000 7,000 
Morden   100,000 (100,000) 100,000 110,000 10,000 
Liberty   20,000 (20,000) 20,000 17,000 (3,000) 
Links 3,845 20,000 (16,155) 20,000 17,000 (3,000) 
Singlegate 17,375 45,000 (27,625) 194,290 214,290 20,000 
St Marks   70,000 (70,000) 70,000 95,000 25,000 
Lonesome 17,602   17,602 61,500 95,000 33,500 
Sherwood     0   83,000 83,000 
Stanford 1,056 50,000 (48,944) 50,000 50,000 0 
William Morris   25,000 (25,000) 26,620 42,000 15,380 
Unlocated Primary School Proj (316,535)   (316,535)     0 
St Mary's (RC) (35,862) 8,500 (44,362) 28,500 28,500 0 
Secondary School 1,424,731 2,917,500 (1,492,769) 5,076,630 4,921,604 (155,026) 
Harris Academy Morden     0 50,060 50,060 0 
Harris Academy Merton 1,271,242 1,737,500 (466,258) 3,127,020 3,105,520 (21,500) 
St Mark's Academy     0     0 
Rutlish     0 88,000 80,000 (8,000) 
Harris Academy Wimbledon 153,489 1,180,000 (1,026,511) 1,811,550 1,686,024 (125,526) 
SEN 165,561 678,070 (512,509) 1,654,830 1,658,790 3,960 
Perseid 113,636 547,000 (433,364) 1,273,760 1,277,720 3,960 
Cricket Green   1,070 (1,070) 1,070 1,070 0 
Secondary School Autism Unit     0 30,000 30,000 0 
Unlocated SEN 51,926 130,000 (78,074) 350,000 350,000 0 
CSF Schemes 151,625 80,860 70,765 468,780 468,780 0 
CSF - IT Schemes     0     0 
School Equipment Loans     0 104,900 104,900 0 
Devolved Formula Capital 151,625 80,860 70,765 363,880 363,880 0 

 
 
 

  Page 64



 
Appendix 5a 

 
Capital Budget Monitoring August 2017  

       Please note totals are now at the top of activity rather than the bottom 

       

  

2017/18 Year to Date 2017-18 Full Year Forecast 

Actuals Profiled 
Budget Variance Final 

Budget 
Final 

Forecast 
Full 
Year 

Variance 
Environment and Regeneration 3,368,165 7,524,051 (4,155,886) 19,960,370 19,661,112 (299,258) 
Public Protection and Developm 139,325 69,022 70,303 203,240 203,240 0 
Off Street Parking - P&D     0     0 
CCTV Investment 139,325 57,522 81,803 191,740 191,740 0 
Public Protection and Developm   11,500 (11,500) 11,500 11,500 0 
Street Scene & Waste (138,871) 1,482,580 (1,621,451) 1,640,080 1,640,080 0 
Fleet Vehicles 142,302 380,000 (237,698) 350,000 350,000 0 
GPS Vehical Tracking Equipment 13,146 7,990 5,156 159,990 159,990 0 
Alley Gating Scheme 22,093 10,000 12,093 40,000 40,000 0 
Smart Bin Leases - Street Scen     0 5,500 5,500 0 
Waste SLWP (316,412) 1,084,590 (1,401,002) 1,084,590 1,084,590 0 
Sustainable Communities 3,367,711 5,972,449 (2,604,738) 18,117,050 17,817,792 (299,258) 
Street Trees 7,656 33,300 (25,644) 60,000 60,000 0 
Unallocated Roads Budget (unsp (33,311)   (33,311)   0 0 
Highways & Footways 1,375,149 2,017,269 (642,120) 4,414,750 4,414,750 0 
Cycle Route Improvements 315,905 233,154 82,751 859,740 860,100 360 
Mitcham Transport Improvements (170) 112,880 (113,050) 307,880 307,880 0 
Electric Vehicle Infrastructur   15,000 (15,000) 15,000 15,000 0 
Unallocated Tfl     0   0 0 
Tackling Traffic Congestion 240,374 100,824 139,550 410,950 410,950 0 
Industrial Estates   26,880 (26,880) 452,750 104,750 (348,000) 
Colliers Wood Area Regeneratio 134,699 158,610 (23,911) 188,610 188,610 0 
Mitcham Area Regeneration 612,101 257,664 354,437 2,082,260 2,082,260 0 
Morden Area Regeneration 8,408   8,408 200,000 200,000 0 
Borough Regeneration 110,678 79,870 30,808 79,870 127,870 48,000 
Morden Leisure Centre 506,872 3,079,958 (2,573,086) 8,029,540 8,038,295 8,755 
Sports Facilities 27,334 20,000 7,334 530,960 524,460 (6,500) 
Parks 62,015 (216,850) 278,865 430,850 428,977 (1,873) 
Mortuary Provision   53,890 (53,890) 53,890 53,890 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Page 65



  
Vi

re
m

en
t, 

Re
-p

ro
fil

in
g 

an
d 

N
ew

 F
un

di
ng

 - 
Au

gu
st

 2
01

7 
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 5

b 

  
  

20
17

/1
8 

B
ud

ge
t  

V
ir

em
en

ts
 

A
dj

us
te

d 
&

 N
ew

 
Fu

nd
in

g 
R

ep
ro

fil
in

g 
R

ev
is

ed
 

20
17

/1
8 

B
ud

ge
t  

20
18

/1
9 

B
ud

ge
t  

R
ep

ro
fil

in
g 

R
ev

is
ed

 
20

18
/1

9 
B

ud
ge

t  
N

ar
ra

tiv
e 

  
  

£ 
£ 

£ 
£ 

£ 
£ 

  
£ 

  

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
ap

ita
l B

id
di

ng
 F

un
d 

(2
) 

1,
80

6,
50

0 
  

  
(5

60
,1

00
) 

1,
24

6,
40

0 
0 

  
0 

  

M
or

de
n 

Pa
rk

 H
ou

se
 C

ou
rty

ar
d 

(1
) 

0 
  

12
5,

00
0 

  
12

5,
00

0 
  

  
  

£4
8k

 D
on

at
io

n 
an

d 
£7

7k
 R

ev
en

ue
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

t &
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Pa
rk

s -
 C

an
on

s P
ar

ks
 fo

r t
he

 P
eo

pl
e 

(2
) 

15
,4

00
 

  
18

0,
45

0 
  

19
5,

85
0 

0 
1,

11
7,

47
0 

1,
11

7,
47

0 
V

ire
m

en
t -

 B
id

di
ng

 fu
nd

  (
C

an
on

s p
ar

k 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

sc
he

m
e)

 

M
itc

ha
m

 A
re

a 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

- P
ar

ks
 fo

r t
he

 
Pe

op
le

 
(2

) 
0 

  
78

,6
80

 
56

0,
10

0 
63

8,
78

0 
1,

25
0,

00
0 

2,
03

2,
10

0 
3,

28
2,

10
0 

V
ire

m
en

t -
 B

id
di

ng
 fu

nd
  (

C
an

on
s p

ar
k 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
sc

he
m

e)
 

Im
p 

PR
W

 R
un

s M
aw

so
n 

C
lse

 - 
K

in
gs

to
n 

R
d 

  
0 

  
20

,0
00

 
  

20
,0

00
 

0 
  

0 
 S

ec
tio

n 
10

6 
Fu

nd
ed

 

T
ot

al
  

  
1,

82
1,

90
0 

0 
40

4,
13

0 
0 

2,
22

6,
03

0 
1,

25
0,

00
0 

3,
14

9,
57

0 
4,

39
9,

57
0 

  

1)
 R

eq
ui

re
s 

C
ab

in
et

 A
pp

ro
va

l 
 

2)
 R

eq
ui

re
s 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Vi

re
m

en
t, 

Re
-p

ro
fil

in
g 

an
d 

N
ew

 F
un

di
ng

 - 
Au

gu
st

 2
01

7 
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 5

b 

  
  

20
19

/2
0 

B
ud

ge
t  

R
ep

ro
fil

in
g 

R
ev

is
ed

 
20

19
/2

0 
B

ud
ge

t  

20
20

/2
1 

B
ud

ge
t  

R
ep

ro
fil

in
g 

R
ev

is
ed

 
20

20
/2

1 
B

ud
ge

t  
N

ar
ra

tiv
e 

  
  

£ 
£ 

£ 
£ 

£ 
£ 

  

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

t &
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Pa
rk

s -
 C

an
on

s P
ar

ks
 fo

r t
he

 P
eo

pl
e 

(2
) 

0 
19

5,
54

0 
19

5,
54

0 
  

  
  

  

M
itc

ha
m

 A
re

a 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

- P
ar

ks
 fo

r t
he

 
Pe

op
le

 
(2

) 
0 

30
1,

04
0 

30
1,

04
0 

  
  

  
  

T
ot

al
  

  
0 

49
6,

58
0 

49
6,

58
0 

0 
0 

0 
  

 

 
 

Page 66



Appendix 5c 
 

Capital Programme Funding Summary 2017/18 

    

  

Funded 
from 

Merton’s 
Resources 

Funded by 
Grant & Capital 
Contributions 

Total 

  £000s £000s £000s 

Revised Funding - July 2017 Monitoring 41,031 13,655 54,686 

Corporate Services       

Morden Park House Courtyard 77 48 125 

Rnvironment and Regeneration       

Parks - Canons Parks for the People 0 180 180 

Mitcham Area Regeneration - Parks for the People 0 79 79 

Imp PRW Runs Mawson Clse - Kingston Rd 20 0 20 

Revised Funding - August 2017 Monitoring 41,128 13,962 55,090 

 
 

Capital Programme Funding Summary 2018/19 

    

  
Funded from 

Merton’s 
Resources 

Funded by 
Grant & Capital 
Contributions 

Total 

  £000s £000s £000s 

Approved Programme - July Monitoring 37,080 17,933 55,013 
        
Environment and Regeneration       
Parks - Canons Parks for the People 0 1,117 1,117 

Mitcham Area Regeneration - Parks for the People 0 2,032 2,032 

        

Proposed Programme - August Monitoring 37,080 21,083 58,162 

 
 

Capital Programme Funding Summary 2019/20 

    

  

Funded 
from 

Merton’s 
Resources 

Funded by 
Grant & 
Capital 

Contributions 
Total 

  £000s £000s £000s 
Revised Funding - July 2017 23,537 2,346 25,883 
Environment and Regeneration       
Parks - Canons Parks for the People 0 196 196 
Mitcham Area Regeneration - Parks for the 
People 0 301 301 
Revised Funding - July 2017 23,537 2,843 26,380 

 

- 33 -  Page 67



P
ag

e 
1 

of
 9

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 6

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

&
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 S

AV
IN

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
17

/1
8-

Au
g 

20
17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

17
/1

8 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 

£0
00

20
17

/1
8 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

£0
00

Sh
or

tfa
ll 

£0
00

17
/1

8 
   

R
AG

20
17

/1
8 

 
M

iti
ga

te
d 

by
 

G
ro

w
th

   
   

   
   

£0
00

20
18

/1
9 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  £
00

0
Sh

or
tfa

ll
18

/1
9 

R
AG

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 O
ffi

ce
r

C
om

m
en

ts

R
 /A

 In
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 
O

ve
r/U

nd
er

sp
en

d
? 

Y/
N

Ad
ul

t S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

CH
38

, C
H1

Pl
ac

em
en

ts
 (r

ep
la

ce
s t

hr
ee

 o
rig

in
al

 sa
vi

ng
s p

ro
po

sa
ls)

. 
Gi

ve
n 

on
go

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t p

re
ss

ur
es

 a
nd

 e
xt

en
siv

e 
w

or
k 

al
re

ad
y 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 to

 re
vi

ew
 O

P 
pa

ck
ag

es
, t

he
 sa

vi
ng

s c
an

 o
nl

y 
be

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
m

or
e 

ta
rg

et
ed

 w
or

k 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

de
m

an
d.

   
Th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
fo

cu
s o

n 
th

re
e 

ar
ea

s:
 1

) d
em

an
d 

co
m

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

tr
an

sit
io

n 
in

to
 a

du
lth

oo
d,

 2
) m

ax
im

isi
ng

 
re

ab
le

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s t
o 

re
du

ce
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 n

ee
ds

, 3
) 

Re
vi

ew
in

g 
eq

ui
ty

 o
f a

cc
es

s a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

 in
 a

re
as

 su
ch

 a
s 1

:1
 

ca
re

, n
ig

ht
 c

ov
er

, d
ou

bl
e-

up
 c

ar
e,

 1
5 

m
in

 d
ay

tim
e 

vi
sit

s a
nd

 
m

ul
tip

le
 p

ro
vi

sio
ns

.

82
7

82
7

0
R

82
7

0
G

R
ic

ha
rd

 E
lli

s
Th

er
e 

is 
a 

fo
cu

s o
n 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
isa

bi
lit

ie
s w

he
re

 
pa

ck
ag

e 
co

st
s t

en
d 

to
 b

e 
m

uc
h 

hi
gh

er
 a

nd
 d

ire
ct

 
pa

ym
en

ts
. 3

50
 re

vi
ew

s h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t. 
 

£4
93

k 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 to

 d
at

e.

Y

CH
20

, C
H5

8,
 

CH
54

, C
H 

37
, 

CH
59

St
af

f s
av

in
gs

: m
os

t w
er

e 
br

ou
gh

t f
or

w
ar

d 
to

 2
01

6/
17

. 
Th

es
e 

re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 re
sid

ua
l s

av
in

gs
 in

 D
ire

ct
 p

ro
vi

sio
n

10
0

10
0

0
G

10
0

0
G

An
dy

 O
tta

w
ay

-
Se

ar
le

Ac
hi

ev
ed

Y

CH
57

St
af

f s
av

in
gs

: t
ra

ns
fe

r o
f s

av
in

gs
 fr

om
 h

ou
sin

g
50

0
50

R
0

(5
0)

R
R

ic
ha

rd
 E

lli
s

O
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 c
on

sid
er

ed
Y

CH
2,

 C
H3

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
s:

 re
-c

om
m

iss
io

ni
ng

 o
f h

om
e 

ca
re

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
. 

M
ov

in
g 

pa
ck

ag
es

 fr
om

 h
ig

h 
co

st
 sp

ot
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 c
ar

e 
to

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 ra

te
.

21
5

97
11

8
R

21
5

0
G

R
ic

ha
rd

 E
lli

s
Th

e 
ne

w
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
18

. T
he

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 c

ur
re

nt
 sp

ot
 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
pa

ck
ag

es
 d

ep
en

ds
 o

n 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 

ne
w

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 to

 re
cr

ui
t c

ar
er

s.
 

Y

CH
35

, C
H3

6,
 

CH
52

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
Pe

op
le

: r
e-

co
m

m
iss

io
ni

ng
 o

f f
or

m
er

 S
up

po
rt

in
g 

Pe
op

le
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

. S
av

in
gs

 c
an

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

re
m

ov
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fr

om
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
la

rm
s a

nd
 re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

fo
r h

ou
sin

g 
su

pp
or

t (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

sin
gl

e 
ho

m
el

es
s,

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

at
 ri

sk
)

10
0

0
10

0
R

0
(1

00
)

R
R

ic
ha

rd
 E

lli
s

Fu
rt

he
r w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
op

tio
ns

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
s o

f 
re

du
ci

ng
 o

ut
 su

bs
id

y 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

la
rm

s i
s 

be
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
ed

. T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

de
fe

rr
ed

 to
 2

01
8/

19
.

Y

Page 68



P
ag

e 
2 

of
 9

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 6

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

&
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 S

AV
IN

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
17

/1
8-

Au
g 

20
17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

17
/1

8 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 

£0
00

20
17

/1
8 

 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

£0
00

Sh
or

tfa
ll 

£0
00

17
/1

8 
   

R
AG

20
17

/1
8 

 
M

iti
ga

te
d 

by
 

G
ro

w
th

   
   

   
   

£0
00

20
18

/1
9 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  £
00

0
Sh

or
tfa

ll
18

/1
9 

R
AG

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 O
ffi

ce
r

C
om

m
en

ts

R
 /A

 In
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 
O

ve
r/U

nd
er

sp
en

d
? 

Y/
N

CH
35

, C
H3

6,
 

CH
52

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
Pe

op
le

: r
e-

co
m

m
iss

io
ni

ng
 o

f f
or

m
er

 S
up

po
rt

in
g 

Pe
op

le
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

. S
av

in
gs

 c
an

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

re
m

ov
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fr

om
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
la

rm
s a

nd
 re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

fo
r h

ou
sin

g 
su

pp
or

t (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

sin
gl

e 
ho

m
el

es
s,

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

at
 ri

sk
)

35
6

0
35

6
A

(3
56

)
35

6
0

G
R

ic
ha

rd
 E

lli
s

Co
nt

ra
ct

s d
o 

no
t e

nd
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
17

. T
hi

s i
s a

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

se
ct

or
 w

ith
 a

 re
du

ci
ng

 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

ro
vi

de
rs

. T
w

o 
co

nt
ra

ct
s h

av
e 

be
en

 
ha

nd
ed

 b
ac

k 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r. 
Th

e 
Ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
Bi

ll 
m

ay
 re

su
lt 

in
 m

or
e 

pe
op

le
 c

om
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
fo

r s
up

po
rt

, w
hi

lst
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pr
ov

isi
on

 is
 

al
re

ad
y 

fu
lly

 u
til

ise
d.

   
   

Th
e 

op
tim

al
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

ro
ut

e 
m

ea
ns

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s w

ill
 n

ow
 ta

ke
 lo

ng
er

 
th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

an
d 

sa
vi

ng
s w

ill
 n

ot
 a

cc
ru

e 
un

til
 

20
18

/1
9.

Y

CH
53

Vo
l o

rg
s G

ra
nt

60
0

60
0

0
G

60
0

0
G

R
ic

ha
rd

 E
lli

s
Ac

hi
ev

ed
Y

Su
bt

ot
al

 A
du

lt 
So

ci
al

 C
ar

e
2,

24
8

1,
62

4
62

4
(3

56
)

2,
09

8
(1

50
)

Li
br

ar
y 

&
 H

er
ita

ge
 S

er
vi

ce
C

H
7

In
tro

du
ce

 s
el

f-s
er

ve
 li

br
ar

ie
s 

at
 o

ff 
pe

ak
 ti

m
es

:S
m

al
le

r 
lib

ra
rie

s 
to

 b
e 

se
lf-

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
te

d 
on

ly
 b

y 
a 

se
cu

rit
y 

gu
ar

d 
du

rin
g 

of
f p

ea
k 

tim
es

 (n
b.

 S
av

in
g 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 re

du
ce

d 
to

 £
45

k 
if 

D
on

al
d 

H
op

e 
an

d 
W

es
t B

ar
ne

s 
lib

ra
rie

s 
ar

e 
cl

os
ed

). 
3.

5F
TE

 a
t r

is
k

90
90

0
A

90
0

G
An

th
on

y 
H

op
ki

ns
Y

C
H

49
Ad

di
tio

na
l s

ta
ff 

sa
vi

ng
s 

(D
el

et
io

n 
of

 1
.5

xF
TE

)
38

38
0

A
38

0
G

An
th

on
y 

H
op

ki
ns

Y
C

H
50

D
el

et
io

n 
of

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
& 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t M

an
ag

er
 p

os
t 

(D
el

et
io

n 
of

 0
.6

xF
TE

)
22

22
0

A
22

0
G

An
th

on
y 

H
op

ki
ns

Y

C
H

70
Ad

di
tio

na
l s

ta
ffi

ng
 e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 c

on
so

lid
at

io
n 

of
 

br
an

ch
 m

an
ag

er
s

63
63

A
63

0
G

An
th

on
y 

H
op

ki
ns

C
H

71
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 P

eo
pl

e'
s 

N
et

w
or

k 
co

st
s

40
40

0
G

40
0

G
An

th
on

y 
H

op
ki

ns
Y

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 &

 E
na

bl
in

g
C

H
9

R
at

io
na

lis
at

io
n 

of
 a

dm
in

 b
ud

ge
t :

36
36

0
G

36
0

G
St

ev
e 

La
ng

le
y

Y
C

H
10

D
el

et
io

n 
of

 o
ne

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 p
os

t
36

0
36

R
36

0
G

St
ev

e 
La

ng
le

y
Y

C
H

43
Fu

rth
er

 S
ta

ff 
re

du
ct

io
ns

. T
hi

s 
w

ill 
re

pr
es

en
t a

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 s
ta

ff 
fro

m
 a

ny
 a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 H

N
ES

 &
 E

H
H

 :
10

0
0

10
0

R
10

0
0

G
St

ev
e 

La
ng

le
y

Y

To
ta

l C
 &

 H
 S

av
in

gs
 fo

r 2
01

7/
18

2,
67

3
1,

91
3

76
0

(3
56

)
2,

52
3

(1
50

)

Th
es

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
w

er
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 a

 fu
ll 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l r
ev

ie
w

, w
hi

ch
 h

as
 re

du
ce

d 
th

e 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 b
y 

ap
pr

ox
. 3

3%
. T

he
 n

ew
 d

el
iv

er
y 

m
od

el
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
 p

la
ce

 s
in

ce
 1

 M
ay

 2
01

7.
 

C
ur

re
nt

 is
su

e 
w

ith
 a

ge
nc

y 
sp

en
d 

bu
t w

or
ki

ng
 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 s

av
in

gs

Se
rv

ic
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 re
st

ric
tin

g 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 
sa

vi
ng

s.
 

Page 69



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 6

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 C
H

IL
D

R
EN

, S
C

H
O

O
LS

 A
N

D
 F

AM
IL

IE
S 

- P
R

O
G

R
ES

S 
O

N
 S

AV
IN

G
S 

17
-1

8

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 

£0
00

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

Sh
or

tfa
ll

17
/1

8 
R

AG

20
18

/1
9 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

Sh
or

tfa
ll

18
/1

9 
R

AG
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r

C
om

m
en

ts
R

 /A
 In

cl
ud

ed
 

in
 F

or
ec

as
t 

O
ve

r/U
nd

er
s

pe
nd

? 
Y/

N
C

ro
ss

 c
ut

tin
g

C
SF

20
16

-0
1

D
el

et
io

n 
of

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
, S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

er
 a

nd
  h

al
f a

n 
ad

m
in

 s
up

po
rt 

po
st

s 
as

 p
ar

t o
f p

ha
se

d 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

t.
22

4
20

7
17

A
22

4
0

G
Pa

ul
 A

ng
el

i
D

ue
 to

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ch
an

ge
s 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

ep
er

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r t
he

 
O

FS
TE

D
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 it
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

ov
er

 fo
r t

he
 S

er
vi

ce
 

M
an

ag
er

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

sh
or

t 
te

rm
. Q

ua
nt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

is
 s

ho
rtf

al
l 

w
ill 

be
 re

vi
ew

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
.

Y

C
on

tr
ac

ts
 a

nd
 S

ch
oo

l O
rg

an
is

at
io

n

C
SF

20
15

-0
5

pr
op

er
ty

 a
nd

 c
on

tra
ct

s 
1 

FT
E.

65
65

0
G

65
0

G
Ja

ne
 M

cS
he

rr
y

Ea
rly

 Y
ea

rs

C
SF

20
13

-0
1

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 E

Y 
bu

dg
et

s 
w

hi
ls

t r
et

ai
ni

ng
 e

xi
st

in
g 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

C
en

tre
s 

ta
rg

et
ed

 w
or

k 
in

 a
re

as
 o

f h
ig

he
r d

ep
riv

at
io

n 
(u

p 
to

 1
0%

 re
du

ct
io

n 
ov

er
al

l t
o 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

C
en

tre
 s

er
vi

ce
s)

. R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

in
 k

in
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 to
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
r o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

25
0

25
0

0
G

25
0

0
G

Ja
ne

 M
cS

he
rr

y

C
SF

20
14

-0
9

W
e 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

in
 e

ss
en

ce
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 p

ai
d-

fo
r c

hi
ld

ca
re

 (p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 D
SG

) w
ith

 a
 v

er
y 

lim
ite

d 
ta

rg
et

ed
 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r h

ig
hl

y 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 fa
m

ilie
s.

29
6

29
6

0
G

29
6

0
G

Ja
ne

 M
cS

he
rr

y

Sc
ho

ol
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 Q
ua

lit
y

C
SF

20
13

-0
2

R
ed

uc
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
ffe

r f
ro

m
 S

ch
oo

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

.
75

75
0

G
75

0
G

Ja
ne

 M
cS

he
rr

y
Sc

ho
ol

s

C
SF

20
15

-0
3

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

co
m

e 
fro

m
 s

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
/o

r r
ed

uc
ed

 L
A 

se
rv

ic
e 

of
fe

r t
o 

sc
ho

ol
s.

20
0

20
0

0
G

20
0

0
G

Ja
ne

 M
cS

he
rr

y

To
ta

l C
hi

ld
re

n,
 S

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 F

am
ili

es
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
av

in
gs

 fo
r 2

01
5/

16
1,

11
0

1,
09

3
17

1,
11

0
0

Page 70



H
:\T

EC
H

AC
C

Y\
R

C
C

B\
R

EV
EN

U
E\

BU
D

C
O

N
TL

\B
C

20
17

-1
8\

Pe
rio

d 
5 

Au
gu

st
 2

01
7\

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 6
 -P

ro
gr

es
s 

on
 s

av
in

gs
 1

7-
18

...
29

/0
9/

20
17

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 6

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 - 
PR

O
G

R
ES

S 
O

N
 S

AV
IN

G
S 

17
-1

8

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 

£0
00

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

Sh
or

tfa
ll

17
/1

8 
R

AG

20
18

/1
9 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

20
18

/1
9 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
 

£0
00

18
/1

9 
R

A
G

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 O
ffi

ce
r

C
om

m
en

ts

R
 /A

 In
cl

ud
ed

 
in

 F
or

ec
as

t 
O

ve
r/U

nd
er

sp
e

nd
? 

Y/
N

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

C
S

60
D

el
et

io
n 

of
 A

ss
is

ta
nt

 D
ire

ct
or

 p
os

t
10

9
10

9
G

10
9

G
C

ar
ol

in
e 

H
ol

la
nd

N
C

S
D

17
R

ed
uc

e 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

bu
dg

et
 - 

In
cr

ea
se

 s
el

f s
er

vi
ce

 b
y 

us
in

g 
P

an
ac

ea
 - 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
so

lu
tio

n 
so

ftw
ar

e 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 re
du

ce
 d

es
ig

ne
r c

os
ts

 fo
r s

m
al

le
r m

ar
ke

tin
g 

jo
bs

73
73

G
73

G
S

op
hi

e 
P

oo
le

N
C

S
20

15
-0

4
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 R
eg

is
tra

rs
 in

co
m

e
25

25
G

25
G

S
ea

n 
C

un
ni

ffe
/T

om
as

 D
ys

on
N

C
S

20
16

 -0
4

In
cr

ea
se

 in
co

m
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

R
eg

is
tra

rs
 s

er
vi

ce
15

15
G

15
G

S
ea

n 
C

un
ni

ffe
/T

om
as

 D
ys

on
N

B
us

in
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

C
S

63
R

eo
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
of

 s
ys

te
m

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

.
74

74
G

74
G

C
liv

e 
C

oo
ke

N

C
S

D
42

R
es

tru
ct

ur
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

, d
el

et
e 

1 
A

D
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f m
an

ag
em

en
t

17
0

10
0

70
R

ed
10

0
70

R
ed

S
op

hi
e 

E
llis

Y
C

S
20

15
-0

8
S

ta
ffi

ng
 s

up
po

rt 
sa

vi
ng

s
13

0
13

R
ed

0
13

R
ed

S
op

hi
e 

E
llis

N
I &

 T

C
S

70
A

pp
ly

 a
 £

3 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

ch
ar

ge
 to

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

re
qu

es
tin

g 
a 

ha
rd

 c
op

y 
pa

pe
r  

in
vo

ic
e 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s 

ad
m

in
is

te
re

d 
by

 T
ra

ns
ac

tio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
te

am
35

0
35

R
ed

0
35

R
ed

P
am

 L
am

b
D

ue
 to

 d
el

ay
s 

in
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 e

5,
 S

ha
re

po
in

t a
nd

 
E

D
R

M
S

 th
er

e 
w

ill 
be

 a
 d

el
ay

 in
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 th
is

.  
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

di
vi

si
on

.
N

C
S

71
D

el
et

e 
tw

o 
in

 h
ou

se
 tr

ai
ne

rs
 p

os
ts

42
42

G
42

G
R

ic
ha

rd
 W

ar
re

n

N

C
S

72
C

on
so

lid
at

io
n 

of
 In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

&
 T

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 re

ve
nu

e 
bu

dg
et

s
34

34
G

34
G

Ti
na

 D
ul

la
w

ay
N

C
S

20
15

-0
9

R
es

tru
ct

ur
e 

of
 S

af
et

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

&
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g 

te
am

18
18

G
18

G
A

da
m

 V
ic

ar
ri

N

C
S

20
16

-0
8

P
ot

en
tia

l i
nc

om
e 

de
riv

ed
 fr

om
 le

tti
ng

 tw
o 

flo
or

s 
of

 v
ac

an
t o

ffi
ce

 s
pa

ce
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
C

iv
ic

 c
en

tre
 to

 e
xt

er
na

l/p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
. 

90
90

G
90

G
M

ar
k 

H
um

ph
rie

s
N

C
E

X
G

G
N

C
S

20
15

-0
7

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 ru
nn

in
g 

co
st

 b
ud

ge
ts

28
28

G
28

G
S

op
hi

e 
Jo

ne
s

N
R

es
ou

rc
es

C
S

46
R

es
ou

rc
es

 -D
el

et
io

n 
of

 3
 P

os
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
D

iv
is

io
n

78
78

G
78

G
R

 K
er

sh
aw

N
C

S
66

R
ev

ie
w

 re
ch

ar
ge

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 s

up
po

rt 
fu

nc
tio

n 
to

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

47
47

G
47

G
R

 K
er

sh
aw

/P
au

l A
ud

u
N

C
S

D
20

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

co
m

e
16

16
G

16
G

R
 K

er
sh

aw
N

C
S

D
23

C
ut

 ru
nn

in
g 

co
st

s 
bu

dg
et

s
3

3
G

3
G

B
in

di
 L

ak
ha

ni
N

C
S

D
26

D
el

et
e 

1 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
ar

tn
er

78
0

78
R

ed
78

0
G

C
ar

ol
in

e 
H

ol
la

nd
D

ue
 to

 d
el

ay
s 

in
 m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

N
C

S
D

46
R

ed
uc

e 
bu

dg
et

 fo
r L

C
G

S
 to

 m
at

ch
 a

ct
ua

l c
on

tri
bu

tio
n

81
81

G
81

G
Jo

hn
 D

im
m

er
N

C
S

20
16

-0
1

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

fu
nd

10
0

10
0

G
10

0
G

R
 K

er
sh

aw
/P

au
l A

ud
u

N

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

C
S

D
34

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
dm

in
 s

up
po

rt
18

18
G

18
G

K
im

 B
ro

w
n

N

C
S

D
35

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t B
ud

ge
t

13
4

13
4

G
13

4
G

K
im

 B
ro

w
n

N
C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
S

73
S

av
in

g 
fro

m
 4

 b
or

ou
gh

 s
ha

re
d 

le
ga

l s
er

vi
ce

20
20

G
20

G
Fi

on
a 

Th
om

se
n

N

C
S

D
43

S
ha

re
 F

O
I a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 p
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 a
no

th
er

 C
ou

nc
il

40
40

R
ed

40
R

ed
P

au
l E

va
ns

N

C
S

D
45

S
ha

re
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e
20

20
G

20
G

M
ar

ga
re

t C
ul

le
to

n

N

Page 71



H
:\T

EC
H

AC
C

Y\
R

C
C

B\
R

EV
EN

U
E\

BU
D

C
O

N
TL

\B
C

20
17

-1
8\

Pe
rio

d 
5 

Au
gu

st
 2

01
7\

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 6
 -P

ro
gr

es
s 

on
 s

av
in

gs
 1

7-
18

...
29

/0
9/

20
17

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 6

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 - 
PR

O
G

R
ES

S 
O

N
 S

AV
IN

G
S 

17
-1

8

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 

£0
00

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

Sh
or

tfa
ll

17
/1

8 
R

AG

20
18

/1
9 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

20
18

/1
9 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
 

£0
00

18
/1

9 
R

A
G

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 O
ffi

ce
r

C
om

m
en

ts

R
 /A

 In
cl

ud
ed

 
in

 F
or

ec
as

t 
O

ve
r/U

nd
er

sp
e

nd
? 

Y/
N

C
S2

01
5-

13
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 in
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e

40
40

G
40

G
M

ar
ga

re
t C

ul
le

to
n

C
S2

01
5-

14
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 in
 A

ud
it 

se
rv

ic
e

33
33

G
33

G
M

ar
ga

re
t C

ul
le

to
n

C
S2

01
6-

03
S

up
pl

ie
s 

&
 S

er
vi

ce
s

50
50

G
50

G
Ju

lia
 R

eg
an

To
ta

l C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

av
in

gs
 fo

r 2
01

7/
18

1,
48

4
1,

28
8

19
6

1,
36

6
11

8

Page 72



AP
PE

N
D

IX
 6

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 E
N

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
&

 R
EG

EN
ER

AT
IO

N
 S

AV
IN

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S:

 2
01

7-
18

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 

£0
00

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

Sh
or

tfa
ll

17
/1

8 
R

AG

20
18

/1
9 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

20
18

/1
9 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
 

£0
00

18
/1

9 
R

AG
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r

C
om

m
en

ts

R
 /A

 
In

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

O
ve

r/U
nd

er
s

pe
nd

? 
Y/

N
SU

ST
AI

N
AB

LE
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S

ER
23

b
R

es
tru

ct
ur

e 
of

 te
am

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

or
e 

fo
cu

s 
on

 p
ro

pe
rty

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

re
si

lie
nc

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

te
am

.
18

0
18

R
18

0
A

Ja
m

es
 M

cG
in

la
y

B
us

in
es

s 
C

as
e 

fo
r r

es
tru

ct
ur

e 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s,
 b

ut
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

de
la

y 
it'

s 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

fu
lly

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
th

is
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r. 

S
av

in
g 

be
in

g 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

nt
s 

(r
ep

or
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

on
th

ly
 b

ud
ge

t r
et

ur
n)

.

Y

E&
R

5
Te

am
 tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
as

se
t r

ev
ie

w

82
82

0
A

82
0

A
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y

B
us

in
es

s 
C

as
e 

fo
r r

es
tru

ct
ur

e 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s,
 b

ut
 e

xp
ec

tin
g 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
is

 s
av

in
g 

on
ce

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 S
av

in
g 

be
in

g 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

nt
s 

(r
ep

or
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

on
th

ly
 b

ud
ge

t 
re

tu
rn

).

Y

D
&

B
C

1
Fa

st
 tr

ac
k 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

55
0

55
R

0
55

R
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y
Th

is
 s

av
in

g 
is

 n
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 T

he
 te

am
 is

 
ex

tre
m

el
y 

sh
or

t o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t s
up

po
rt 

an
d 

ha
s 

no
 re

so
ur

ce
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 la
un

ch
 th

is
 c

om
pl

ex
 n

ew
 s

er
vi

ce
. 

Y

D
&

B
C

2
G

ro
w

th
  i

n 
P

P
A

 a
nd

 P
re

-a
pp

 in
co

m
e 

50
0

50
R

0
50

R
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y
M

on
ito

r t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t t

he
 y

ea
r.

Y
D

&
B

C
3

C
om

m
er

ci
al

is
at

io
n 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
nt

ro
l

50
0

50
R

0
50

R
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y

Th
is

 s
av

in
g 

is
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

 T
he

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

w
ith

 S
ut

to
n 

an
d 

K
in

gs
to

n 
ar

e 
st

ill
 

un
de

rw
ay

 a
nd

 a
 fu

tu
re

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
de

ci
si

on
 is

 a
w

ai
te

d 
at

 
D

ire
ct

or
 le

ve
l.

Y

D
&

B
C

4
D

el
et

io
n 

of
 1

 F
TE

 (m
an

ag
er

 o
r d

ep
ut

y)
 w

ith
in

 D
&

B
C

45
45

0
G

45
0

G
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y
N

D
&

B
C

5
E

lim
in

at
e 

th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
D

ut
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

 (b
ot

h 
fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

 a
nd

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 

ph
on

e 
lin

e)
 w

ith
in

 D
&

B
C

35
0

35
R

0
35

R
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y
S

av
in

gs
 ta

ke
n 

- i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

la
te

 2
01

7.
Y

D
&

B
C

6
S

to
p 

se
nd

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

le
tte

rs
 o

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 e

re
ct

 s
ite

 n
ot

ic
es

 
on

ly
 

10
0

10
R

0
10

R
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y
N

ot
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
  L

in
ke

d 
to

 n
at

io
na

l p
la

nn
in

g 
fe

e 
in

cr
ea

se
.

Y

E&
R

32
In

co
m

e 
fro

m
 w

ifi
 c

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 c
on

tra
ct

 to
 b

e 
le

t f
ro

m
 2

01
5/

16
 

5
5

0
G

5
0

G
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y
N

EN
V2

0
In

cr
ea

se
d 

in
co

m
e 

fro
m

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
co

nt
ro

l s
er

vi
ce

s.
35

0
35

R
0

35
R

Ja
m

es
 M

cG
in

la
y

N
ot

 a
bl

e 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t 
Y

EN
V2

4
C

ea
se

 s
ub

sc
rip

tio
n 

to
 U

rb
an

 L
on

do
n 

an
d 

Fu
tu

re
 L

on
do

n 
Le

ad
er

s
10

10
0

G
10

0
G

Ja
m

es
 M

cG
in

la
y

N
EN

V3
4

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

co
m

e 
fro

m
 th

e 
no

n-
op

er
at

io
na

l p
or

tfo
lio

.
8

8
0

G
8

0
G

Ja
m

es
 M

cG
in

la
y

N

PU
B

LI
C

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

EV
11

In
cr

ea
se

 a
ll 

pa
y 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y 

ch
ar

ge
s 

fo
r o

n 
an

d 
of

f s
tre

et
 p

ar
ki

ng
 b

y 
10

%
. i

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 n

ot
ed

 th
at

 n
o 

al
lo

w
an

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
fo

r e
la

st
ic

ity
 

of
 d

em
an

d 
th

is
 fi

gu
re

 c
ou

ld
 re

du
ce

 b
y 

25
%

12
5

12
5

0
G

12
5

0
G

Jo
hn

 H
ill

N

E&
R

7
D

ue
 to

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 re

qu
es

ts
 fr

om
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
 w

ill
 b

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 to

 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r a

nd
 o

ng
oi

ng
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f C

on
tro

lle
d 

P
ar

ki
ng

 
Zo

ne
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 

16
3

16
3

0
A

16
3

0
A

Jo
hn

 H
ill

Th
e 

20
17

/1
8 

sa
vi

ng
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
la

te
st

 C
P

Z 
fo

re
ca

st
.

N

E&
R

8
In

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 re

si
de

nt
s 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 tr

af
fic

 c
on

ge
st

io
n,

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
of

 m
ov

in
g 

tra
ffi

c 
co

nt
ra

ve
nt

io
ns

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 A
N

P
R

.
-1

,5
40

-1
,5

40
0

G
-1

54
0

0
G

Jo
hn

 H
ill

N

E&
R

14
Fu

rth
er

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f t
he

 R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

sh
ar

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
.

10
0

0
10

0
R

10
0

0
G

Jo
hn

 H
ill

W
an

ds
w

or
th

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 jo

in
 in

 A
pr

il 
20

18
 a

nd
 th

e 
£1

00
K

 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ea

rm
ar

ke
d 

fo
r 2

01
7/

18
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
m

et
.

Y

E&
R

43
R

ep
ro

fil
in

g 
ho

w
 S

af
er

 M
er

to
n 

w
ill

 a
ch

ie
ve

 s
av

in
gs

 o
f £

70
,0

00
 in

 2
01

7-
18

. 
Th

e 
re

pr
of

ili
ng

 w
ill

 s
ee

 s
ta

ff 
le

ve
ls

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

bu
dg

et
 re

du
ct

io
ns

 m
et

 
th

ro
ug

h 
cu

tti
ng

 b
ac

k 
on

 n
on

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

ud
ge

ta
ry

 s
pe

nd
.

70
70

0
G

70
0

G
Jo

hn
 H

ill

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
de

la
y 

in
 re

cr
ui

tin
g 

th
e 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 O

ffe
nd

er
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t c

o-
or

di
na

to
r t

hi
s 

sa
vi

ng
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
m

et
 in

 fu
ll 

du
rin

g 
20

17
/1

8.
 T

he
 s

ho
rtf

al
l r

el
at

es
 to

 th
e 

IO
M

 s
al

ar
y.

Y

EN
V0

2
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t C
E

O
 s

tru
ct

ur
e,

 s
hi

ft 
pa

tte
rn

s 
an

d 
ho

ur
s 

of
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 m
ov

in
g 

to
w

ar
d 

a 
tw

o 
sh

ift
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t b

as
ed

 o
n 

5 
da

ys
 o

n/
2 

da
ys

 o
ff.

 
19

0
0

19
0

R
19

0
0

A
Jo

hn
 H

ill
Th

is
 s

av
in

g 
is

 n
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
as

 th
e 

th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

lip
pa

ge
 in

 th
e 

tim
et

ab
le

 fo
r t

he
 re

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
Y

EN
V0

3
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

nu
m

be
r o

f C
E

O
 te

am
 le

ad
er

 p
os

ts
 fr

om
 4

 to
 3

45
0

45
R

45
0

A
Jo

hn
 H

ill
Th

is
 s

av
in

g 
is

 n
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
fo

r t
he

 s
am

e 
re

as
on

s 
as

 th
os

e 
gi

ve
n 

in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f E

N
V

02
 .

Y

EN
V0

4
Im

pr
ov

ed
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
flo

w
s/

co
ng

es
tio

n 
an

d 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

In
cr

ea
se

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e

25
0

25
0

0
A

25
0

0
A

Jo
hn

 H
ill

S
av

in
g 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

ut
 to

o 
ea

rly
 in

 th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 

be
 c

er
ta

in
.

N

Page 73



AP
PE

N
D

IX
 6

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 E
N

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
&

 R
EG

EN
ER

AT
IO

N
 S

AV
IN

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S:

 2
01

7-
18

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 

£0
00

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

Sh
or

tfa
ll

17
/1

8 
R

AG

20
18

/1
9 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

20
18

/1
9 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
 

£0
00

18
/1

9 
R

AG
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r

C
om

m
en

ts

R
 /A

 
In

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

O
ve

r/U
nd

er
s

pe
nd

? 
Y/

N
EN

V0
5

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

ba
ck

 o
ffi

ce
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 th

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 ta
ili

ng
 o

ff 
of

 
A

N
P

R
 a

ct
iv

ity
 a

nd
 th

e 
m

ov
em

en
t o

f C
C

TV
 in

to
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
70

0
70

R
70

0
A

Jo
hn

 H
ill

Th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 s
av

in
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
el

ay
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

sl
ow

er
 th

an
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 A

N
P

R
 a

nd
 it

s 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
ck

 o
ffi

ce
 fu

nc
tio

n.
 T

he
 re

vi
ew

 c
an

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 

w
he

n 
a 

fu
ll 

ye
ar

’s
 A

N
P

R
 im

pa
ct

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
(w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
be

 a
fte

r A
ug

us
t 2

01
7)

Y

EN
V0

6
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 tr

an
sp

or
t r

el
at

ed
 b

ud
ge

ts
46

0
46

R
0

46
R

Jo
hn

 H
ill

Th
is

 s
av

in
g 

ha
s 

no
t y

et
 b

ee
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
s 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

op
tio

ns
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

as
 th

e 
be

st
 w

ay
 to

 m
ee

t t
hi

s 
ta

rg
et

.
Y

EN
V0

9
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l c

om
m

er
ci

al
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 g

en
er

at
e 

in
co

m
e

50
25

25
R

50
0

A
Jo

hn
 H

ill

A
lth

ou
gh

 e
ar

ly
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s,

 th
er

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lty
 in

 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

th
e 

fu
ll 

ye
ar

 e
ffe

ct
 fo

r 2
01

7/
18

.  
Th

e 
in

co
m

e 
ge

ne
ra

tin
g 

R
S

P
 B

us
in

es
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ea

m
 is

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 to

 
be

co
m

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l i
n 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
8.

Y

EN
V1

0
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 T

ra
ns

po
rt/

S
up

pl
ie

s 
an

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

bu
dg

et
 th

ro
ug

h 
gr

ea
te

r 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

10
10

0
G

10
0

G
Jo

hn
 H

ill
N

EN
V3

3
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f e
m

is
si

on
s 

ba
se

d 
ch

ar
gi

ng
 p

ol
ic

y 
fo

r r
es

id
en

t/b
us

in
es

s 
pe

rm
its

 re
co

gn
is

in
g 

th
e 

da
m

ag
e 

pa
rti

cu
la

ry
 fr

om
 d

ie
se

l e
ng

in
ed

 m
ot

or
 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
25

0
25

0
0

G
25

0
0

G
Jo

hn
 H

ill
N

EN
R

3
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
 S

ea
so

n 
Ti

ck
et

s 
in

 M
or

de
n,

 
M

itc
ha

m
 a

nd
 W

im
bl

ed
on

.
16

16
0

G
16

0
G

Jo
hn

 H
ill

N

SE
N

IO
R

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T

EN
V0

1
R

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f P
A

 s
up

po
rt 

to
 H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 b

y 
0.

6f
te

.
19

19
0

G
19

0
G

C
hr

is
 L

ee
N

PU
B

LI
C

 S
PA

C
E

E&
R

1
A

rts
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t -

 fu
rth

er
 re

du
ce

 P
ol

ka
 T

he
at

re
 c

or
e 

gr
an

t 
5

5
0

G
5

0
G

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
N

E&
R

2
W

at
er

 s
po

rts
 C

en
tre

 - 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 in
co

m
e 

fro
m

 n
ew

 b
us

in
es

s 
- M

ar
in

e 
C

ol
le

ge
 &

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

.
10

10
0

G
10

0
G

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
N

E&
R

3
V

ar
io

us
 B

ud
ge

ts
 - 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
&

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
&

/o
r i

nc
re

as
ed

 
in

co
m

e 
ov

er
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
16

16
0

G
16

0
G

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
N

E&
R

16
jo

in
t p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t o

f w
as

te
, s

tre
et

 c
le

an
si

ng
, w

in
te

r m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 
fle

et
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

(P
ha

se
 C

)
1,

50
0

1,
40

0
10

0
R

15
00

0
G

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
Fu

ll 
sa

vi
ng

s 
no

t a
ch

ie
ve

d 
in

 Y
ea

r 1
 o

f c
on

tra
ct

. A
ct

ua
l 

sa
vi

ng
s 

de
liv

er
ed

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 m

on
ito

re
d 

cl
os

el
y

Y

E&
R

20
To

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 a
 c

le
an

er
 b

or
ou

gh
, e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t o

f l
itt

er
 d

ro
pp

in
g 

un
de

r 
E

P
A

/ A
S

B
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
w

ith
 F

P
N

 fi
ne

s 
fo

r c
on

tra
ve

nt
io

ns
.

-3
-3

0
G

-3
0

G
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

Y

E&
R

25
Jo

in
t p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t o

f g
re

en
sp

ac
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
s 

pa
rt 

 2
 o

f t
he

 P
ha

se
 C

 
S

LW
P

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t c
on

tra
ct

 w
ith

 L
B

 S
ut

to
n

16
0

16
0

0
G

16
0

0
G

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
N

EN
V1

1
O

ut
so

ur
ce

 le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

sp
or

ts
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

59
59

0
G

59
0

G
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

N
EN

V1
2

Lo
ss

 o
f h

ea
d 

of
 s

ec
tio

n/
am

al
ga

m
at

ed
 w

ith
 h

ea
d 

of
 G

re
en

sp
ac

es
70

0
70

R
70

0
A

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
E

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 in

 2
01

8/
19

.
Y

EN
V1

3
S

ta
ff 

sa
vi

ng
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

re
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ba
ck

 o
ffi

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
ch

an
ne

l s
hi

ft 
fro

m
 p

ho
ne

 a
nd

 fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 c

on
ta

ct
.

70
0

70
R

70
0

G
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

S
av

in
g 

fo
rm

s 
pa

rt 
of

 P
ha

se
 C

, b
ut

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
is

 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

Y

EN
V1

8
In

cr
ea

se
d 

in
co

m
e 

fro
m

 e
ve

nt
s 

in
 p

ar
ks

10
0

0
10

0
R

10
0

0
A

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e

Th
is

 s
av

in
g 

is
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

 W
or

k 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
ho

w
 in

co
m

e 
fro

m
 e

ve
nt

s 
in

 p
ar

ks
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
w

ith
 e

xt
er

na
l e

ve
nt

 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

co
m

pa
ni

es
, c

an
 b

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d.

Y

EN
V1

9
P

la
nn

ed
 re

-d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

of
 N

or
th

 E
as

t S
ur

re
y 

C
re

m
at

or
iu

m
 fu

nd
s

90
90

0
G

90
0

G
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

N
EN

V2
1

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

gr
an

t t
o 

W
an

dl
e 

V
al

le
y 

P
ar

ks
 T

ru
st

6
6

0
G

6
0

G
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

N
EN

V2
2

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 g
ra

nt
 to

 M
itc

ha
m

 C
om

m
on

 C
on

se
rv

at
or

s.
24

24
0

G
24

0
G

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
N

EN
V2

3
Fu

rth
er

 s
av

in
gs

 fr
om

 th
e 

ph
as

e 
C

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t o
f L

ot
 2

.
16

0
89

71
R

16
0

0
A

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
S

av
in

g 
fo

rm
s 

pa
rt 

of
 P

ha
se

 C
, b

ut
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

is
 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.
Y

EN
V2

5
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t  
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

w
as

te
 s

ec
tio

n
19

1
0

19
1

R
19

1
0

G
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

S
av

in
g 

fo
rm

s 
pa

rt 
of

 P
ha

se
 C

, b
ut

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
is

 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

Y

EN
V2

6
R

e-
ba

la
nc

in
g 

of
 ro

un
ds

20
0

20
R

20
0

G
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

S
av

in
g 

fo
rm

s 
pa

rt 
of

 P
ha

se
 C

, b
ut

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
is

 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

Y

EN
V2

7
R

em
ov

e 
fre

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 fo

od
 w

as
te

 li
ne

rs
66

0
66

R
66

0
G

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
S

av
in

g 
fo

rm
s 

pa
rt 

of
 P

ha
se

 C
, b

ut
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

is
 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.
Y

Page 74



AP
PE

N
D

IX
 6

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 E
N

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
&

 R
EG

EN
ER

AT
IO

N
 S

AV
IN

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S:

 2
01

7-
18

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 

£0
00

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

Sh
or

tfa
ll

17
/1

8 
R

AG

20
18

/1
9 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

20
18

/1
9 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
 

£0
00

18
/1

9 
R

AG
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r

C
om

m
en

ts

R
 /A

 
In

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

O
ve

r/U
nd

er
s

pe
nd

? 
Y/

N
EN

V2
8

D
iv

er
t g

ul
ly

 w
as

te
 a

nd
 m

ec
ha

ni
ca

l S
tre

et
 s

w
ee

pi
ng

s 
fro

m
 la

nd
fil

l t
hr

ou
gh

 
pr

e-
tre

at
m

en
t a

nd
 re

cy
cl

in
g

37
37

0
A

37
0

A
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

W
or

ki
ng

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 S
LW

P
 to

 p
rio

rit
is

e 
th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

Y

EN
V2

9
R

ea
lig

n 
bu

dg
et

 to
 re

fle
ct

 a
ct

ua
l i

nc
om

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
sa

le
 o

f t
ex

til
es

20
20

0
A

20
0

A
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

P
ric

e 
of

 te
xt

ile
s 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 fa

ll.
 In

co
m

e 
le

ve
ls

 to
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

cl
os

el
y.

Y

EN
V3

0
In

cr
ea

se
 a

nn
ua

l G
ar

de
n 

W
as

te
 s

ub
sc

rip
tio

n 
fe

es
 b

y 
£5

 p
.a

.
30

0
30

R
30

0
G

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
S

av
in

g 
fo

rm
s 

pa
rt 

of
 P

ha
se

 C
, b

ut
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

is
 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.
Y

EN
V3

1
C

om
m

en
ci

ng
 c

ha
rg

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
s 

fo
r r

ec
yc

la
bl

e 
w

as
te

 (1
7/

18
) a

nd
 fo

od
 

w
as

te
 (1

8/
19

) c
ol

le
ct

io
n

10
2

10
2

0
G

10
2

0
G

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
S

av
in

g 
fo

rm
s 

pa
rt 

of
 P

ha
se

 C
, b

ut
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

is
 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.
Y

EN
V3

6
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 re

m
ov

al
 o

f N
R

C
s

50
50

0
G

50
0

G
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

Y

To
ta

l E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

20
17

/1
8

3,
05

0
1,

60
3

1,
44

7
2,

76
9

28
1

Page 75



Department
Target 

Savings 
2017/18

Projected 
Savings  
2017/18

Period 5 
Forecast 
Shortfall

Period 4 
Forecast 
Shortfall

Period 
Forecast 
Shortfall

£000 £000 £000 £000 %
Corporate Services 1,484 1,288 196 118 13.2% 86.79%
Children Schools and Families 1,110 1,093 17 37 1.5% 98.47%
Community and Housing 2,673 1,913 760 642 28.4% 71.57%
Environment and Regeneration 3,050 1,603 1,447 902 47.4% 52.56%

Total 8,317 5,897 2,420 1,699 29.1% 70.90%

APPENDIX 6

Page 76



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
&

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
A

VI
N

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
16

/1
7-

  J
ul

y 
20

17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

16
/1

7 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 £

00
0

20
16

/1
7 

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
£0

00
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00
R

A
G

C
H

30
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

- R
ev

ie
w

 o
f D

ire
ct

 
Pa

ym
en

ts
 s

up
po

rt
 p

ac
ka

ge
s 

-
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f D
ire

ct
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 in
 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
us

in
g 

th
e 

en
ab

le
m

en
t m

od
el

. W
e 

w
ill

 
re

vi
ew

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
cl

ie
nt

s 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

fu
ll 

pa
ym

en
t i

s 
be

in
g 

ut
ili

se
d.

 W
e 

w
ill

 u
se

 th
e 

en
ab

le
m

en
t m

od
el

 a
s 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 th
es

e 
re

vi
ew

s.
 W

e 
an

tic
ip

at
e 

th
is

 b
ei

ng
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 1

5%
 fo

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
l s

up
po

rt 
pa

ck
ag

es
 w

ith
in

 th
is

 c
lie

nt
 g

ro
up

. 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 2
25

 
pa

ck
ag

es
. 

34
5

34
5

0
G

C
H

31
Ph

ys
ic

al
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s-
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
al

l D
ire

ct
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 fo
r c

lie
nt

s 
w

ith
 p

hy
si

ca
l d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
us

in
g 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
. -

W
e 

w
ill

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

 P
ay

m
en

ts
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

cl
ie

nt
s 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
w

he
th

er
 it

 is
 s

til
l s

et
 a

t t
he

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 le
ve

l f
or

 th
ei

r n
ee

ds
 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

fu
ll 

pa
ym

en
t i

s 
be

in
g 

ut
ili

se
d.

 W
e 

w
ill

 u
se

 th
e 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 m

od
el

 
as

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 th
es

e 
re

vi
ew

s.
 W

e 
an

tic
ip

at
e 

th
is

 b
ei

ng
 a

 re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 1
0%

 fo
r t

he
 in

di
vi

du
al

 s
up

po
rt 

pa
ck

ag
es

 w
ith

in
 th

is
 c

lie
nt

 g
ro

up
. 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 1

50
 p

ac
ka

ge
s 

in
 th

is
 g

ro
up

.

13
4

0
13

4
R

Page 77



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
&

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
A

VI
N

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
16

/1
7-

  J
ul

y 
20

17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

16
/1

7 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 £

00
0

20
16

/1
7 

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
£0

00
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00
R

A
G

A
du

lt 
So

ci
al

 C
ar

e
C

H
02

Pr
om

ot
in

g 
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 - 

P
ub

lic
 V

al
ue

 R
ev

ie
w

 - 
E

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 to

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 
ho

sp
ita

l d
is

ch
ar

ge
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

by
 e

na
bl

in
g 

cu
st

om
er

s 
to

 re
ga

in
 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce

10
0

79
22

G

C
H

29
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

- M
an

ag
in

g 
C

ris
is

  
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

ho
sp

ita
l d

is
ch

ar
ge

) 
ad

m
is

si
on

s 
to

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l c

ar
e.

  
Th

is
 w

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

ac
tiv

ite
s 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 re

du
ce

 
ad

m
is

si
on

s 
to

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l c

ar
e 

pl
ax

ce
m

en
ts

. W
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
lo

ok
in

g 
to

 fa
m

ili
es

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 
su

pp
or

t p
eo

pl
e 

at
 h

om
e 

fo
r 

lo
ng

er
. T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 fi

t i
n 

w
ith

 o
ur

 
ov

er
al

l a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

.

12
5

0
12

5
R

C
H

34
Su

bs
ta

nc
e 

M
is

us
e 

Pl
ac

em
en

ts
 - 

A
ct

iv
el

y 
m

an
ag

e 
th

ro
ug

hp
ut

 in
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l r

eh
ab

 p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 - 
A

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r S
ub

st
an

ce
 m

is
us

e 
cl

ie
nt

s 

6
0

6
R

Page 78



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
&

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
A

VI
N

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
16

/1
7-

  J
ul

y 
20

17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

16
/1

7 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 £

00
0

20
16

/1
7 

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
£0

00
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00
R

A
G

C
H

05
R

ea
lis

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
of

 n
ew

 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

in
 

te
rm

s 
of

 re
du

ce
d 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r 

st
at

ut
or

y 
se

rv
ic

es
, o

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

el
y 

if 
th

es
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 o
cc

ur
re

d 
th

en
 to

 
re

du
ce

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
du

ce
d 

gr
an

ts
 to

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
. -

R
ed

uc
ed

 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

or
 

re
du

ce
d 

le
ve

l o
f p

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. I
n 

th
e 

la
tte

r c
as

e 
pe

op
le

 
w

ou
ld

 lo
se

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 
w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
th

ei
r l

ife
 fu

lle
r. 

50
0

50
0

0
G

C
H

04
R

ed
uc

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t c
os

ts
 a

nd
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 c
os

ts
 

A
cc

es
s 

&
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t- 
 S

ta
ffi

ng
 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 e

ffi
ci

en
t 

pr
oc

es
se

s,
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 

pl
an

ne
d 

sh
ift

 o
f s

om
e 

cu
st

om
er

s 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
ei

r o
w

n 
pr

oc
es

se
s.

 

10
0

10
0

0
G

C
H

20
A

cc
es

s 
an

d 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s 

- S
ta

ff 
Sa

vi
ng

s1
2 

FT
E 

to
 b

e 
de

le
te

d 
in

 2
01

6/
17

  
12

 F
TE

 in
 1

7/
18

, 1
2 

FT
E 

in
 

18
/1

9 
- T

he
se

 s
av

in
gs

 w
ill

 
co

m
e 

fr
om

 a
cr

os
s 

A
cc

es
s 

an
d 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

co
ve

rin
g 

al
l 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

s.
   

- R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 re

vi
ew

s,
 s

oc
ia

l 
w

or
k 

su
pp

or
t, 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 
ac

tiv
ite

s,
 D

O
Ls

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

. 
(C

H
20

)

51
1

51
1

0
G

Page 79



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
&

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
A

VI
N

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
16

/1
7-

  J
ul

y 
20

17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

16
/1

7 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 £

00
0

20
16

/1
7 

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
£0

00
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00
R

A
G

C
H

58
A

cc
es

s 
an

d 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s 

- S
ta

ff 
Sa

vi
ng

s
70

0
70

0
0

G

C
H

22
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s-

 
St

af
f S

av
in

gs
- 4

 F
TE

 to
 b

e 
de

le
te

d-
 R

ed
uc

ed
 c

ap
ac

ity
 to

 
m

on
ito

r q
ua

lit
y 

w
ith

in
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

se
rv

ic
es

, r
ed

uc
ed

 c
ap

ac
ity

 to
 

m
on

ito
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

ith
in

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 a

 re
du

ce
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
to

 p
ro

ac
tiv

el
y 

w
or

k 
to

 s
us

ta
in

 a
nd

 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

lo
ca

l p
ro

vi
de

r m
ar

ke
t. 

15
6

15
6

0
G

C
H

21
D

ire
ct

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
- 

St
af

f S
av

in
gs

 1
1F

TE
 to

 b
e 

de
le

te
d-

  L
es

s 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

bo
th

 a
t d

ay
 c

en
tre

s 
an

d 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. C

lie
nt

s 
w

ou
ld

 s
pe

nd
 

m
or

e 
tim

e 
in

 la
rg

er
 c

on
gr

eg
at

ed
 

se
tti

ng
s 

w
ith

 le
ss

 c
ho

ic
e 

of
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

. T
he

se
 s

av
in

gs
 w

ou
ld

 
be

 m
ad

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

th
re

e 
LD

 a
nd

 
P

D
 d

ay
 c

en
tre

s.
 

27
4

27
4

0
G

C
H

59
D

ire
ct

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 R

es
id

en
tia

l 
an

d 
su

pp
or

te
d 

liv
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t -
st

af
f r

ed
uc

tio
ns

- 
W

e 
w

ou
ld

 e
xp

ec
t t

o 
ke

ep
 fr

on
t 

lin
e 

su
pp

or
t s

ta
ff 

bu
t r

ed
uc

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
Th

is
 w

ou
ld

 m
ea

n 
le

ss
 re

so
ur

ce
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
th

e 
em

ph
as

is
 w

ou
ld

 p
rim

ar
ily

 
on

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 c

or
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 (B
rin

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
sa

vi
ng

s 
-C

H
37

) 2
 F

TE
's

 

10
0

10
0

0
G

Page 80



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
&

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
A

VI
N

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
16

/1
7-

  J
ul

y 
20

17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

16
/1

7 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 £

00
0

20
16

/1
7 

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
£0

00
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00
R

A
G

C
H

23
D

ire
ct

or
at

e-
 S

ta
ff 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

- 
0.

46
 F

TE
 to

 b
e 

de
le

te
d-

 N
on

e,
 

po
st

 n
ow

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 
H

ea
lth

21
21

0
G

C
H

64
D

ire
ct

or
at

e-
 S

ta
ff 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

- 
(B

ud
ge

t c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 J

oi
nt

 
P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 p
os

t t
o 

be
 d

el
et

ed
)-

 N
on

e,
 p

os
t n

ow
 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth

30
30

0
G

C
H

24
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s-
 H

ig
h 

C
os

t P
ac

ka
ge

s 
- R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
H

ig
h 

C
os

t P
ac

ka
ge

s 
w

ith
 a

 
vi

ew
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

Th
is

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

ho
lis

tic
 re

vi
ew

 o
f 1

7 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

hi
gh

 c
os

t p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 (i
.e

. t
ho

se
 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
pa

ck
ag

es
 o

f c
ar

e 
ov

er
 

£1
,5

00
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

an
d 

no
t h

ea
lth

 
fu

nd
ed

). 
W

e 
w

ill
 u

se
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

s 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 

th
es

e 
re

vi
ew

s.
 W

e 
ar

e 
de

si
gn

in
g 

th
es

e 
fig

ur
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

6%
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r t

he
 

id
en

tii
fie

d 
cl

ie
nt

 g
ro

up
.

10
0

0
10

0
R

Page 81



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
&

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
A

VI
N

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
16

/1
7-

  J
ul

y 
20

17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

16
/1

7 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 £

00
0

20
16

/1
7 

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
£0

00
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00
R

A
G

C
H

25
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s-
 M

ed
iu

m
 

C
os

t P
ac

ka
ge

s-
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
m

ed
iu

m
 c

os
t p

ac
ka

ge
s 

w
ith

 a
 

vi
ew

 o
f  

pr
om

ot
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 -T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

ho
lis

tic
 re

vi
ew

 o
f i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
m

ed
iu

m
 c

os
t p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 o

f c
ar

e 
of

 b
et

w
ee

n 
£4

00
 -£

1,
50

0 
pe

r 
w

ee
k 

an
d 

no
t h

ea
lth

 fu
nd

ed
). 

W
e 

w
ill

 u
se

 th
e 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 m

od
el

 a
s 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r t
he

se
 re

vi
ew

s.
 W

e 
ar

e 
de

si
gn

in
g 

th
es

e 
fig

ur
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

10
%

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 c
lie

nt
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

gr
ou

p.
 

40
0

0
40

0
R

C
H

26
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
- D

ire
ct

 
Pa

ym
en

ts
- R

ev
ie

w
 o

f a
ll 

D
ire

ct
 

P
ay

m
en

ts
 in

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 .W
e 

w
ill

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

 P
ay

m
en

ts
 re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
cl

ie
nt

s 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

w
he

th
er

 it
 is

 s
til

l 
se

t a
t t

he
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 le

ve
l f

or
 

th
ei

r n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
fu

ll 
pa

ym
en

t i
s 

be
in

g 
ut

ili
se

d.
 W

e 
w

ill
 

us
e 

th
e 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 

m
od

el
 a

s 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 th

es
e 

re
vi

ew
s.

 W
e 

an
tic

ip
at

e 
th

is
 b

ei
ng

 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 7
%

 fo
r t

he
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 s

up
po

rt 
pa

ck
ag

es
 

w
ith

in
 th

is
 c

lie
nt

 g
ro

up
. T

he
re

 a
re

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 9

8 
pa

ck
ag

es
 in

 th
is

 
gr

ou
p.

50
50

0
R

Page 82



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
&

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
A

VI
N

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
16

/1
7-

  J
ul

y 
20

17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

16
/1

7 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 £

00
0

20
16

/1
7 

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
£0

00
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00
R

A
G

C
H

27
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
- C

ar
e 

Pa
ck

ag
es

 - 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f s
up

po
rt

 p
ac

ke
ge

s 
w

ith
in

 a
ll 

ar
ea

s 
of

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 
se

rv
ic

es
. -

 W
e 

an
tic

ip
aa

te
 th

is
 

be
in

g 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 5
%

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l s

up
po

rt 
pa

ck
ag

es
 a

nd
 w

ill
 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f D

ire
ct

 
P

ay
m

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

is
 a

re
a.

 
O

pt
io

ns
 in

cl
ud

e 
le

ss
 u

se
 o

f 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
qu

ic
ke

r r
ev

ie
w

s 
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

 
re

co
ve

ry
 m

od
el

.

76
0

76
R

C
H

28
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e-

 H
om

e 
C

ar
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
w

ith
in

 
su

pp
or

t p
ac

ka
ge

s.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 5

96
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

in
 

M
er

to
n 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
ho

m
e 

ca
re

 
w

ith
in

 th
ei

r s
up

po
rt 

pa
ck

ag
es

. 
Th

is
 re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 9
%

 in
 h

om
e 

ca
re

 
su

pp
or

t p
ac

ka
ge

s.
 

38
7

0
38

7
R

Page 83



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
&

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
A

VI
N

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
16

/1
7-

  J
ul

y 
20

17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

16
/1

7 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 £

00
0

20
16

/1
7 

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
£0

00
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00
R

A
G

C
H

32
Ph

ys
ic

al
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
- H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
-T

he
 s

av
in

g 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

ho
m

e 
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 w
ith

in
 

su
pp

or
t p

ac
ka

ge
s.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 8
9 

P
hy

si
ca

l D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

cl
ie

nt
s 

w
ith

in
 M

er
to

n 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

ho
m

e 
ca

re
 w

ith
in

 th
ei

r s
up

po
rt 

pa
ck

ag
es

. T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
sa

vi
ng

s 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 8
%

 in
 h

om
e 

ca
re

 fo
r t

hi
s 

gr
ou

p.
 

48
0

48
R

C
H

33
Ph

ys
ic

al
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s-
 H

ig
h 

C
os

t 
Pa

ck
ag

es
 - 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f P

D
 

R
es

id
en

tia
l a

nd
 1

-1
 p

ac
ka

ge
s 

.T
hi

s 
sa

vi
ng

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
ta

rg
et

ed
 re

vi
ew

 o
f a

 
sm

al
l n

um
be

r o
f P

D
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
in

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l c
ar

e.
 T

he
se

 re
vi

ew
s 

w
ou

ld
 lo

ok
 a

t r
en

eg
ot

ia
tin

g 
un

it 
co

st
s,

 tr
an

sf
er

rin
g 

us
er

s 
to

 o
th

er
 

ty
pe

s 
of

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 re
du

ci
ng

 o
r 

re
m

ov
in

g 
1-

1 
co

st
s.

60
0

60
R

C
H

60
So

ut
h 

Th
am

es
 C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s 
: 

D
ec

om
m

is
si

on
 th

e 
cr

os
sr

oa
ds

 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r c
ar

er
s.

 R
ep

la
ce

 w
ith

 
do

m
ic

ili
ar

y 
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
/ D

ire
ct

 
P

ay
m

en
t o

ffe
r a

nd
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 
ho

lis
tic

 c
ar

er
s 

 s
up

po
rt 

se
rv

ic
e 

fro
m

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r. 

29
4

29
4

0
G

Page 84



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
&

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
A

VI
N

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
16

/1
7-

  J
ul

y 
20

17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

16
/1

7 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 £

00
0

20
16

/1
7 

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
£0

00
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00
R

A
G

C
H

61
M

ea
ls

 o
n 

W
he

el
s 

(S
od

ex
o)

: 
D

ec
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

em
be

d 
su

pp
or

t w
ith

in
 c

om
m

un
ity

,  
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

an
d 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
su

pp
or

t i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e

15
3

48
10

5
R

C
H

62
Su

pp
or

te
d 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 : 
D

ec
om

m
is

si
on

 
se

rv
ic

e 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 P

ro
vi

de
r 

no
tic

e 
to

 c
ea

se
 s

er
vi

ce
 in

 M
er

to
n

10
6

10
6

0
G

C
H

63
D

ay
 s

up
po

rt
 Im

ag
in

e 
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 : 

D
ec

om
m

is
si

on
 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

is
si

on
 c

os
t 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
pe

er
 le

d 
da

y 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

84
84

0
G

C
H

51
N

H
S 

In
co

m
e 

:N
eg

ot
ia

te
 e

xt
ra

 
N

H
S

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r e

xt
ra

 c
os

ts
 o

f 
H

os
pi

ta
l D

is
ch

ar
ge

s 
- C

irc
a 

£1
50

k 
on

 p
ac

ka
ge

s,
 £

50
k 

on
 

st
af

f.

20
0

0
20

0
R

Li
br

ar
y 

&
 H

er
ita

ge
 S

er
vi

ce
C

H
44

D
el

et
io

n 
of

 a
ll 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
su

pp
or

t (
D

el
et

io
n 

of
 1

 x
 F

TE
)

26
26

0
G

C
H

45
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
2

2
0

G

C
H

46
W

ith
dr

aw
al

 fr
om

 a
nn

ua
l C

IP
FA

 
pu

bl
ic

 li
br

ar
y 

us
er

 s
ur

ve
y 

(P
LU

S
)

3
3

0
G

C
H

47
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 v

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

20
20

0
G

C
H

48
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 m

ed
ia

 fu
nd

45
45

0
G

M
er

to
n 

A
du

lt 
Ed

uc
at

io
n

C
H

15
M

A
E 

:S
ta

ffi
ng

 c
os

t r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 -

D
el

iv
er

y 
ut

ili
si

ng
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s

8
0

8

R

Page 85



D
EP

A
R

TM
EN

T:
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
&

 H
O

U
SI

N
G

 S
A

VI
N

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

20
16

/1
7-

  J
ul

y 
20

17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g
20

16
/1

7 
   

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 £

00
0

20
16

/1
7 

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
Sa

vi
ng

s 
£0

00
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00
R

A
G

H
ou

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 &

 E
na

bl
in

g
C

H
8

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
G

ra
nt

: 
56

0
56

R

C
H

9
R

at
io

na
lis

at
io

n 
of

 a
dm

in
 b

ud
ge

t :
30

30
0

G

C
H

40
H

ou
si

ng
 S

tra
te

gy
 o

ffi
ce

r -
 

de
le

tio
n 

of
 1

 F
TE

 :
43

43
0

G

C
H

41
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

of
fic

er
 d

el
et

io
n 

of
 1

 F
TE

:
33

33
0

G

C
H

42
H

ou
si

ng
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

dv
is

er
 d

el
et

io
n 

of
 1

.5
 F

TE
 :

53
53

0
G

To
ta

l C
om

m
un

ity
 &

 H
ou

si
ng

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
av

in
gs

 fo
r 

20
16

/1
7

5,
37

9
3,

65
3

1,
72

7

Page 86



D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 C
H

IL
D

R
EN

, S
C

H
O

O
LS

 A
N

D
 F

AM
IL

IE
S 

- P
R

O
G

R
ES

S 
O

N
 S

AV
IN

G
S 

16
-1

7

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

20
16

/1
7 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 

£0
00

20
16

/1
7 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

Sh
or

tfa
ll

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

20
17

/1
8 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00

17
/1

8 
R

A
G

20
18

/1
9 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

Sh
or

tfa
ll

18
/1

9 
R

A
G

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ffi
ce

r

C
hi

ld
re

n 
So

ci
al

 C
ar

e

C
SF

20
12

-0
7

Fa
m

ily
 a

nd
 A

do
le

sc
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

tre
am

 - 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

in
g 

Fa
m

ili
es

 (T
F)

, Y
ou

th
 

O
ffe

nd
in

g 
Te

am
 (Y

O
T)

 a
nd

 in
 E

du
ca

tio
n,

 T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t (

E
TE

). 
20

16
/1

7 
sa

vi
ng

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 In
si

gh
t a

nd
 d

el
et

io
n 

of
 Y

J 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
os

t.

10
0

10
0

0
10

0
0

A
10

0
0

G
P

au
l A

ng
el

i

Page 87



H
:\T

EC
H

AC
C

Y\
R

C
C

B\
R

EV
EN

U
E\

BU
D

C
O

N
TL

\B
C

20
17

-1
8\

Pe
rio

d 
5 

Au
gu

st
 2

01
7\

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 7
 - 

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
on

 s
av

in
gs

 1
6-

17
...

22
/0

9/
20

17

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 6

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 7

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 - 
PR

O
G

R
ES

S 
O

N
 S

AV
IN

G
S 

16
-1

7

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

20
16

/1
7 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 

£0
00

20
16

/1
7 

Sh
or

tfa
ll

16
/1

7 
R

A
G

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

20
17

/1
8 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00

17
/1

8 
R

A
G

20
18

/1
9 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

20
18

/1
9 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00

18
/1

9 
R

A
G

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 O
ffi

ce
r

C
om

m
en

ts

C
S3

9
Im

pa
ct

 o
f C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 R
ev

ie
w

30
30

R
0

30
A

0
30

A
D

av
id

 K
ep

pl
er

/S
ea

n 
C

un
ni

ffe
H

as
 n

ot
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 d

ue
 to

 d
el

ay
 in

 C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
  

C
S6

3
R

eo
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
of

 s
ys

te
m

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

.
88

88
R

88
0

G
88

0
G

So
ph

ie
 E

llis

C
S1

0
O

ut
so

ur
ci

ng
 - 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
es

k 
20

20
R

20
0

G
20

0
G

M
ar

k 
H

um
ph

rie
s

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

Sa
vi

ng
 fo

un
d 

fro
m

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
bu

dg
et

C
SD

2
En

er
gy

 S
av

in
gs

 (S
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

gr
ee

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t o
f £

1.
5m

)
15

0
15

0
R

15
0

0
G

15
0

0
G

M
ar

k 
H

um
ph

rie
s

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

Sa
vi

ng
 fo

un
d 

fro
m

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
bu

dg
et

To
ta

l C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

av
in

gs
 fo

r 2
01

6/
17

28
8

28
8

25
8

30
25

8
30

Page 88



AP
PE

N
D

IX
 7

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T:

 E
N

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

T 
&

 R
EG

EN
ER

AT
IO

N
 S

AV
IN

G
S 

PR
O

G
R

ES
S:

 2
01

6-
17

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

av
in

g

20
16

/1
7 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
 

£0
00

20
16

/1
7 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ac
hi

ev
ed

  
£0

00

Sh
or

tfa
ll

16
/1

7 
R

AG

20
17

/1
8 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

20
17

/1
8 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00

17
/1

8 
R

AG

20
18

/1
9 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
£0

00

20
18

/1
9 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
£0

00

18
/1

9 
R

AG
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r

C
om

m
en

ts

R
 /A

 In
cl

ud
ed

 
in

 F
or

ec
as

t 
O

ve
r/U

nd
er

s
pe

nd
? 

Y/
N

SU
ST

AI
N

AB
LE

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
ER

23
b

R
es

tru
ct

ur
e 

of
 te

am
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
or

e 
fo

cu
s 

on
 p

ro
pe

rty
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
re

si
llia

nc
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
te

am
.

52
0

52
R

40
12

R
52

0
A

Ja
m

es
 M

cG
in

la
y

B
us

in
es

s 
C

as
e 

fo
r r

es
tru

ct
ur

e 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s,
 b

ut
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

de
la

y 
it'

s 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

fu
lly

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
th

is
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r. 

S
av

in
g 

be
in

g 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

nt
s 

(r
ep

or
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

on
th

ly
 

bu
dg

et
 re

tu
rn

).

Y

EN
45

Fu
rth

er
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
is

at
io

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

po
rts

 a
nd

 a
llie

d 
pa

rk
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 (e
g.

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 fe

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 (3

.7
5%

); 
co

st
 re

co
ve

ry
 p

lu
s;

 
se

rv
ic

e 
bu

nd
lin

g;
 s

po
ns

or
sh

ip
 o

f b
ed

di
ng

 p
la

nt
s,

et
c)

, a
lig

ne
d 

to
 th

e 
em

er
gi

ng
 s

tra
te

gy
 fo

r s
po

rts
.

13
0

13
R

13
0

G
13

0
G

Ja
m

es
 M

cG
in

la
y

N

E&
R

32
W

ifi
 C

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 C
on

tra
ct

-In
co

m
e 

fro
m

 w
ifi

 c
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 c

on
tra

ct
 to

 
be

 le
t f

ro
m

 2
01

5/
16

 
20

20
0

G
0

20
R

0
20

R
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y
P

ha
se

 o
ne

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 a

nd
 p

ha
se

 
tw

o 
w

ill 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 1

7/
18

. 
N

E&
R

36
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 re

ac
tiv

e 
w

or
k 

bu
dg

et
60

0
60

R
60

0
G

60
0

G
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y
N

E&
R

38
In

co
m

e 
fro

m
 S

ec
tio

n 
27

8/
D

ev
el

op
er

s 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 w
he

re
 tr

af
fic

 w
or

ks
 a

re
 

re
qu

ire
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t .
 C

ha
rg

in
g 

fo
r w

or
k 

cu
rr

en
tly

 n
ot

 c
ha

rg
ed

 
fo

r
50

50
0

G
15

35
R

50
0

A
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ite
 re

vi
ew

 u
nd

er
w

ay
.  

Im
pl

em
en

te
d 

la
te

 2
01

7.
Y

E&
R

39
P

re
-a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
in

co
m

e.
 T

hi
s 

is
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 a

ny
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

pr
e-

ap
p 

sa
vi

ng
s 

pr
op

os
al

.
50

50
0

G
0

50
R

50
0

A
Ja

m
es

 M
cG

in
la

y
M

on
ito

re
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
.

Y

PU
B

LI
C

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

E&
R

8
In

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 re

si
de

nt
s 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 tr

af
fic

 c
on

ge
st

io
n,

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t o
f 

m
ov

in
g 

tra
ffi

c 
co

nt
ra

ve
nt

io
ns

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 A
N

P
R

.
1,

70
0

0
1,

70
0

R
17

00
0

G
17

00
0

G
Jo

hn
 H

ill
N

E&
R

9
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 o
n-

st
re

et
 b

ay
 s

us
pe

ns
io

n 
pr

ic
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

50
0

21
9

28
1

R
25

0
25

0
R

25
0

25
0

R
Jo

hn
 H

ill
Th

e 
pr

ic
in

g 
re

gi
m

e 
ha

s 
re

du
ce

d 
de

m
an

d 
to

 a
 g

re
at

er
 e

xt
en

t 
th

an
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
ex

pe
ct

ed
. H

ow
ev

er
, i

nc
om

e 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 

E
&

R
11

 s
ho

ul
d 

he
lp

 to
 o

ffs
et

 th
is

 s
ho

rtf
al

l.
Y

E&
R

10
B

ac
k 

of
fic

e 
re

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n

80
0

80
R

0
80

R
80

0
A

Jo
hn

 H
ill

Y

E&
R

13
In

cr
ea

se
 in

co
m

e 
fro

m
 d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 fe
es

 &
 c

ha
rg

es

50
10

40
R

15
35

R
50

0
A

Jo
hn

 H
ill

W
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
, b

ut
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 s

lip
pa

ge
 a

nd
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t 
fa

ilu
re

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 fu

ll 
ye

ar
 e

ffe
ct

 in
 2

01
7/

18
. T

he
 e

xp
an

de
d 

R
S

P
 (i

nc
lu

de
s 

W
an

ds
w

or
th

) b
ec

om
es

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l i

n 
A

pr
il 

20
18

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
co

m
e 

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
B

us
in

es
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ea

m
 

be
co

m
es

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l i

n 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

8.
 

Y

PU
B

LI
C

 S
PA

C
E

EN
14

M
ob

ile
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
G

P
S

 a
nd

 in
 c

ab
 m

on
ito

rs
.O

nc
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
ill 

re
du

ce
 b

ac
k 

of
fic

e 
st

af
f n

um
be

rs
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 re
du

ci
ng

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 

pa
pe

r s
ch

ed
ul

es
 a

nd
  i

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
th

e 
G

P
S

 v
eh

ic
le

 tr
ac

ki
ng

 s
ys

te
m

 w
ill 

le
ad

 
to

 im
pr

ov
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 fu
el

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
. 

10
0

0
10

0
R

10
0

0
G

10
0

0
G

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e

Th
is

 s
av

in
g 

is
 li

nk
ed

 to
 n

ew
 C

R
M

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
as

se
t M

an
ag

em
en

t B
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
.

G
P

S
 a

nd
 v

eh
ic

le
 tr

ac
ki

ng
 w

as
 n

ot
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 in
 2

01
6 

/ 1
7.

  T
hi

s 
w

ill 
be

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 P
ha

se
 C

 p
ro

je
ct

 in
 2

01
7 

18
.

N

E&
R

21
H

R
R

C
 S

ite
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 p
ro

cu
re

d 
to

 e
xt

er
na

l p
ro

vi
de

r. 
C

on
tra

ct
ua

l s
av

in
gs

.
30

0
30

R
0

30
R

0
30

R
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

A
lth

ou
gh

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t l
ed

 to
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
os

t r
ed

uc
tio

n,
 it

 w
as

 
no

t s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 e

no
ug

h 
to

 re
du

ce
 b

el
ow

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

dg
et

 le
ve

l. 
C

ur
re

nt
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 fo
re

ca
st

.
Y

E&
R

24
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 c

ur
re

nt
 le

ve
ls

 o
f s

ta
ffi

ng
 in

 th
e 

G
re

en
sp

ac
es

 g
ro

un
ds

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 h

or
tic

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 s

po
rts

 te
am

s.
 

13
0

0
13

0
R

13
0

0
G

13
0

0
G

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
N

E&
R

26
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 P
&

D
 w

ith
in

 c
er

ta
in

 p
ar

ks
 re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r t
he

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f p

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

on
tro

llin
g 

ex
ce

ss
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r s
pa

ce
s/

 
co

m
m

ut
er

 p
ar

ki
ng

60
0

60
R

5
55

R
60

0
A

G
ra

em
e 

K
an

e
It 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

ar
ou

nd
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

17
.

Y

E&
R

27
A

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ro

pe
rty

 re
nt

al
 in

co
m

e 
44

0
44

R
14

30
R

44
0

A
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

N
ew

 a
nd

 re
vi

ew
ed

 te
na

nc
ie

s 
ar

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

du
rin

g 
20

17
/1

8 
th

at
 w

ill 
he

lp
 m

ee
t t

hi
s 

sa
vi

ng
.

Y

E&
R

33
b

V
ar

io
us

 G
re

en
sp

ac
es

 B
ud

ge
ts

 - 
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 in
co

m
e 

fro
m

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s
70

0
70

R
55

15
R

70
0

A
G

ra
em

e 
K

an
e

W
or

k 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

w
ith

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

e 
£7

0k
 s

av
in

g 
re

la
te

d 
to

 
ev

en
ts

.
Y

To
ta

l E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Sa
vi

ng
s 

20
16

/1
7

2,
70

5
34

9
2,

35
6

2,
39

7
61

2
2,

70
9

30
0

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Cabinet
Date: 16 October 2017
Wards: all

Subject:  Starting Stage 1 consultation on new Local Plan
Lead officer: Director for Environment and Regeneration Chris Lee
Lead member: Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Environment and Housing, 
Councillor Martin Whelton.
Contact officer: Deputy FutureMerton manager, Tara Butler

Recommendations: 
A. That Cabinet resolve to approve the first six week consultation on the new 

borough-wide Local Plan, to run for six weeks between October and December 
2017.

B. That approval for the short consultation leaflet be delegated to the Director of 
Environment and Regeneration in consultation with the Cabinet Member.

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1. On 14 September 2016, council resolved to start a new borough-wide Local 

Plan. In line with government’s guidance, this will be a single document 
replacing both Merton’s Core Planning Strategy 2011 and Sites and Policies 
Plan 2014. 

1.2. Cabinet is now asked to approve the first statutory borough-wide 
consultation of 6 weeks, to take place between October and December 
2017.

2 DETAILS
2.1. On 14 September 2016, council resolved to start a new borough-wide Local 

Plan. In line with government’s guidance, this will be a single document 
replacing both 

 Merton’s Core Planning Strategy 2011 and 

 Sites and Policies Plan 2014. 
2.2. The new Local Plan won’t replace the South London Waste Plan 2012 (as 

this is a joint document with three other boroughs, dealing with waste 
management only) or the Estates Local Plan (as this is a site-specific rather 
than borough-wide Local Plan.

2.3. The council has already committed to creating plans for Morden and 
Wimbledon to ensure that the opportunities presented by Crossrail2 and the 
Mayor’s Housing Zone in Morden can be realised. 

Page 91

Agenda Item 6



2.4. Rather than create two separate Local Plans (with two separate sets of 
research, consultation and costs) the council will create one borough-wide 
Local Plan. 

2.5. When the Local Plan is finished, it can cover:

 Borough-wide strategic policies on housing, design, flood risk, open 
space, etc (a similar approach to that are found in the Core Planning 
Strategy)

 Area specific strategic policies covering the town centres and wider 
surroundings of Colliers Wood, Mitcham, Morden, Raynes Park and 
Wimbledon (a similar approach to those found in the Core Planning 
Strategy) These area-based policies can set the direction and allocate 
the sites for any detailed masterplans that may follow, such as for 
Morden Housing Zone.

 Setting land designations: e.g. town centre boundaries, designated 
open space boundaries, areas for nature conservation, cycle routes 
etc. (similar to the maps in the Sites and Policies Plan)

  Allocations of specific sites for development and any statutory site 
allocations or specific planning policies required for Morden, 
Wimbledon, or any other part of the borough (similar to the Sites and 
Policies Plan)

 Detailed planning policies on retail, business areas, offices in town 
centres, housing matters, urban design (similar to the Sites and 
Policies Plan)

2.6. For this stage 1 initial consultation, officers will produce a short consultation 
leaflet (5-10 pages) and web form asking residents, businesses and others 
to suggest sites to allocate for development, to suggest places that they 
want to protect or see change and to suggest ideas for new planning 
policies. 

3 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
3.1. One alternative is not to consult on the first stage of a Local Plan prior to 

December 2017. This option is not recommended as the current approach 
co-ordinates with the Mayor’s London Plan, Transport Strategy and 
Environment Strategy timetable (all of which will have been published for 
consultation by December 2017) and with the council’s requirements to 
produce a Local Implementation Plan (generating funding to the council to 
deliver the Mayor’s Transport Strategy). 

3.2. Missing this opportunity for consultation before January 2018 would remove 
the alignment between the Mayor of London’s work and the council’s work. 
This Local Plan timetable is also co-ordinated with the delivery of Morden 
Housing Zone and will de-risk the planning process to help deliver that zone.

3.3. The option not to carry out a Local Plan has already been considered and 
rejected by council at their meeting on 16 September 2017. 

Page 92



4 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED
4.1. As this is the first consultation stage, it is asking respondents questions (e.g. 

which sites they would like to see developed? What is important to you with 
new development? ) 

4.2. Officers are designing a short leaflet (5-10 pages)  that will be easily 
readable online to prompt responses on planning policy matters and 
potential sites for redevelopment. 

4.3. Peer to peer promotion of the consultation is usually a more successful 
approach. The consultation would be promoted by:

 Sending it to all +2,000 community groups, residents associations, 
nature conservation bodies, individuals, landowners, developers and 
others on Merton’s Local Plan consultation database. We will be 
asking community groups and residents associations to help spread 
the word in their own newsletters, blogs and websites.

 Having an online form and promoting it on the council’s website, 
Twitter and Facebook

 Attending community events and encouraging people to respond.

4.4. The cross-party Borough Plan Advisory Committee will review progress and 
advise Cabinet on the progress of the new Local Plan. In addition this report 
has also been considered by members of the Sustainable Communities 
Scrutiny Committee on 11 October 2017 and Cabinet members will be 
updated on any relevant outcome at their meeting on 16 October 2017. 

5 TIMETABLE
5.1. It is proposed that the consultation takes place for six weeks from around the 

end of October until the first week of December 2017. 
5.2. This timetable for considering the council’s consultation results is co-

ordinated with the publications / projects below: 

 The first consultation on the Mayor’s London Plan: due to be 
published November 2017 for three months

 The Mayor’s draft Transport Strategy and Environment Strategy, 
currently out for consultation until November 2017

 Progress on the Morden Housing Zone, de-risking the planning 
process

 The new draft of the National Planning Policy Framework, due in 
March 2018

5.3. The consultation results and all of the information will be used to inform 
Stage 2, a draft of the new Local Plan during 2018.

Page 93



6 FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS
6.1. Funding to support this work will come from existing resources and officers 

will seek opportunities for funding bids and match funding wherever 
possible. 

6.2. For example, the council made a successful funding bid to the Greater 
London Authority for £20,000 each year for 2017-18 and 2018-19 to support 
the redevelopment of Morden. Some of this funding (for example, on public 
engagement and technical expertise) will support the Morden element of the 
borough-wide Local Plan where this helps to deliver the Housing Zone.

7 LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS
7.1. The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) requires at 

least two stages of engagement on local plan making. This is the first of the 
two stages.

7.2. With the aim of encouraging more local authorities to have a local plan in 
place, the Housing and Planning Act 2016, the Act gives the Secretary of 
State greater powers to intervene in the local plan making process. 
Specifically it would allow the Secretary of State to intervene if a local 
authority was failing or omitting to do anything it is necessary for them to do 
in connection with the preparation, revision or adoption of a local plan. 

7.3. The Government’s Implementation of planning changes: technical 
consultation proposes to prioritise government intervention where:
• there is under delivery of housing in areas of high housing pressure;
• the least progress in plan-making has been made;
• plans have not been kept up-to-date.

7.4. Merton’s Core Planning Strategy was adopted in July 2011, just over six 
months prior to the National Planning Policy Framework publication in March 
2012. Although the draft NPPF was considered as part of Merton’s Core 
Planning Strategy and despite Merton producing three Local Plans between 
2012 and 2017, technically Merton’s strategic policies are not up to date. 
The preparation of the new Local Plan will enable Merton’s strategic policies 
to be revised. 

8 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 
IMPLICATIONS

8.1. Local Plans contain planning policies to improve community cohesion and 
are subject to Sustainability Appraisal / Strategic Environmental 
Assessments and Equalities Impact Assessments.

9 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
9.1. Local Plans contain planning policies to improve community cohesion and 

are subject to Sustainability Appraisal / Strategic Environmental 
Assessments which also consider matters of crime and disorder.

10 RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

Page 94



10.1. As set out in the body of this report.
11 APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE 

PUBLISHED WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT
 None

12 BACKGROUND PAPERS
12.1. Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 as amended.
12.2. National Planning Policy Guidance

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 7

Committee: Cabinet
Date: 16 October 2017
Wards: All wards
Subject:  Award of Contract for Adult Substance Misuse Treatment Service
Lead officer: Dr Dagmar Zeuner, Director of Public Health
Lead member: Cllr Tobin Byers, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care
Contact officer: Keith Daley, Substance Misuse Commissioning Manager

Recommendation:
A. That the Cabinet approves the award of a contract for the provision of the Adult 

Integrated Substance Misuse Service to Organisation A.
The value of the contract over three years is £3,785,219.
The contract will commence on 1 April 2018 and be for a period of three years 
with the option to extend for a further period of up to 24 months, subject to 
satisfactory performance, availability of budget and continued need at the sole 
discretion of the Council. The maximum possible contract period would be no 
more than five years.  

B. That the Cabinet delegates to the Director of Public Health, in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health,  the authority to extend 
the contract by the further increment of up to 24 months (as above).

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1. The purpose of this report is to seek the approval of the Cabinet to award a 

contract for the provision of the Adult Integrated Drug & Alcohol Service.
1.2. This report makes a recommendation that the Cabinet agrees to the award 

of contract to the organisation A identified in Part Two.
1.3. The contract price, over three years will be £3,785,219.
2 SUBSTANCE MISUSE STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK
2.1. Following extensive engagement with partners across Merton, the 

Substance Misuse Strategic Framework (SMSF) was supported and 
endorsed by the Health and Wellbeing Board in June 2017.

2.2. The overall aim of the SMSF is to reduce the significant harm caused by 
alcohol and drug misuse to individuals, families and communities in Merton. 

2.3. It takes forward specific objectives of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2015/18, Children and Young People’s Plan, and CCG Whole Merton Vision 
& Strategy, and contributes to the implementation of the Safer Stronger 
Merton priorities (including domestic violence).  Tackling alcohol and drug 

Page 97

Agenda Item 7



Page 2 of 7

misuse will also help close the gap in health inequalities between the west 
and east of the borough.

2.4. The SMSF has established priorities for the substance misuse agenda over 
the coming years and the procurement of the Adult Integrated Substance 
Misuse Service is an integral part of those plans for substance misuse 
prevention and treatment.  

2.5. The award of contract for the Adult Integrated Substance Misuse Service will 
support the council to deliver on improving positive outcomes for some of 
our most vulnerable residents as well as improving the life chances of many 
of the borough’s residents.

3 THE ADULT INTEGRATED DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICE
3.1. The Adult Integrated Substance Misuse Service will deliver an appropriate 

response to meeting the needs of drug & alcohol users and those individuals 
identified with both substance misuse and mental health needs within tight 
financial constraints. 

3.2. This service will have a strong focus on recovery and prevention and will be 
critical in reducing the impact of problematic drug and/or alcohol use on 
individuals, families and carers, services and communities in Merton. The 
service will include:

3.2.1 A single assessment system
3.2.2 Low intensity intervention and assertive outreach (engagement & re-

engagement, including links to vulnerable groups such as those at risk of 
homelessness)

3.2.3 Structured psychological interventions including structured day and group 
work

3.2.4 Clinical interventions: substitute prescribing and community detox; and 
interface with mental health services

3.2.5 Harm reduction interventions (including prevention of transmission of blood 
borne viruses)

3.2.6 Primary and secondary care liaison (including pathway with A&E & acute 
services)

3.2.7 Criminal justice pathway (including links to courts, probation, prison, and 
MARC processes)

3.2.8 Volunteering and peer mentoring, and access to mutual aid support
3.2.9 Support for recovery (access to education, training and employment 

opportunities, housing and benefits).
3.2.10 Opportunities for innovation in service delivery and design through a flexible 

service framework designed to enable greater responsiveness to the 
changing needs of the treatment population.  

3.2.11 A strong focus on alcohol.  It will work with the community, to raise numbers 
in treatment, to meet and exceed outcomes targets and reduce alcohol-
related harm.

Page 98



Page 3 of 7

3.2.12 Better  integration with partners across Merton; working with statutory, 
voluntary and community organisations, building on Merton’s existing 
supportive environment to achieve a holistic platform for recovery and 
entrench the Better Care Together partnership approach. 

3.2.13 Work with those opiate users who have become ‘stuck’ in treatment and 
break the cycle of dependence on substitute prescription doses, in order to 
increase successful opiate completions. 

4 PROCUREMENT PROCESS
4.1. The intention to procure the service was taken to the Council’s Procurement 

Board in January 2017 where approval was given. 
4.2. The tendering process was carried out strictly in accordance with the                

council’s Contract Standing Orders and in accordance with the Public                
Contracts Regulations 2015 and the EU Procurement Directive 2014/24/EU, 
using the open procedure and the following stages.

4.3. Stage 1 (Invitation to Tender): Potential providers are invited to submit 
responses to selection questionnaire, detailed solutions, including financial 
information for evaluation. 

4.4. Stage 2 (Clarification Questions): Those organisations that responded to 
the Invitation to Tender were sent formal questions of clarification where a 
written response would suffice, and invited to clarification interview  where 
face to face responses were required.

4.5. Stage 3 (Contract Award): A preferred bidder is appointed to deliver the 
Services.

4.6. The tender was managed via the council’s web based Electronic Tendering 
System Pro-Contract.  The exercise was carried out and supported 
throughout by the Commercial Services Team and the Council’s Legal 
Services to ensure a robust approach that adopted good practice.  

5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
5.1. This service was subject to a recent procurement exercise in late 2015. The 

objectives of that re-procurement were to achieve efficiency savings whilst 
creating a more integrated substance misuse service model. Unfortunately 
there were no bids.

5.2. Feedback from those providers who had expressed an initial interest in the 
bid opportunity, stated that the specified activity required, could not be safely 
achieved within the financial envelope.  The specification for this current 
procurement, has been developed in consultation with the market as well as  
partnership, stakeholders and service users.

5.3. Due to the unsuccessful procurement, Cabinet , on 6th June 2016, approved 
the extension of the current substance misuse contract from 1st April 2016 
to 30th June 2016, and agreed to delegate to the Director of Community and 
Housing (C&H)( in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Adult Social 
Care and Health), the authority to negotiate and approve a further contract 

Page 99



Page 4 of 7

extension. This further extension was agreed and covers the period from 1st 
July 2016 to 31st March 2018. This extension is currently active.

5.4. The unsuccessful procurement exercise and the decision to begin the 
current procurement exercise, has meant that we are now able to complete 
the preferred option, which is to award a contract to the preferred bidder. 

5.5. Should the Cabinet decide not to award the contract, those Public Health 
Outcomes Framework outcomes which relate to substance misuse i and 
outcomes identified within the Substance Misuse Strategic framework will 
not be realised.

6 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
6.1. The development of the specification for the new service was based on a 

review process involving extensive engagement with stakeholders 
(colleagues across community safety, licensing, CCG, police, probation, 
Children, Schools and Families and specialist providers. 

6.2. Two successful ‘market warming’ events were held, which were attended by 
providers from across the sector including providers from within NHS and 
third sector providers. 

6.3. Commissioners carried out a ‘soft’ market testing exercise to give a better 
understanding of the current market and identify and understand market 
trends. 

6.4. These activities enabled commissioners to clarify a number of areas with 
potential bidders and finalise the specification in advance of the formal 
process.

6.5. Extensive Service user engagement was undertaken including consultation 
at all stages of the process and representation at all market engagement 
events.  Service users were also represented on the evaluation panel.  

7 TIMETABLE
7.1. The timetable for contract signature (which is subject to democratic 

procedures) is as follows:

Gateway Two – Procurement Board 
Decision

19th September 2017

Community and Housing Divisional 
Management Team

21st September 2017

Corporate Management Team 26th September 2017

Leaders Strategy Group 2nd October 2017

Cabinet 16th October 2017

Call in period ends 19th October 2017

Notification of Preferred Bidder 20th October 2017

Page 100



Page 5 of 7

End of 10 day stand still period 30th October 2017

Contract Signature January 2018

8 FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS
8.1. In the financial year 2017/18 £60,000 savings were released from the 

substance misuse treatment annual contract value which has reduced the 
envelope for this procurement. 

8.2. The contract value for the initial Three years is £3,785,219. This will mean a 
budget saving over three years, of £39,781.

8.3. There will be no additional costs to LBM to extend the contract. Bidders were 
required to submit costs for any potential year 4 or 5 within their pricing 
schedules. Any extension will not be subject to inflationary uplift.

8.4. Overall substance misuse services have a high level of return on 
investment- off setting costs to the health, social and criminal justice budgets 
(for example costs relating alcohol related hospital admissions, substance 
misuse associated with domestic violence cases, and broader alcohol and 
drugs related crime).

8.5. Overall it is estimated that every £1 spent on drug misuse treatment saves 
£2.50 in costs to society (National Treatment Agency 2012). 

8.6. TUPE costs including redundancy and pensions, where appropriate, have 
been identified within the pricing schedule of the preferred bidders. 

9 LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS
9.1. As per the main body of this report, the Council is seeking approval to award 

a contract for the delivery of adult substance misuse services following the 
conclusion of a procurement process. 

9.2. The Council in awarding contracts must comply with the provisions of The 
Public Contracts Regulations (PCR 2015) and its Contract Standing Orders. 
In addition, there is a duty on the Council to comply with EU Fundamental 
Treaty Principles of transparency, non-discrimination, and equal treatment.

9.3. The procurement process with advice from the Council’s Procurement 
Services and Legal Services at various stages (as per the main body of this 
report) has been carried out in compliance with the requirements set out in 
the Council’s Contract Standing Orders, PCR 2015, the Fundamental Treaty 
Principles and current procurement Best Practice.  

9.4. Legal Services has been consulted in respect of the proposed award and 
invited to input in this report as necessary. Having reviewed the procurement 
process set out in the main body of this report, we are satisfied that the 
procurement process followed presents little or no risk of challenge should a 
contract be awarded to the successful tenderer as recommended by this 
report.

9.5. The Council must ensure that once approval to award has been obtained, it 
publishes a contract award notice in accordance with Regulation 50 of PCR 

Page 101



Page 6 of 7

2015 and ensure also that it maintains an audit trail of the procurement 
process in accordance with Regulation 84 of PCR 2015.

9.6. Legal Services will upon receipt of instructions from the Council (assuming 
that there is no challenge to the procurement process) prepare hard copies 
of the services contract for execution by the Council and the successful 
tenderer.

10 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 
IMPLICATIONS

10.1. There are not expected to be any human rights issues from the programme.
10.2. It is expected that the service will make a positive contribution towards the 

reduction of health inequalities through the effective prevention of substance 
misuse related harm.  

10.3. The implementation of the proposed service will be subject to an Equalities 
Impact Assessment.  Any negative impact identified will be subject to a 
mitigation action plan.

10.4. Although a borough wide service, the specification highlights a need for the 
service to proactively engage with those currently under represented within 
treatment services and those in ‘hard to reach’ communities.

11 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
11.1. The delivery of an Integrated Adult Substance Misuse Service is an aim of 

the Substance Misuse Strategic Framework.  The Strategic Framework 
objectives and desired outcomes cover issues of community safety and 
crime reduction.

11.2. Substance misuse and its associated issues have a disproportionate impact 
on individuals, families and communities imposing significant economic and 
social costs to society reflected in the cost of healthcare the provision of 
public services and the cost of crime.  A reduction in crime and offending in 
those that access the service is a measured and monitored deliverable of 
the new service.  

12 RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
12.1. Risks associated with the mobilisation of this contract are:
12.1.1 The continuity of care of service users. 

 The continuity of care of service users is managed both through the 
provider’s implementation plan and Risk/Contingency management plan.

 Commissioners will actively monitor the safe transfer of care.
12.1.2 TUPE- The expectation is that TUPE will apply. There is the possibility of a 

selection process as the staff structure in the new service may be different 
from the existing staff structure. 

 Consideration of timescales linked to the TUPE process has been 
accommodated within the implementation plan.

 LBM would not be responsible for any redundancy costs. The bidders 
were required to identify TUPE costs within their Pricing schedule.
 

Page 102



Page 7 of 7

12.1.3 Premises- 
 The tenderers were required to outline plans for acquiring premise 

within their method statements.  
12.2. Legal Challenge

 In any procurement exercise, there is a risk of legal challenge. This 
has been mitigated through the commissioners being guided by legal 
and procurement advice throughout the process and  by ensuring that 
all bidders received fair treatment with all bids being evaluated using 
consistent methodology.

12.3. All other risks, assumptions, issues and dependencies are being actively 
managed as part of the programme. 

12.4. There are not expected to be any Health and Safety implications.
13 CONFIDENTIAL APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE 

TO BE PUBLISHED WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE 
REPORT.

13.1. A. Organisation to whom it is recommended to award the contract
13.2. B. Evaluation of Integrated Service Bids.
13.3. C. Financial Implications.
14 BACKGROUND PAPERS
14.1. The following documents have been relied on in drawing up this report but 

do not form part of the report

 The Council’s Contract Standing Orders
 Merton’s Joint Strategic Framework for prevention of substance 

misuse & related harm 2017-2021 (LBM & MCCG).

i 2.15i - Successful completion of drug treatment - opiate users
  2.15ii - Successful completion of drug treatment - non-opiate users
  2.16 - People entering prison with substance dependence issues who are previously not known to   
community treatment
  

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Cabinet
Date: 16 October 2017
Wards: All Wards

Subject:  Tackling Loneliness in Merton – Final report and 
recommendations of the scrutiny task group 
review.

Lead officer:      Stella Akintan, Scrutiny Officer
Lead member:  Councillor Sally Kenny, Task Group Chair. 
Contact Officer: Stella Akintan; stella.akintan@merton.gov.uk; 020 8545 3390
_____________________________________________________________________
Recommendations:
A. That Cabinet considers the report and recommendations (attached in 

Appendix A) arising from the scrutiny review of Tackling Loneliness in 
Merton.

B. That Cabinet agrees to the implementation of the recommendations through 
an action plan being drawn up by officers working with relevant local partner 
organisations and Cabinet Member(s) to be designated by Cabinet. 

C. That Cabinet decides whether it wishes to formally approve this action plan 
prior to it being submitted to the Healthier Communities and Older People 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel.

_____________________________________________________________________       

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
To present the scrutiny review report on Tackling Loneliness in Merton for 
endorsement and seek approval to implement the review recommendations 
through an action plan being drawn up.

2. DETAILS
2.1 In June 2016  the Healthier  Communities and Older People Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel agreed to undertake a scrutiny review of Tackling Loneliness 
in Merton in response to concerns from the local community including school 
ambassadors from Abbotsbury Primary School. The Panel decided to focus 
on loneliness amongst older people as it is found to be higher amongst this 
group.

2.2 The findings and recommendations of the review are set out in Appendix A.      

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
3.1 The Healthier  Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

can select topics for scrutiny review and for other scrutiny work as it sees fit, 
taking into account views and suggestions from officers, partner 
organisations and the public. 

3.2 Cabinet is constitutionally required to receive, consider and respond to 
scrutiny recommendations within two months of receiving them at a meeting.

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



3.3 Cabinet is not, however, required to agree and implement recommendations 
from Overview and Scrutiny. Cabinet could agree to implement some, or 
none, of the recommendations made in the scrutiny review final report.

4. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED
4.1 In carrying out its review, the task group questioned senior council officers 

as well as visiting other local authorities
4.2 TIMETABLE
4.3 The final report was approved by the Panel on 06 September 2017 where it 

was agreed to present the report to Cabinet. 

5. FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS
5.1 None for the purposes of this covering report.  It is envisaged that the 

recommendations in the attached report will not have any major resource 
implications.  However, any specific resource implications will be identified 
and presented to Cabinet prior to agreeing an action plan for implementing 
the report’s recommendations.

7.              LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

7.1            None for the purposes of this report. Scrutiny work involves consideration of 
the legal and statutory implications of the topic being scrutinised.

8. HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 
IMPLICATIONS

8.1 It is a fundamental aim of the scrutiny process to ensure that there is full and 
equal access to the democratic process through public involvement and 
engaging with local partners in scrutiny reviews.  Furthermore, the outcomes 
of reviews are intended to benefit all sections of the local community.  

9. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
9.1 None for the purposes of this report. Scrutiny work involves consideration of 

the crime and disorder implications of the topic being scrutinised.    

10. RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
10.1 None for the purposes of this report.  

11. APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE 
PUBLISHED WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT

11.1 Appendix 1 – Task group report on “Tackling Loneliness in Merton”

12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Page 106



1

Tackling loneliness in 
Merton

Task Group members:
Councillor Sally Kenny (Chair)
Councillor Laxmi Attawar
Councillor Mary Curtin
Councillor Joan Henry
Councillor Brian Lewis Lavender

Page 107



2

Recommendations

1. To ensure loneliness is included within other strategies such as Falls 
Strategy, Hoarding Protocol and Volunteering Strategy.

2. Merton Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the East Merton Model of health to 
make reference to current work connecting communities which will address 
loneliness. 

3. Public Health and Merton Clinical Commissioning Group (utilising existing 
infrastructure e.g. social prescribing and directories)   develop an agreed list 
of voluntary and community sector groups who provide services to tackle  
loneliness and provide community activities for older people. 

4. Merton Clinical Commissioning Group to use the Practice Manager’s forum to 
have a session to highlight the issues around  loneliness 

5. Public Health Team to lead discussions with partners such as the Chamber of 
Commerce on innovative ways to connect local communities to reduce 
loneliness. These discussions could draw on examples set out in this report. 
New approaches could use existing resources such as training material from 
Making Every Contact Count initiative and the Campaign to End Loneliness. 

6. An Article in My Merton to profile the agreed list of community activities and 
services that lead to greater connectivity for older people with case studies 
from people who have benefitted from them. 

7. Public Health to host lunchtime seminar for councillors on ‘connecting 
communities with the aim of tackling loneliness’ highlighting key issues and 
good practice.  

Page 108



3

                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Chair’s Foreword

The Task Group considering how to alleviate loneliness in later years involved 
Councillors; Joan Henry, Laxmi Attawar, Mary Curtin and Brain Lewis Lavender.   
We wanted to achieve the best understanding of approaches to alleviate this, as well 
as what was already being undertaken in Merton. We liaised with various groups 
including Age UK, Merton & Wimbledon Guilds, Street Pastors and The British Red 
Cross.  It was especially good to liaise with Abbotsbury Primary School and hear 
their excellent contributions. To have young school children so interested and full of 
ideas was invigorating. The meetings involved reaching out to groups as well as 
inviting them to the Civic Centre. 

The group met over a period of about eight months. Interesting strategies were 
presented and thoughtful ideas put forward. We heard about approaches that 
highlighted the role of volunteers. We also gave some thought to safeguarding as a 
vital aspect of this work. The group appreciates the involvement, contribution and 
effort of all the groups involved, in particular the organisation arranged and 
administered by Stella Akintan, who collated and recorded the work. 

Councillor Sally Kenny

Chair Loneliness Task Group. 

Page 109



4

Introduction

Merton is fortunate to have a vibrant voluntary and community sector which provides 
a wide range of services and support to those affected by loneliness. Councillors on 
this task group also work on the frontline within their local communities to make a 
difference in the lives of those who are experiencing this issue. 

The topic was put forward by the school council at Abbotsbury Primary School. 
Pupils had seen the impact of loneliness within their community and wanted to take 
action to tackle it. Merton Councillors went to meet with them to discuss the issue 
and were highly impressed by their concern for wellbeing amongst senior citizens 
and for the well thought out and practical suggestions they put forward.

Loneliness is a wide ranging and complex area in terms of its definition, who it 
affects and most importantly how to tackle it. 

Loneliness has been defined as a negative experience that involves painful feelings 
of not belonging and disconnectedness from others. It occurs when there is a 
discrepancy between the quantity and quality of social relationships that we want, 
and those that we have. 1

Therefore the challenge for professionals is more than simply increasing the number 
of daily social interactions. It involves helping people to build meaningful 
relationships and social connections. This alleviates loneliness and contributes to an 
overall sense of happiness and contentment with life. 2

The impact of loneliness is also a major public issue. It is known to have a 
detrimental impact on health and wellbeing causing depression and increasing the 
risk of premature death. It can exacerbate existing mental health issues and lead to 
additional ones such as anxiety and depression. Lonely adults are more likely to be 
overweight and less likely to take exercise. Feeling lonely has been shown to 
increase blood pressure and risk of cardiovascular diseases. Overall loneliness can 
increase the risk of premature death by 30 per cent. 3

This review will focus on loneliness amongst older people and specifically ways to 
identify ‘hidden citizens’; those who are lonely but not connected or known to 
services in their community.  Loneliness is a personal and stigmatised experience 
therefore it can be difficult to identify people suffering from it. This group may face a 
number of barriers that may prevent regular contacts within their local communities 
including a lack of confidence in unfamiliar surroundings. 

1 Hidden citizens: How can we identify the most lonely older adults. Campaign to End Loneliness, .2015.  

2 Trapped in a bubble: An investigation into triggers for loneliness in the UK, Co-op British Red Cross, December 2016.

3 Loneliness and Social Isolation in older people Policy Briefing, Local Government Information Unit. 

Page 110



5

Those who provide services for older people agreed that attracting people to 
services, especially those who may not come through a traditional referral process, 
is an important area to review.  With an ageing population it is important that 
councillors with their knowledge of local communities review this issue and put 
forward suggestions for change.

Why the task group chose to focus on older people
Loneliness is an experience that can be exacerbated by different life events such as 
being a young parent, having health or mobility issues. Loneliness can occur at 
different critical junctures across the age ranges and may only persist for a short 
period. This report will focus on loneliness amongst older people for whom it is 
thought to be the most acute.

Risk factors for loneliness amongst the over 80s includes those on low income, poor 
physical or mental health, living along or in or in poor rural isolated areas or deprived 
urban areas. 

Research by Age UK has highlighted the extent of loneliness. Over a million older 
people say that they always or often feel lonely – with those over 80 almost twice as 
likely to report feeling lonely most of the time compared to their younger counterparts 
(14.8% of 16-64s report this, compared to 29.2% over the over 80s) Around a fifth of 
older people (17%) are in touch with family, friends and neighbours less than once a 
week. Around 2 million people over 75 live alone and 1.5 million of these are 
women.7 12% of older people report feeling trapped in their own homes, 6% leave 
their homes less than once a week. 4

As the population continues to age, so too will these particular sub-groups most at 
risk of feeling lonely. For example, increasing numbers of older people will be living 
longer with multiple health conditions, whilst people living into their 80s and 90s (the 
“older old”) is set to increase dramatically, with the number of people over 85 
projected to double within the next 23 years, to more than 3.4 million by 2040.

Reasons for the rise in loneliness

A number of reasons have been put forward for the rise of acute loneliness which 
affects health. Some research has found that British society has become more 
geographically and demographically segregated since the 1960s, and as a result, 
people are experiencing stronger feelings of isolation and weaker feelings of 
“belonging”. The UK has also experienced greater prosperity and better access to 
transport, which has made it easier for people to move for employment, retirement, 
and a better quality of life. The decline in marriage, increasing divorce, immigration 
and a growing student population were also cited as having contributed to the 
segregation. 

4 DEMOS: Building Companionship: how better design can combat loneliness in later life, April 2016. 

Page 111



6

There has also been a deterioration of old-style communities where local services 
such as the post office and local pub provided a focus point for the area.  The loss of 
these services is thought to contribute to the decline in the community spirit. 5

The role of the local authority to tackle loneliness

The LGA working with Age UK and the Campaign to End Loneliness produced 
guidance for local authorities on how to tackle loneliness6. It recognises that no 
organisation can deal with this challenge alone, but calls on councils to lead a co-
ordinated strategy involving other local partners such as health and voluntary 
sectors, those experiencing or at risk of loneliness. Councils are encouraged to 
adopt clear mechanisms to identify and address loneliness in their services.  

The report highlights that measures to tackle loneliness are cost effective in 
comparison to the potential costs of providing health, social care services to lonely 
people. 

The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment is identified as an important tool to 
understand the nature and extent of loneliness in the local area, as it can identify 
those at risk and include outcome measures for the Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy. 

The report has set out a framework for tackling loneliness, this identifies key points 
of intervention:

Foundation Services: reach out to lonely individuals and connect them to existing 
services.

Gateway Services: provide the mechanisms to bring people together such as 
transport and technology and social media platforms.

Direct Interventions: these are the local services in place to support lonely people. 
This can be the lunch clubs and activities provided by voluntary and community 
sector organisations, or it can be informal gatherings taking place in communities for 
example a local councillor setting up a domino club to engage potentially lonely older 
men in the area. 

Structural Enablers: create the right environment to reduce loneliness. This includes 
neighbourhood approaches, volunteering and positive ageing programmes. 

Loneliness in Merton

Merton Public Health Team estimates there are at least 8,000 lonely people in the 
borough. London’s older people population has been identified as having one of 
highest levels of loneliness in the country, reporting that more than four out of five 
(87%) felt lonely at least some of the time. London and the North West also score 

5 DEMOS: Building Companionship: how better design can combat loneliness in later life, April 2016. 

6  Combatting loneliness: A guide for local authorities. Local Government Association, Age UK

Page 112



7

poorly for having adequate opportunities to socialise and having adequate social 
events for the over 55s, which may be a contributing factor in their high loneliness 
scores.7 Age UK Merton said there are particular problems in tackling loneliness 
amongst older men and some ethnic minority groups.  Although the task group are 
aware that local groups provide services for ethnic minority groups and Merton’s 
diverse population. 

Social class can be an influencing factor in levels of loneliness as wealthier people 
are seen as able to alleviate loneliness through using their financial resources to 
participate in a wide range of activities. However, the Age UK heat map (attached at 
Appendix A)  for Merton shows that there are hot spots across Merton’s wealthy west 
of the borough as well as the more deprived east. Colleagues from Merton and 
Morden Guild told the task group that they believe there are high levels of loneliness 
in the Merton Park area. The task group felt this is likely to be a common thread and 
there will be pockets of loneliness throughout the borough.  

Current services to address loneliness in Merton.

The task group spoke to a wide range of local organisations supporting people who 
may have otherwise been lonely.  These evidence gathering sessions helped to build 
a comprehensive picture of the services available in Merton and the main issues and 
challenges they are facing in tackling this issue. 

Merton Councillors

Merton councillors play an important role in building strong cohesive communities 
and connecting vulnerable people to local activities. Within the task group members 
have: 

 Set up and facilitated lunch clubs and activity groups for older people 
 Set up domino clubs for local residents 
 worked with community groups and faith organisations to provide services
 Developing a local park with flowers and shrubs to attract the local community 

to use it.

Merton Public Health Team

The Public Health team conducted research in 2016 to look at the range of evidence 
based interventions available to tackle loneliness. As a result they invested in a 
befriending pilot. The service ran in collaboration with Age UK Merton, Wimbledon 
Guild, Positive Network, and Carers Support. This pilot was completed in February 
2017. The project sought to identify the most isolated and establish telephone or 
face to face contact. 

Age UK Merton

All services provided by Age UK Merton tackle loneliness. They serve 2,500 clients a 
year. Services are available to residents across the the whole of the borough, 

7 DEMOS: Building Companionship: how better design can combat loneliness in later life, April 2016.

Page 113



8

however  clients usually come from the more deprived east because this is where 
most activities  are located. The age range of clients is between 65-100 years old. 
Activities include; holistic massage, art and craft, exercise classes, information and 
advice, befriending and continence services. 

Merton Clinical Commissioning Group

Merton Clinical Commissioning Group (MCCG) recognises the important role of 
primary care in identifying loneliness and signposting people to the appropriate 
services.  They informed the task group that they are moving towards a new model 
of supported self care as GPs only spend a limited time with patients and they are 
not aware of the breath of non medical services available in the community.  
Therefore MCCG is running a social prescribing pilot in four practices. 

Social prescribing presents the most exciting opportunity for tackling the loneliness 
agenda. It enables GPs to consider patients needs in a holistic way and rather than 
dispense medication they can refer people to activities in the voluntary and 
community sector. There is currently a pilot in two GP surgeries in East Merton.  If 
people meet the criteria for social prescribing which includes loneliness and social 
isolation, their GP will link them to a community co-ordinator, who find more 
appropriate services in the voluntary and community sector.

Community Co-ordinators hold expertise on a statutory, community and voluntary 
services across the borough. They sign post and act as advocates for local people.  
Frontline workers such as social workers can seek advice from Community Co-
ordinators to refer people to appropriate services. Community Co-ordinators can also 
spend some time working in the community

Libraries

Libraries are accessible open spaces and attract a diverse range of people.  Library 
staff come into contact with a wide range of issues including people who have not 
had any conversations, human contact with anyone that week, homelessness, 
depression and other mental health issues. They provide a range of training for 
library staff to help signpost people informally and refer them to agencies. Merton 
library service has the most successful volunteering scheme in England.  

Adult Social Care

The council has a good understanding of the impact of loneliness on physical and 
mental health and recognises its important role in referring people to appropriate 
services within partner organisations. Two members of staff from the adult social 
care team work in the Merton Civic Centre reception Link in a weekly session to 
signpost and navigate people to appropriate services. This started in July 2017 and 
at least 300 people have been supported. The services refer people to activities and 
helps with transport costs.   

The department commissioned an ageing well grants programme. Four local 
organisations were selected to run specific projects; Friends of St Helier, Age UK, 
Wimbledon Guild, Merton and Morden Guild. It is recognised that there are a 

Page 114



9

plethora of local organisations across Merton running services, many with little or no 
external funding. 

Carers Support Merton has been commissioned to run a carers hub; this began on 
the 1st July 2016 and had referred 200 people by February 2016.

Wimbledon Guild

Wimbledon Guild (WG) run a wide range of services focussing on ageing well. They 
give small grants, offer counselling, chiropody, befriending, holistic therapy service. 
They have a person centred approach and meet with clients to identify their needs.  
WG have a charity shop in Mitcham Green. Referrals come from hospitals, adult 
social care, faith groups, families and word of mouth. WG refer people to other local 
services.  

Merton and Morden Guild

Merton and Morden Guild (MMG) run a wide range of services in the community 
including a falls prevention course. The exercise programme is very popular and is 
attractive to those who may be lonely.  As these activities do not have specific 
funding streams they remain under the threat of closure. MMG also work with 
Raynes Park High School providing intergenerational work helping older people set 
up their devices so they can Skype their families. Fire, Ambulance, PCSO services 
attend MMG to speak to service users and provide information and advice. 

Street Pastors

Street pastors patrol the Wimbledon area late at night to provide reassurance and 
support to local residents. They hand out flip-flops to prevent accidents caused by 
wearing high heels when intoxicated, blankets for rough sleepers, help people who 
have collapsed on the street, help people to get transport home and offer a listening 
ear. Street Pastors maintain an up to date list of local services and have a referral 
list. Sometimes they engage in further follow up and attend agencies with people. 
They also work closely with the police and the council.

British Red Cross

British Red Cross are not currently providing Independent services in Merton8 but 
met with the task group to provide an overview of their work. BRC are working with 
the Co-op on a project to tackle loneliness, this started in May 2017. It recognises all 
types of loneliness. The project will use community connectors who will be recruited 
to work for 3 days. Their role will include recruitment and training of volunteers in the 

8 BRC do have a Memorandum of Understanding with Merton Council Emergency Planning Team 
which means BRC will provide emergency support to vulnerable people in crisis if called upon by the 
Council. This supports people during things like UK Power Networks power outages, floods and in 
any instance a humanitarian assistance centre needs to be opened within the community. 

Page 115



10

community. Volunteers will go into local areas to identify people and re-connect them 
to their communities so they don’t feel isolated. The aim is to connect people to 
existing services or community groups that help to reduce feelings of isolation. If a 
community group does not exist already, BRC will work with councils partners and 
community groups to establish new ones. The current funding will last for two years. 
The aim is to move away from traditional methods and not just signpost people into 
services. 

Feedback from Abbotsbury Primary School

Some of the task group met with a group of school ambassadors who were working 
on a project looking at how to make improvements in their local community. The 
school ambassadors came up with ideas on how to tackle loneliness and shared 
them with councillors during the visit. 

Task group members reflected on the responses from the school ambassadors 
throughout the review.  Some of the suggestion which were particularly pertinent 
included:

The pupils highlighted that impact of low self esteem on older people and suggested 
that a pampering service which would help to build their confidence. The task group 
found that pampering sessions which are provided by Age UK Merton and 
Wimbledon Guild.

Page 116



11

A pupil said…. 

“maybe it’s possible to make elderly people feel good about themselves and have 
days where they go out and meet new people and get their nails done and hair done 
and maybe some massage but not only for women but with men too. Some people 
need encouragement to eat healthily and feel good about themselves and get out of 
the house.”

They highlighted the benefit of social activities such as eating meals in a group. This 
is beneficial for both social activity to alleviate loneliness and can also encourage 
healthy eating. This is a core provision within many services such as Asian Elderly, 
Friends of St Helier and Wimbledon Guild, which has its own café. 

Transport and financial issues were also raised as barriers to tackling loneliness. 

 “ some elderly people cannot afford cars because they might have financial issues 
or something so we could provide special transport for those elderly people who 
can’t drive.” 

The school ambassadors also offered to do some fund raising to resolve the financial 
issues.

Findings of the task group

The task group spent a considerable amount of time deliberating on how to tackle 
loneliness.  They found that a new landscape is emerging with the council 
increasingly taking on the role of an enabler rather than provider of non statutory 
services. For example the Adult Social Care team explained that they do not 
specifically provide services to people who are lonely. Therefore they refer people to 
appropriate partner organisations in the voluntary sector.

The task group also found that the future shape of health services has a stronger 
focus on connecting communities and tackling the wider determinants of health and 
wellbeing and moving away from the medical model of health. For example the East 
Merton Model of health and the new Wilson health facility which is in the early stage 
of development will be a health and wellbeing campus, with involvement from the 
community. It will be a dementia friendly environment and the needs of older people 
will be central. 

A holistic approach

The task group are keen to see a holistic approach to tackling loneliness rather it 
being looked at in isolation. It is important that our understanding of loneliness is 
reflected and embedded within in all the relevant strategies. The Public Health Team 
highlighted that there is a link between dementia, loneliness and falls. All these 
impact upon each other as dementia and being at risk of falling can cause isolate 
and make it difficult to maintain relationships.

Page 117



12

The task group believes that we must recognise that loneliness is not only about 
providing services to people. Many people who are lonely would benefit from 
opportunities to volunteer.  Building resilience is an important tool in tackling 
loneliness, therefore it is important to promote independence and look at existing 
resources within communities to support the vulnerable.  The review of Loneliness 
from the City of London which highlights that it is important not to see communities 
as a repository of needs but rather a source of opportunity and strength. People are 
not only seen as recipients of services but rather those who something to offer and 
capacity to develop their own potential.  9

Task Group members would also like the Health and Wellbeing Strategy to make 
reference to loneliness, highlighting the important work taking place and their 
aspirations to tackle this issue.  

Recommendation
1 To ensure loneliness is linked to other strategies such as Falls Strategy, 

Hoarding Protocol and Volunteering Strategy.

2 Merton Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the East Merton Model of Health  
to make reference to current work on connecting communities which will 
address loneliness. 

Relationship between the Community and Voluntary and statutory medical 
sectors

The task group welcome the new social prescribing pilot; it addresses many of the 
challenges that were highlighted during the review. A major concern was relationship 
between the voluntary sector and GPs. Witnesses told task group members that 
GP’s can be reluctant to refer people to voluntary services. When the voluntary 
sector had the opportunity to discuss this with GPs they found that their hesitancy 
stemmed from their lack of knowledge about the credibility of these organisations. 
This came as a surprise to the task group particularly given that nationally 
recognised organisations such as Age UK Merton said they experienced the same 
problem.

There are similar concerns in relation to information material as surgeries can be 
hesitant to display voluntary sector leaflets in their surgeries.  Merton Clinical 
Commissioning Group told councillors that the practice managers have a 
responsibility to act as gate keepers regarding the information on display to protect 
patients. It was highlighted that the surgeries are very busy and receive many 
requests to display information. MCCG told the task group that they hold a regular 

9 Improving Social Wellbeing in the City of London. Reducing loneliness and building communities. City of London

Page 118



13

forum with Practice Managers and they could have a session to discuss all the 
issues surrounding loneliness in this setting. 

It is clear to the task group that there is a necessity to build a relationship between 
the medical professions and the voluntary sector. One based on trust and mutual 
appreciation of their important contributions to health and wellbeing. The Health and 
Wellbeing Board is already playing an important role in this regard, as will the social 
prescribing pilot. It is also important to build relationships on the ground.  The task 
group believes MCCG and the Public Health team should work together to develop 
an agreed list of voluntary and community sector organisations  who  are recognised 
for their work on tackling loneliness. These recommended groups can then receive 
referrals from GP’s and Community co-ordinators and can build stronger 
relationships with GP Surgeries. 

Recommendation
3 Public Health and Merton Clinical Commissioning Group (utilising existing 

infrastructure e.g. social prescribing and directories)   develop an agreed list 
of voluntary and community sector groups who provide services to tackle  
loneliness and provide community activities for older people.

4 Merton Clinical Commissioning Group to use the Practice Manager’s forum to 
have a session to highlight the issues around loneliness.

Increased role for front line organisations

The task group considered how front line organisations can contribute to the 
loneliness agenda. These organisations work directly within neighbourhoods; 
therefore they tend to know the local residents well and could potentially, with 
training and support, refer people to appropriate services or professionals. 

Street pastors have regular contact with vulnerable members of the community and 
may be able to help identify lonely people and refer them to appropriate services. 
However, to perform this role they will need further training on recognising signs of 
loneliness. They can also add recommended groups to their list of referral services.

The task group also spoke to colleagues who support neighbourhood watch and 
local high street businesses. Both officers informed the task group that these groups 
could be well placed to refer people who may be lonely, as they have a good links 
with the community.  

The task group understand that Neighbourhood Watch Co-ordinators are very active 
and know who is vulnerable in the local area; they have good local knowledge as 
well as sit on ward panels.

The task group would like there to be more collaboration between different agencies 
in identifying and referring people to loneliness services. Some of whom have not 

Page 119



14

traditionally had tackling loneliness within their remit. We need to develop or use 
existing tools to recognise loneliness.

Both Wimbledon and Merton and Morden Guilds suggested that there could be an 
important role for supermarkets and local shops in signposting local people to 
existing services.  The task group met with the British Red Cross who reported that 
the Co-op worked with BRC to fundraise for the social isolation work the charity was 
now delivering and have continued to support with promotion of the services in the  
community the service was operating in.  

Again the task group found that there are structures in place that can be utilised to 
make links with supermarket managers to display information and identity.  There 
are town centre officers in Mitcham and Colliers Wood ward shops. There is a 
business improvement district in Wimbledon Park that has a town centre forum 
managed through the chamber of commerce. The task group also believes the 
borough would benefit from the services provided by the British Red Cross. 

The Campaign to End Loneliness has produced a number of resources that could be 
helpful with training and awareness raising: 

https://www.campaigntoendloneliness.org/wp-content/uploads/The-Missing-Million-
report-FINAL.pdf

https://www.campaigntoendloneliness.org/wp-content/uploads/CEL-Missing-Millions-
Guide_final.pdf

Recommendation
5 Public Health Team to lead discussions with partners such as the Chamber of 

Commerce on innovative ways to connect local communities to reduce 
loneliness. These discussions could draw on the examples set out in this 
report. New approaches could use existing resources such as training 
material from Making Every Contact Count initiative and the Campaign to End 
Loneliness.

New and Innovative ways to identify hidden citizens

All witnesses informed the task group that identifying lonely people is one of the 
most challenging aspects of their work. Although there are many people in the 
communities who may be experiencing loneliness a number of barriers will mean 
that many will not access services that can support them.  Given the stigma attached 
to loneliness and potential embarrassment they may feel in admitting they have a 
problem, many people may not wish to approach organisations directly. They may 

Page 120

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.campaigntoendloneliness.org_wp-2Dcontent_uploads_The-2DMissing-2DMillion-2Dreport-2DFINAL.pdf&d=CwMFAg&c=HmJinpA0me9MkKQ19xEDwK7irBsCvGfF6AWwfMZqono&r=s0W1U77-pX4NhAh-8T87uTF4LDnodk6GTdjGM17NfTw&m=8Z8efaMpxIOS741e7CxbjVSDXk04sAt2_OD2iZ9EIBE&s=GlPLqvPJoVdY2On9nPqnCGs-wa12i1asDhLMMowCpM4&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.campaigntoendloneliness.org_wp-2Dcontent_uploads_The-2DMissing-2DMillion-2Dreport-2DFINAL.pdf&d=CwMFAg&c=HmJinpA0me9MkKQ19xEDwK7irBsCvGfF6AWwfMZqono&r=s0W1U77-pX4NhAh-8T87uTF4LDnodk6GTdjGM17NfTw&m=8Z8efaMpxIOS741e7CxbjVSDXk04sAt2_OD2iZ9EIBE&s=GlPLqvPJoVdY2On9nPqnCGs-wa12i1asDhLMMowCpM4&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.campaigntoendloneliness.org_wp-2Dcontent_uploads_CEL-2DMissing-2DMillions-2DGuide-5Ffinal.pdf&d=CwMFAg&c=HmJinpA0me9MkKQ19xEDwK7irBsCvGfF6AWwfMZqono&r=s0W1U77-pX4NhAh-8T87uTF4LDnodk6GTdjGM17NfTw&m=8Z8efaMpxIOS741e7CxbjVSDXk04sAt2_OD2iZ9EIBE&s=mzQxu6ZcqZ1KJgdwJwVfwEng96f0GhbZaFxovSDPyxI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.campaigntoendloneliness.org_wp-2Dcontent_uploads_CEL-2DMissing-2DMillions-2DGuide-5Ffinal.pdf&d=CwMFAg&c=HmJinpA0me9MkKQ19xEDwK7irBsCvGfF6AWwfMZqono&r=s0W1U77-pX4NhAh-8T87uTF4LDnodk6GTdjGM17NfTw&m=8Z8efaMpxIOS741e7CxbjVSDXk04sAt2_OD2iZ9EIBE&s=mzQxu6ZcqZ1KJgdwJwVfwEng96f0GhbZaFxovSDPyxI&e=


15

also lack confidence in doing so. This is also coupled with the fact that many lonely 
older people may not be known to other services such as social care, or their 
loneliness may not have been identified by professionals. 

A strong theme emerging from the evidence on how to reach hidden citizens is to 
adopt the NHS approach to make every contact count. This means making the right 
information available where people will visit on a periodic basis such as doctors, 
dentist and hairdressers, local supermarkets. 

Adult Social Care is well placed to pick up the trigger points; such as bereavement, 
they could provide information to the registrar. They could also provide information 
and support to carers when they lose the person they are looking after. 

The Hidden Citizens report10 states that council funded magazines could be a good 
source of information because they go to every household. Special features could be 
run on special events such as international older people day. The task group 
considered the resources available within the council to identify hidden citizens and 
believe that My Merton, which goes to every household in the borough could 
highlighted those organisations which are tackling loneliness.

Evidence within the Hidden Citizens report argues that mailings and leaflets can be a 
good way to reach people; the task group found that some organisations found mass 
mailings to have mixed results. Age UK Merton found that mass mailings were not 
always successful. The public health team felt that more sustainable ways to reach 
people should be used. Mass mailings and campaigns are only successful while they 
are running. 

Although the task group are aware that word of mouth, leafleting could exclude the 
most isolated who are least likely to engage with these methods due to complex 
barriers such as lack of confidence, discomfort in an unfamiliar environment. 

The task group also found that organisations working together can be exacerbated 
by data protection regulations which mean that information about various groups or 
individuals cannot be shared between agencies.

Also Merton councillors already play an important role in the community and have a 
good knowledge of their local wards, therefore highlighting the issues around 
loneliness, especially for the new cohort of councillors after May 2018, could assist 
them in this role. 

10 Hidden citizens: How can we identify the most lonely older adults. Campaign to End Loneliness, .2015

Page 121



16

Recommendation:

6. An Article in My Merton to profile the agreed list of community activities and 
services that lead to greater connectivity for older people with case studies 
from people who have benefitted from them. 

7. Public Health to host a lunchtime seminar for councillors on ‘connecting 
communities’ with the aim of tackling loneliness highlighting key issues and 
good practice.  

Use of religious venues

A report by the City of London Corporation11 looking at loneliness and social isolation 
found that faith venues can help to tackle loneliness.  Faith venues foster a strong 
sense of belonging it is a familiar environment where people can often meet trusted 
friends or others with a similar viewpoint or share their faith. 

A wide range of coffee mornings and outreach activities are happening within faith 
groups on a regular basis which could offer support to those experiencing loneliness.

This task group were told many faith groups in Merton provide services that support 
those who are lonely. However, this service may not be widely advertised and may 
only be attractive to people of that faith group. The task group believes there could 
be opportunities to harness these resources for the benefit of the wider community 
but is beyond the scope of this review. Therefore, councillors suggest that the 
relationship between the council and faith organisations could potentially be a future 
topic for scrutiny. 

Conclusion

Although the task group came across a wide range of innovative and high quality 
services to tackle loneliness, some challenges still remain.  The voluntary and 
community sector has experienced a significant loss of funding in recent years. Age 
UK told the task group that the centre used to be for traditional day services but this 
has now been changed to a social centre, this means that people pay for services. 
Also both Age UK Merton and Merton and Morden Guild no longer have a dedicated 
bus service and people either make their own way or use Dial a Ride. This can 
create a challenging environment when the voluntary and community sector are 
increasingly being called upon to provide services while their funding is in decline. 

However many promising changes are being implemented such as social prescribing 
and East Merton Model of Heath. The Healthier Communities and Older People 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel will take a keen interest in how these services help to 
reduce levels of loneliness in the borough. 

11 Improving Social Wellbeing in the City of London. Reducing loneliness and building communities. City of London

Page 122



17

The Director of Public Health also highlighted that we should not be on seeking to 
address loneliness by providing more services. We need to be more holistic and look 
at connecting communities and creating an environment for people from all walks of 
life to come together and enjoy mutual support. We must create spaces for people to 
interact. This is a long term goal and should be a central feature within regeneration 
and the re-design of local areas. 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Cabinet
Date: 16 October 2017
Wards: Borough wide implications

Subject:  
Lead officer: Reference from the Sustainable Communities Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel – consideration of care leaver 
accommodation
Lead member: Councillor Abigail Jones, Chair of the 
Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Contact officer: Annette Wiles, Scrutiny Officer, 0208 545 4035

Recommendations:
That Cabinet takes account of comments made by the Sustainable Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel (set out in paragraph 2.3 below).

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1. To inform Cabinet of the recommendations and comments resulting from the 

scrutiny of issues relating to accommodation for care leavers that took place 
at the Panel meeting held on 5 September 2017.

2 DETAILS
2.1. Members received a background briefing report on care leaver and young 

people accommodation that was jointly authored by officers from the 
Community & Housing and Children, Schools and Families Departments. 

2.2. Acknowledging that accommodation for care leavers is also an issue 
relevant to the Children & Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel, its 
members were in attendance at the meeting.  To support members in their 
examination of the issues the Panel invited a number of external guests with 
relevant experience.  These were 1) Paul Chadwick, a previous Director of 
Children Services at the London Borough of Croydon; this has a far greater 
number of care leavers than Merton, requiring creative approaches to meet 
accommodation needs and 2) Representatives from Evolve Housing and 
Support and Grenfell Housing and Training; organisations that work with 
care leavers in semi-independent accommodation and young people at risk 
of homelessness.

2.3. As a result of their discussions, members made the following comments and 
recommendations:

2.3.1 As reflected in the recent Ofsted combined inspection judgement and report, 
Merton has a good track record in making appropriate accommodation 
available for care leavers for which we congratulate officers.

2.3.2 Proactive accommodation planning is critical as part of the young person’s 
pathway plan for independence.  We want to endorse the approach of 
Children’s Services of engaging young people in care to understand their 

Page 125

Agenda Item 9



aspirations, to continue to meet their needs and prepare them for 
independence.

2.3.3 Through our exploration of the issues, we learnt that whilst there is sufficient 
semi-independent accommodation for care leavers, there is not enough nor 
a sufficient range of independent accommodation options as the next step 
on from semi-independent arrangements.  Additionally, the recent change in 
requirements means the Council is now retaining its corporate parenting 
responsibilities for longer potentially through to the age of 25.  This means 
provision of sufficient accommodation of all types is likely to be stretched 
and there is a need to increase the volume and supply of semi-independent 
and independent accommodation for care leavers.  We are keen that a 
range of options be explored to meet this growing demand including:
(i) Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMOs) at their best can offer care 

leavers the opportunity of accommodation supported by their peers, the Council 
and its partners. We ask the Council’s Housing, futureMerton and Children, 
Schools and Families departments to continue working with private landlords 
and partners like Evolve to offer more HMO opportunities to care leavers. We 
have identified that there is potential to work in partnership with Evolve and its 
portfolio of HMO landlords.  We recommend that a pilot project with Evolve is 
explored;

(ii) The ‘lead tenant model’ has been found to be successful and should 
also be considered.  This is where a more experienced tenant (potentially 
themselves a former care leaver) takes the responsibility for managing key 
aspects of the tenancy and to model this for other less experienced tenants 
(care leavers new to independent living). Typically this is offered in exchange 
for a discounted rental cost; 

(iii) Children’s Services, working with Adult Social Care, explores the 
potential for extending suitable Shared Lives accommodation to young people 
with more complex needs leaving care; and

(iv) Other options that we identified and that we recommend are explored 
as longer term opportunities are Housing First (provision of accommodation 
first supported by long-term, open-ended support), co-operative building 
schemes (allowing care leavers the opportunity to take responsibility for the 
refurbishment of their own property) and Merton developing additional 
accommodation itself for example on a Y-Cube model.

2.3.4 The recent combined Ofsted inspection additionally identified that care 
leavers in Merton receive good support in developing the skills and 
knowledge that they need to live independently and to manage their own 
affairs.  We congratulate officers on this achievement but want to encourage 
exploration of what else might be done.  We recommend the following are 
specifically considered:
(i) The implications of developing more ‘staying put’ arrangements as a 

transition to full independence, (this is a new policy allowing those in care to 
remain with their foster carers for longer);

(ii) Maintaining our good work and focus on working with young people 
whilst still in foster care with the aim of achieving better engagement when they 
enter semi-independent provision;

Page 126



(iii) Maintaining our good work and integration of pre-tenancy help into 
ESOL provision to provide support for care leavers that speak English as an 
additional language; 

(iv) Continue to encourage care leavers who have successfully 
transitioned into independent accommodation to become peer mentors to offer 
support for those that are yet to successfully achieve this transition.   We 
suggest looking at the good practice established by Kensington and Chelsea; 
and

(v) The Council explore how to encourage and support young people 
prior to leaving care to understand the benefit of saving to build up a rent 
deposit/property maintenance fund.  Care leavers have themselves identified 
this need.

2.3.5 The recent Ofsted inspection report states that the Council’s ‘staying put’ 
offer is “underdeveloped”. We recognise that Children’s Services is working 
to improve the opportunities for young people to stay with their foster 
careers. However, we also note that arrangements for staying put have the 
potential to reduce the pool of available foster families. Therefore we ask 
Cabinet to prioritise that all teams and all departments across the Council 
work together to support and increase the recruitment of new/additional 
foster careers. 

3 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
3.1. Cabinet is required under the terms of the constitution to receive, consider 

and respond to recommendations from Overview and Scrutiny. 
4 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED
4.1. None for the purposes of this report.
5 TIMETABLE
5.1. None for the purposes of this report.
6 FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS
6.1. None for the purposes of this report. 
7 LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS
7.1. None for the purposes of this report. 
8 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 

IMPLICATIONS
8.1. None for the purposes of this report. 
9 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
9.1. None for the purposes of this report. 
10 RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
10.1. None for the purposes of this report. 
11 APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE 

PUBLISHED WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT
11.1. None

Page 127



12 BACKGROUND PAPERS
12.1. None

Page 128



Document is Restricted

Page 129

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Business Plan 2018-22
	Draft Business Plan Report Cabinet 16 October 2017
	Appendix 1 ER Narrative - Swap Savings
	APPENDIX 1 E&R New Saving GLL - Leisure Centre
	E&R

	APPENDIX 1 E&R Replacement Savings LSG October 2017 v2
	Alternative saving

	APPENDIX 2 MTFS 2018-22 Update Cabinet 16 October 2017
	BUDGET PAPER FORMAT

	Appendix 3 Capital Programme Summary Bidding Sheet August Monitoring post CPB
	Reporting 2018-26

	APPENDIX 4 Equality Analysis Assessment_ENR10_021017
	Equality Analysis – ENR10
	– Leisure & Culture Development Team
	Equality group 
	Risks or improvements identified in the EIA

	9. Decision – Please indicate which of the following statements best describe the outcome of the EIA (( tick one box only)
	Performance measure & target(s)
	Environment & Regeneration 


	APPENDIX 4 EIA December2015cabinet Emissionschargesv2
	Equality Analysis 
	Protected characteristic (equality group)
	Negative impact/ gap in information identified in the Equality Analysis

	This action plan should be completed after the analysis and should outline action(s) to be taken to mitigate the potential negative impact identified (expanding on information provided in Section 7 above).
	How will you know this is achieved?  e.g. performance measure/ target)
	N/A
	N/A
	N/A

	8.  Which of the following statements best describe the outcome of the EA (Tick one box only)


	5 Financial Monitoring Report 2017-18 - August 2017
	Period 5 August 2017 LSG Report
	Subject:  Financial Report 2017/18 – August 2017
	1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	1.1 This is the financial monitoring report for period 5, 31st August 2017 presented in line with the financial reporting timetable.
	This financial monitoring report provides:-
	 The income and expenditure at period 5 and a full year forecast projection.
	 An update on the capital programme and detailed monitoring information;
	2. THE FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESS
	2.3  2017/18 FORECAST OUTTURN BASED UPON LATEST AVAILABLE DATA
	Overview
	Corporate Items - £20k under
	Environment & Regeneration
	Overview
	Public Protection

	1,011
	50
	(289)
	Waste Services overspend of £331k
	Children Schools and Families
	Overview

	At the end of August Children Schools and Families had a forecast overspend of £1.001m on local authority funded services. Although the department received £1m growth which was allocated against placement budgets, there were pressures over and above t...
	The forecast overspend also includes the cost for agency staff which was funded from the Corporate Contingency for the last three years (£480k) to enable the department to maintain safe caseloads as  part of our agreed approach and service model.
	Due to the volatile nature of placement and SEN transport budgets and the current volume of CSC activity and EHC requests we are exercising appropriate demand management balancing our education and social care statutory duties with careful and conside...
	Local Authority Funded Services
	Dedicated Schools Grant
	Management Action

	Community and Housing is now forecasting an over spend of £1.9m as at August 2017.
	Corporate Items
	Appendix 2 –  Detailed Corporate Items table
	Appendix 4 –  Treasury Management: Outlook
	 Name: Roger Kershaw
	 Tel: 020 8545 3458
	 email:   roger.kershaw@merton.gov.uk


	Appendix 6 -Progress on savings 17-18
	C&H 
	CSF
	CS
	E&R
	summary

	Appendix 7 -  Progress on savings 16-17
	C&H
	CSF
	CS
	E&R


	6 Merton's new Local Plan - have your say
	7 Contract Award- Adult Integrated Drug and Alcohol Service
	8 Tackling Loneliness in Merton - Final report and recommendations of the scrutiny task group review
	8b Loneliness Final Draft Report

	9 Reference: consideration of care leaver accommodation
	11 Contract Award- Adult Integrated Drug and Alcohol Service - Appendix



